AN

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD
B KIS EREG R E

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RHESEEFMRILNBERAR)

Stock code B& {31455 . 6162

X i

TIAN RUI

ANNUAL REPOR




Corporate Information

Financial Summary

Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Notes to the Financial Statements

NEEH

M BBE

ITEHRES

BEES KR

EEheREEEBRE

TEELARS

RE-HEREFRS

Contents

ANNUAL REPORT

H &%

Pages
B

16
22
41
102
115

124

125
126
128
130

132

IR 2022 1



Corporate Information
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Financial Summary

B35 8 2

HE12B31HLEE
For the Year Ended December 31
2022%F 20214 20204 20194 2018
ARETRT ARETR AR®BTx ARETR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Revenue LN 176,094 295,776 379,555 297,907 263,820
Gross profit EF 12,675 70,553 116,906 101,188 89,905
Gross profit margin EVES 7.2% 23.9% 30.8% 34.0% 34.1%
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrifAl (6518 /
bkl (30,333) 8,937 63,255 51,917 32,856
(Loss)/profit attributable NEEERER
to equity shareholders Bk (5518 /
of the Company i ) (26,010) 7,329 50,874 44,822 28,016
Listing expenses R - - - 4,005 12,447
®12831H
As at December 31
20224 20214 20204 20195 20184
ARETR ARBTR ARBTT ARETRT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Total assets BEEE 518,034 572,316 625,908 522,552 338,993
Total liabilities =N Rk 276,468 305,644 355,836 291,833 223,546
Total equity A% 241,566 266,672 270,072 230,719 115,447
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Chairman’s Statement

FTEHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board (the “Board”) of Directors of China
Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”).

In 2022, the heavy truck market suffered a “darkest
moment” due to the impact of multiple factors, such
as slowing economic growth, complicated and volatile
COVID-19 pandemic in various parts of China, soaring oil
prices, and poor logistics, with the annual sales volume of
672,000 units and a year-on-year down of 51.8%. This also
reinforced the Company’s strategic direction of adherence
to dual-wheel drive for passenger vehicles and commercial
vehicles, and will continue to consolidate the leading
position in Northwest China’s largest heavy truck market
while actively developing the passenger vehicle market.
The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB176.1
million in 2022, representing a decrease of 40.5% year on
year (2021: RMB295.8 million); and the loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB26.0 million (2021: profit of approximately RMB7.3
million). The Company did not recommend to declare a final
dividend for 2022 to shareholders.

In 2022, the Group has been managed by factory-based
operations, conducted relatively independent research and
management and manufacturing according to the product
process, maintained the specialization and sophistication
of the product line, promoted the independent contracting
and profit sharing as the main direction, encouraged the
enthusiasm and independent initiative of the management
and employees, and completed the Company’s system
informatization and comprehensive reform under the
main line of “market, products, TES, organization, and
mechanism”, so as to help the Group create a win-win
situation.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

NEHMIURR :

TANERRFEXBEAERNBHEBRA T
(TxrE)BEEg ((EEFg ) EE2EXNT
REWBRE (TRXEH]) 8 1L2022F12H
S1IHLEEE (AFEE)) Z2ER-

2022F > ZREIRME BEHAZH T
BEERZE - HEERR YKL BEELE
REFE EFTHHEBEBRBTIEBRFZ 2
FiHE67.28W > B E2021F FE51.8%°
EHFNMBET  AAREFRAERERE A
BHEGRREHINHR IR BEEBRESEA
IERAEEFEMBALMUNBE BiR
HAKAEMB AEBR2022F8H1B I
ANAREM¥176. 158t B EE2021F T
40.5% (2021F : AR®295.8BE 7t) ;
EEBENAADRERFEELHEEOARE
26.0E BT (20214 : BN ARM7.3H
Bit) o AABAEZEREETIR2022F K
HRE -

2022F  AEBEMNIKICELESE  HER
TEZ2IDEHBINAENRE  MEMBE

M  UNBERE - FBIASER B
BMEBABMEINEGERE TR
UTHmH-Em TES - EB -HE, HEH
TRARNERAGEECNEZEE2F BRE
BA A Hm o



In 2023, the heavy truck industry is expected to usher
in a good performance. In this year, the whole country
will continue to adhere to the general principle of
seeking progress while maintaining stability, vigorously
boost market confidence, implement the strategy of
expanding domestic demand, actively promote the overall
improvement of economic performance, and achieve
effective improvement in quality and reasonable growth
in quantity. In this year, the passenger vehicle market will
continue to be supported by relevant policies and will
have huge potential. In particular, the self-owned brand
passenger vehicles are expected to achieve double growth
in market share and sales.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would
like to express my sincere gratitude to our honorable
shareholders, global partners and all employees of the
Tianrui Group. Under the accelerated reshuffle of the
industry, the Group will respond to it with the development
concept of “focusing on the principal business, keeping
innovation, and achieving steady progress (BEf&EF
SFIERIFT 1718 3E) 7, and take priority in promoting
sustainable development and constantly improving
business management. By implementing the TES
and further enhancing its competitiveness, the Group
is committed to promoting its long-term and sound
development, so as to create greater value to reward the
support of the shareholders.

Hou Jianli
Chairman

Xi’an, China, 28 March 2023

Chairman’s Statement

FEHRSS

2023 ERTTXAZURAFERF -AF
EHEBEBRERTREBESR  XAORK
mFEO BERAE B 18HHEEE
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CERBRE,AFRAETEREEERMNMBR
ZFCBNER LHEBEXTmEFEBERS
ERTSHELEFEENEE R

BB AANEAREFEOEHHIRE -2
KEFBEHURRBEERMABEIRUR
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EERBEIRETX -TERM -TER
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TETAEEUEERR E—SPRALF
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BRARRNET BRRRAEEKRERE-
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the restoration of epidemic control,

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmADR

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

Looking back on 2022, under the influence of many
unfavorable factors such as economic downturn, the
outbreak of the epidemics, rising oil prices, and market
saturation, the heavy truck market suffered a “darkest
moment”, with a year-on-year decline in sales volume of
51.8%. With the improvement of the economic situation
and the gradual restoration of norm of living, the demand

for heavy trucks is expected to recover in 2023. With the

support of favorable factors such as stable growth policies,
and the elimination
of old vehicles, the heavy truck industry will stabilize and
rebound. At the same time, the improvement of the export
market will also become an “important force” to boost the
heavy truck market in 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

We have developed into the largest heavy trucks’ interior
decorative components and parts manufacturer in North
West China with a market-leading position. Our products
primarily comprise a wide array of automotive interior
decorative components and parts and to a lesser extent
exterior decorative components and parts, which are
designed to be installed on heavy trucks or passenger
vehicles. We offer design and development solutions
tailored to meet our customers’ specific requirements of
automotive interior decorative products including functional
specifications and appearance.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

TEME

ClEE2022F B TIT - EHEESE HEL
15 mﬁfﬁ%Tﬂl R ET O EF
MBEBT TEBERKZ) > BLL2021F#HE
TB51.8% HEELKERENETE REEKR
FRZESIME 2023 FERFEMRK
EE TRERBR ZTBEEEME -EE
BHEAASHNEREZNFTF T ERTESD
BEOA BREOTHENEE > BN AIR
R2023FEFAEBNIEENHE -

F 7% [0l B8
ZMPEERASTEHALRANER FE
NE T HMHERER LB HIHREMAL - K
MHNERTECREEFEARBERZER
BHERAERNZTHMF HREEIINGT
B -HARRELPHAEAMERNIIE
MERIINGEFABEEZRREHRER RN
FEEMRTE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of automotive interior and exterior decorative
components and parts. Set forth below is the breakdown
of our revenue by product category for the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021:

EEREANmADR

AEBFERERERNIEGSBHRES
KRIHE o FREFEH E2022F Kk2021F12
B1HILEEERERBRIE 22 FHMAHIUWK
Al

Year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARE T % ARBFT %
Heavy trucks’ decorative BN REEHTHHG
components and parts 151,582 86.08 269,196 91.01
Passenger vehicles’ decorative 3 f B3 4 & & 20 1
components and parts 24,512 13.92 26,580 8.99
Total 45t 176,094 100.0 295,776 100.0

Revenue from sales of heavy trucks’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of heavy trucks’
decorative components and parts decreased from
approximately RMB269.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB151.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 43.7%.

The decrease was mainly due to the cyclical downturn of
the heavy truck market in 2022, and the sharp decrease
in market sales compared with the previous year. In 2022,
the national sales volume of heavy trucks was 672,000,
with a year-on-year decrease of approximately 51.8%. The
Group’s main revenue comes from the heavy truck industry,
which has also declined due to the overall impact of the
industry.

BERFEEMTHHHEEEZRA

HEEE FEEHESBHELENKRAH
HE2021F12B31HLEEEMNY AR
269.2BEB TRV EEE2022F412H31H
FEENHNARBIS1. 68T BIBA A
43.7% o

ZRLVEBZHNR2022F8FfmEENRA
HMRa mHRHEEERLEEXFRR 2022
FrEEFRHEE7T.28EW RALEEFREEL
51.8% AEBETEZEWARBRRERTE >
RITEBREE WATAMTE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmADR

Revenue from sales of passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts

Revenue generated from sales of passenger vehicles’
decorative components and parts decreased from
approximately RMB26.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB24.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 7.9%. The decrease was mainly due to our
reduction in the supply of low-margin products to multi-tier
suppliers,while expanding products supply to automobile
plants as the first-tier supplier.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Qur revenue decreased from approximately RMB295.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB176.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
40.5%. The decrease was primarily due to the drop in sales
of our heavy trucks’ decorative components and parts and
passenger vehicles’ decorative components and parts.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit decreased from approximately RMB70.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB12.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
82.0%. Our overall gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 23.9% for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately 7.2% for the year ended 31
December 2022. Such decrease was primarily due to the
lower sales income and the higher fixed costs including
depreciation, resulting in a lower gross margin of products.

Other income

Our other income decreased from approximately
RMB3.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
23.1%, which was mainly due to the decrease in net gain
from the sales of scrap materials in 2022 compared with
that of 2021.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

BRAEEMTHGHEELEZWRA

HERBEEMTBHEEENHRABREER
2021F12B31HEFENNARK26.68
BTB/ LEHE2022F12831HLEEEN
WANRB24A5EB T BRIENST.9% 2R
LDEERHREMARL TEENEZNZ
MEEENEE BRERNTIEA —HKEE
EmEEEEERERMNMEE-

Bt 7% [o] B

KA
WAREZE2021FE12831HIEEEMNH A
REI&205.8EB TRV EERE2022F128
STHEFENNARKEI76. 1B 8T FIg
WAEILS% ZBLEFERHREMUER
FTEEMEX G R TRBEENSHEHE

b o

EMREFE
EMREE2021FE12B31HIEEEMNH A
RE70.6BETRLVEEHRE2022F128 31
HIEEEMNHARKEI2.7TEB T BIEBEAAS
82.0%° EFEREHE2021F12831HH
#23.9% FREEHE2022F12831HHHN
7T2% TEHRAFHEWARMBE ITESE
Bl AR EXNEREFNNERMKE-

Hg A

HMK AR E2021F12831HLEEEDN
MAREBI BB TRV E# IE2022F12H
STHEFEENNARKIOEE T BIEXN
B23 1% ZEBHMFERHN2022FHE
BER 2 W 82021 F D o



Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution expenses

Qur selling and distribution expenses decreased from
approximately RMB9.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approximately RMB3.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 58.1%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in transportation costs as a result of the decrease
in our sales volume.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses decreased from approximately
RMB47.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB33.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of 29.8%. Such
decrease was mainly due to the decrease in research and
development expenses and employee benefit costs for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased from approximately
RMB9.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB9.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
2.2%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in our weighted average balance of bank and
other loans for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Income tax

Our income tax credit amounted to approximately RMB4.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
income tax expenses accounted to approximately RMB1.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The income
tax credit was mainly due to the negative profit before
tax during the period and the recognition of the deferred
income tax assets.

(Loss)/profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, our loss amounted to
approximately RMB26.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2022, as compared to the profit amounted
to approximately RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.

EEREANmADR

HEMX
HERYNEE2021F12831HLEEED
MARBOOBB TRV E#E2022812H
STHEFEENHNARKISEE T BIEL
A58 1% ZRB L ETERAHRKEMNEE R
8 B g B AS R D o

THMAX
THEXREE2021F12831HILEEEDN
WARB47T 1 EBETHKREERE2022F12H
STHEFEMNNARKII.1H BT KIS
NHB29.8%  ZEBEEARNEE2022F
HNMEERREERMR AR DA

Bt 7 B 4

M AREE2021F12831HLEEEDN
MARBIOAIBETEEEHE2022F12H
STHLEFEMNHNARBICEE T RIBA
Bl22% ZBA L EERHNEE2022512
B31H ZHMMIBIT K & it & 0% F 985
RER D P o

FRig78
REE2022F12831HIEEENFFRERIE
TN AANRBAIEE T MREE20215F
12A1HLEFENMERAZANA AR
1 6EET FIEREESTERHNBERKR
Mg AR UTRITELEMRESRE
o

Hi (B548) #F

AR ERER REZE2022F12831H Lt
FENEENAANRK26.088 0 MRNE
F2021F 1283 1HLEFENZIAAAR
7.3EEBTTe
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmADR

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL

STRUCTURE

The operating capital of the Group was mainly from cash
from operating activities and bank and other loans. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, cash and cash equivalents
of the Group were approximately RMB78.5 million and
RMB62.5 million respectively.

The Group monitors the cash flows and cash balances
on a regular basis and seek to maintain an optimal level
of liquidity that can meet the working capital needs while
supporting a healthy level of business and its various
growth strategies.

Bank and Other Loans

Bank and other loans decreased from approximately
RMB133.8 million as at 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB130.5 million as at 31 December 2022.
Among them, the bank and other loans in the amounts of
approximately RMB62.5 million (2021: RMB93.8 million)
were secured by trade and bills receivables, property, plant
and equipment of the Group, and the credit loans and the
loans guaranteed by a third party, the ultimate controlling
party of the Company, or a subsidiary of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB68.0 million (2021:
RMB40.0 million).

Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2021 and 2022 were
at 50.2% and 54.0% respectively.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity as
at the end of the respective year. Total debts include all
interest-bearing bank and other loans.

Inventories

Our inventories decreased from approximately RMB60.2
million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB53.2
million as at 31 December 2022, representing a decrease
of approximately 11.7%. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in the volume of inventories as a result of the
decrease in the sales order in 2022.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

MRBEE - MBEERERELSRRE

AEEBNERKEE ST ERELEETH
FRBRE RIOTEREMER R2022F &
2021 F12A31H  xEEBREAREE
BYLRNAAREISSEBTRARKE
62.58 8T

FEREHERREREREEER FX
RABESHERNREKF B neEE
BEEBER ARTAIXFEFTRELEERRS
RIERRE -

RITREMER

BT REMERN2021FE12H31HHH A
RI133.8E BT A E2022F12831HM
HWARMKI30.5BEE T - ERA - F=HER"
BRAERAREBFRATERERASHNA
Ri68.0EE T (2021F : ARM40.08
B REEENET - HEMERALA
R#62.558 T (20214F : AR#93.88
Bx) HAEENEZEWRZREREKRE
B-ME - BERKREBILME-

BEARBGELEER
R2021FE K2022F12H31H  B4Xx A&t
KD RA50.2%K%54.0% °

EABBLEEXBERBZERNEBHRER
URZRE RHREEEMANBRITR
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FEN2021FE12A31EMY AR ¥60.2
BETRALE2022FE12831HMNAN AR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Prepayments for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment

Our prepayment for acquisitions of property, plant and
equipment increased from approximately RMB6.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB8.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022,
representing an increase of approximately 39.9%. The
increase is mainly due to the investment of new projects of
the Group in 2022.

Secured Assets
Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are secured by
the following assets of the Group:

EEEwEDh

BEVME -BERRFBEZEMRE

BEYVE BEAXBZANZENR2021
F12B31HMWO AR K6.3EETE R
2022F12RA31HMMAAE®S. 88 & 5>
BB A39.9% ZENMTEEHNER®E
2022 MIEBERAFTE °

BEFEE
FEERNETROAEMERBEERN
UTEEFER:

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T AREEF T

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 108,174 112,144
Trade and bills receivables B EWRTIEREREE 21,590 25,090
129,764 137,234

Capital Expenditure

As at 31 December 2022, the capital expenditures were
approximately RMB28.7 million (2021: approximately
RMB49.9 million). The capital expenditures incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2022 primarily related to the
purchase of new machineries and equipments.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022, the capital commitments in
respect of property, plant and equipment contracted were
approximately RMB10.0 million (2021: approximately
RMB16.0 million).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities (2021: RMB Nil).

BAMAX

R2022F12B31H  EXAHAIZNAB AR
28.7TEHBT(2021F : HARM49.98E
7o) B E2022FE 1283 1HIEEEEENE
AT T EBENMBERKERSR-

B AR

R2022F12B31H  AEBEFTHNYE
BEREEBENEAENAARKI0.0BE T
(2021F : Y AREM16.0B8 B L) ©

HEAR
R2022F12H31H AEBE W ELME K
HEEE (2021F : ARBE ) o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEAmADR

FLUCTUATION OF RMB EXCHANGE RATE AND

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The majority of the Group’s business and all bank
borrowings are denominated and accounted for in RMB.
Therefore, the Group does not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange fluctuation.

The Board does not anticipate that the fluctuation of RMB
exchange rate and other foreign exchange fluctuations
will have any material impact on the business operations
or financial results of the Group. The Group will closely
monitor the foreign exchange market and take appropriate
and effective measures from time to time to reduce any
negative impact from exchange-rate risk to the furthest
extent.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group had no significant investments held or material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 389
full time employees (2021: 480). For the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group incurred total staff costs of
approximately RMB41.8 million (2021: approximately
RMB50.7 million), representing a decrease of approximately
17.6% as compared with those in 2021. The decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in the number of employees.

The remuneration policy of our Group to reward its
employees and executives is based on their performance,
qualifications and competence displayed and is
comparable to the market. A remuneration package is
typically comprised of salaries, discretionary bonuses,
retirement scheme contributions, and other benefits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to retain and enrich the knowledge, skill level
and quality of our employees, the Group places a strong
emphasis on training our employees. In addition, the Group
offers a competitive remuneration package to retain elite
employees, and reviews the package annually according
to industry benchmark and financial results, as well as the
individual performance of employees.

MAJOR SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Save as disclosed in this announcement, there are no
major events subsequent to 31 December 2022 which
would materially affect the Group’s operating and financial
performance as of the date of this announcement.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this announcement, neither our Company, nor its
subsidiaries have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2023, China’s economy will continue to
recover steadily, and the long-term positive fundamentals
of the macro-economy will not change. The annual
demand of heavy truck market will show a trend of lower
demand at the beginning and higher demand after, and
the competition in respect of stocks will become the new
norm. The passenger car market has a huge potential with
superimposed policy support to help increase the market
share and sales volume of self-owned brand passenger
cars. We will firmly promote the dual track operation of
passenger cars and commercial vehicles, and maintain the
stock market and expand the external market.

We will continue to improve and continue to promote the
“TES” (Tianrui Excellence Management System) to make
the Tianrui Basic Law a standardized model of group
management. Through benchmarking, we will complete the
company’s system informatization construction, complete
the incentive mechanism for key employees, and achieve a
win-win situation for Tianrui people.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Hou Jianli ((E##)), aged 59, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of our
Board, the chief executive officer and the general manager
of our Group. Mr. Hou is mainly responsible for the overall
management, operations, strategic development and
business planning of our Group. Mr. Hou joined our Group
in May 2009 and has been acting as executive director and
general manager of Xi’an Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co.,
Ltd. (AL XIHAEAMEBRAR) (“Xi'an Tianrui”) since
then. He was appointed as our Director on 27 April 2017
and was redesignated as our Executive Director on 9 May
2018. Mr. Hou is also the director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Hou is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company.

Mr. Hou also possesses over 30 years of experience in
the manufacturing industry. From August 1985 to January
2000, Mr. Hou successively served as technician, workshop
deputy director, branch manager, chief engineer and head
of the composite packaging materials research institute of
PR P& A s MR (Shaanxi Province Pioneer Machinery
Factory*). Since January 2000, Mr. Hou served as legal
representative and director of B M X F BEHNBFEER AR
(Baoji Tianxiang Packaging and Printing Co., Ltd.*) .

Mr. Hou graduated from Shaanxi Institute of Technology (Bt
78 T2 5%) (now known as Shaanxi University of Technology
(BRAEE T AZ)) in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in
industrial electronic automation in July 1985.

Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui, who is our
Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. Xu Yunhua (5¥&%), aged 45, is our Executive
Director and the sales director of Xi’an Tianrui, which is
a subsidiary of our Group. He is mainly responsible for
sales management of Xi’an Tianrui. He joined our Group
in September 2010 and had successively worked as sales
supervisor and the head of the sales department of Xi'an
Tianrui. He was then promoted to the sales director of Xi’an
Tianrui in February 2019. Mr. Xu is also the director of a
subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Xu was appointed as our
Executive Director on 7 November 2022 and he is also a
member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Xu has over 19 years of experience in the sales
industry. From August 2003 to September 2010, he
worked successively as a salesman, the assistant section
head of the sales department and the head of the plastic
production factory of Baoji Wanhe Enterprise Co., Ltd (&
HHBESEXEMRAT). He was mainly responsible for
market development and overall management of the plastic
production factory.

Mr. Xu obtained his technical secondary school diploma in
industrial electronic automation from Baoji Industrial School
(BT ILEERK) (now known as Baiji Vocational and
Technical College (E8 % B 2 T2 F%) ) in July 1997.

Mr. Xu is the nephew-in-law of Ms. Chen Bierui, who is
our Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Xu is also the nephew-in-
law of Mr. Hou Jianli, who is our Controlling Shareholder,
Executive Director, the chairman of our Board, the chief
executive officer and the general manager of the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zhu Hongqiang (%R 4134&), aged 53, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Company and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in legal practice in the PRC. He joined Shaanxi
Yongjia Law Firm (BREE X 2R EMEFFT) in October 2001 as
a lawyer and the deputy director and is currently a partner
of the law firm.

Mr. Zhu obtained a diploma in law from Northwest College
of Political Science and Law (FAIEEEZB%) (now known
as Northwest University of Political Science and Law (Fg1E
BE K 2)) through self-study higher education examination
(BEHEBZEEH)iIn the PRC in June 1998. Mr. Zhu
obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Evening College
of Xi"an Technological Institute (FAZ T 2% 2 5%) (now known
as Xi’an Technological University (FAZ T ¥ K&)) in the
PRC in July 2005. Mr. Zhu was admitted as a PRC lawyer
by the Shaanxi Provincial Department of Justice (BEFE2& 5
7% E8) in October 2001.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEBRE

Mr. Zhou Genshu (R #), aged 58, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 18 December
2018 and is also the chairman of the audit committee of
the Company and a member of each of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Zhou has over 27 years of experience in the education
industry. Since November 1995, he worked in the School
of Materials Science and Engineering of Xi’an Jiaotong
University (7822 228 A B2 A7 1L A 82 82 T #2 B2 b)) successively
as associate professor, professor and doctorial supervisor
and is mainly responsible for lecturing and material science
research. During such period, he has hosted several
important scientific research projects and published
academic papers on reputable scientific journals.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in foundry
engineering and a master’s degree in foundry engineering
from Tsinghua University CEZEAK2)in July 1986 and
August 1989 respectively. He obtained a doctoral
degree in foundry engineering from Northwestern Poly-
technical University (FA3E T2 K 2)in October 1993. He
obtained a post-doctoral certificate in material science
and engineering from National Post-Doctoral Regulatory
Committee (2EIE TR EELZEZEF)in December 1995.
He serves as the committee member and secretary of the
Typical Component Heat Treatment Technology Committee
of the Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (2= iR
EBES2gHAUTHAEERIITEZEE)since October 2006,
the standing committee member of the Heat Treatment
Branch of Chinese Mechanical Engineering Society (7 Bl {4
W ITRE2EREIEDE)since July 2015 and the chairman
of the Material and Heat Treatment Branch of the Shaanxi
Provincial Mechanical Engineering Society (BR78 2 # i T
REaeMi REFERIESD ®)since March 2016. He has been
granted several awards including the third prize of Shaanxi
Province Science and Technology Award, the second prize
of Xi’an City Science and Technology Award, the second
prize of Chinese University Science and Technology Award
and the Technology Innovation Award of Heat Treatment
Society.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Chen Geng (FfEk), aged 49, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 15 September
2020 and is also a member of each of the audit committee
and nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Chen has
over 17 years of experience in the education industry. He
has been working in the School of Economics and Business
Administration of Chongging University (B K22 4875 8 T
7 BB EPR) successively as associate professor, professor
and master tutor since July 2004 and is mainly responsible
for lecturing and financial, accounting and financial market
research. During such period, he has hosted several
scientific research projects and published academic papers
on reputable journals.

Mr. Chen is currently an independent director of Chongging
Lummy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd (stock code: 300006), a
company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an
independent director of Landai Technology Group Corp.,
Ltd. (stock code: 002765), a company being listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, an independent director
of Fuan Pharmaceutical (Group) Co.,Ltd. (stock code:
300194), a company being listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and an independent director of Jiutai Mutual
Fund Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor 's degree in economics from
Renmin University of China (FE AR AE)and a master’s
degree in economics from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics (FGRE BT 48 KE)in July 1996 and
June 2001 respectively. He obtained a doctor’s degree in
economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics (FAR B 48 A2)in June 2004 and obtained a
post-doctoral certificate in business administration from
National Post-Doctoral Regulatory Committee (& B 1#
THBEEEZEE)in March 2009. Mr. Chen obtained the
qualification as Certified Public Valuer and Certified Public
Accountant both granted by the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in September 2001 and July
2004 respectively.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEBRE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Hou Jianli (E##)), aged 59, is one of the founders
of our Group, our Executive Director, the chairman of
our Board, the chief executive officer and the general
manager of our Group. For further details, please refer to
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” in this section
above.

Ms. Zhang Wei (3Rf%), aged 35, is the chief financial
officer of our Group, the secretary of our Board and one of
the joint company secretaries of our Company. Ms. Zhang
is primarily responsible for the accounting and financial
management of our Group and assisting our Board on
corporate governance matters. Ms. Zhang joined our Group
in September 2020 and has been the chief financial officer
of Xi’an Tianrui.

Ms. Zhang has over 12 years of experience in accounting.
From April 2012 to June 2018, Ms. Zhang served as a
project manager at Xigema Certified Public Accountants
(Special Ordinary Partnership) (F &35 & 5t B0 S 7 Fr
(EHEEA%)). During such period, she was mainly
responsible for the annual audit and internal control audit
work of large-scale state-owned enterprises and listed
companies. From November 2019 to August 2020, Ms.
Zhang served as the chief financial officer of Xi’an Huaren
Health Investment Management Co., Ltd (FAZZE#
B EE®EAMASE), which principally engages in the
business of equity investment. During such period, she
was mainly responsible for the financial management of the
company.

Ms. Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in management
from Xi’an College of Posts and Telecommunications (7§
Z HEBEEPT) (now known as Xi’an University of Posts and
Telecommunications (FEZEEAZ)) in July 2010. Ms.
Zhang has been qualified as a Chinese Certified Public
Accountant since August 2014.

Mr. Xu Yunhua (5¥& %), aged 45, is our Executive
Director and the sales director of Xi’an Tianrui. For further
details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Executive
Directors” in this section above.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Zhang Wei (3R#§), aged 35, was appointed as one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company on 28
December 2020. She is also the chief financial officer
of our Group and the secretary of our Board. For her
qualifications and experience, please refer to the paragraph
headed “SENIOR MANAGEMENT” in this section.

Mr. Ip Pui Sum (Ei#H#), aged 63, was appointed as
one of the joint company secretaries of our Company on
9 May 2018. Mr. Ip has been the partner of Sum, Arthur &
Co., Certified Public Accountants since 1999 whose scope
of services include the provision of financial statements
audit, accounting and company secretary services. Mr. Ip
has been appointed as the company secretary of various
companies listed on the Main Board and GEM of the Stock
Exchange including Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Group
(stock code: 322), Luoyang Glass Company Limited (stock
code: 1108), Beijing Chunlizhengda Medical Instruments
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1858), Golden Solar New Energy
Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 1121) and
Asiaray Media Group Limited (stock code: 1993) since
January 1996, August 2008, March 2015, April 2017 and
June 2017 respectively and one of the joint company
secretaries of ZACD Group Ltd. (stock code: 8313) since
July 2017.

Mr. Ip obtained a higher diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982 and
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
Henley Management College and Brunel University in May
1997. Mr. Ip is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in
Hong Kong, a fellow member of the Chartered Association
of Certified Accountants and an associate member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEXERRS

IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE CODE

Our Company has committed to delivering and maintaining
a higher standard of corporate governance to meet
business needs and shareholders’ expectation. Our
Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) as the basis of our
Company’s corporate governance practices. The Corporate
Governance Code has been applicable to our Company
with effect from the Listing Date, save for the following
deviation:

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregated and should not be
performed by the same individual. However, Mr. Hou Jianli
currently performs the roles as the chairman and general
manager. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both
chairman and general manager in the same person has the
benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within our Group
and enables more efficient overall strategic planning for our
Group. The Board considers that the balance of power and
authority will not be impaired by the present arrangement
and this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. After taking
into account the overall circumstances of our Group, the
Board will continue to review and consider whether the
duties of the chairman and general manager should be
separated.

Save as disclosed above, our Company will comply with
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. Our Directors will review our corporate
governance policies and compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code each financial year.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board has established three Board committees, being the
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
(each a “Board Committee” and collectively the “Board
Committees”), to oversee different areas of the Company’s
affairs. As of the date of this annual report, the composition
of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)

Ms. Hou Yuxi (resigned on 7 November 2022)
Mr. Xu Yunhua (appointed on 7 November 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Chen Geng

Their biographical details are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 16 to 21 in the annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their role and function and whether
they are independent non-executive Directors are available
on the Company’s website.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company commencing for a term of three
years unless terminated by either party giving not less than
one month’s notice in writing to the other party.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.
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EEXERRS

Mr. Xu Yunhua, the Executive Director of the Company, is
the nephew-in-law of Mr. Hou Jianli, the Executive Director
and the chairman and general manager of the Group. Other
than that, there is no financial, business or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

The functions and duties of the Board include but are not
limited to: convening Shareholders’ general meetings and
reporting the Board’s work at the Shareholders’ general
meetings; implementing the resolutions passed at the
Shareholders’ general meetings; determining our business
plans and investment plans; preparing annual budget
proposals and final accounts proposals; preparing plans
for profit distribution and recovery of losses; preparing
plans for the increase or decrease in registered capital; and
exercising other power, functions and duties as conferred
by the Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). Each of our Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Company, and the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

The daily management, administration and operation of
the Group are delegated to the senior management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with
reasonable care, skill and diligence, in pursuit of the
development of the Company. Every newly appointed
Director receives an induction to ensure that he/she has
a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his duties
and responsibilities as a director under applicable rules and
requirements.
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The Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enrol in a wide range of professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) or act and corporate
governance practices organised by professional bodies so
that they can continuously update and further improve their
relevant knowledge and skills. In addition, briefings and
updates on the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements are
provided to each of the Directors during Board meetings
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of
good corporate governance practices. During the year, the
Directors participated in the following trainings:

EEXERRS

AAT—ERBEFRERTXEBAN
BB LR A AR (5B 5k R H622
%) ((RARMEA) WEARLEERRR
RESXRERRREE SRETHBE
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Type of training

Directors =5 1EENEE R
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Hou Jianli BEER AB
Ms. Hou Yuxi (resigned on 7 November 2022) ER#E % = (573202251187 H & T) A,B
Mr. Xu Yunhua (appointed on 7 November 2022) SFE L4 (7A2022F 11 37HEEHE) AB
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIFHTESE

Mr. Zhu Honggiang A A,B
Mr. Zhou Genshu B 1R 1 A,B
Mr. Chen Geng R Bk A,B

A: Reading materials given by the Company relating to the
Company’s businesses and the regular updates on the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements relevant to
the director’s duties and responsibilities

B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to
economy, environment and social issues or director’s duties
and responsibilities

A 2HAFRAREEBEABDEFZTREHES
BEhEEZ LT RAKEMEREEREZ
R ERZER

B: Z2HAMKE RERMEREXAEFTHHBK
BEZHR= B REHEH
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EEXERRS

INDEPENDENCE OF

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Company to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and the
Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the Independent Non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each Independent Non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
and Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has
its defined and written terms of reference approved by
the Board covering its duties, powers and functions. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee are
respectively available on the Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources

to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Audit Committee on 18
December 2018 with its written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph D.3 of the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are, among others, mainly to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of external auditors; review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting; and oversee financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control procedures of our
Company.

Our Audit Committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Zhou Genshu, Mr. Chen Geng and Mr. Zhu Honggiang
(each an independent non-executive Director). Mr. Zhou
Genshu is the chairman of our Audit Committee.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings.
The Audit Committee has reviewed, among other things,
the financial statements of the Company for the six months
ended 30 June 2022 and the year ended 31 December
2022, including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, report prepared by the external
auditors covering major findings in the course of the
audit, the risk management and internal control systems
and the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and the accounting and financial reporting
matters, and selection and appointment of the external
auditors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph E.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee are, among others, to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior
management of our Group; review performance based
remuneration; and ensure none of our Directors determine
their own remuneration.
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EEXERRS

Our Remuneration Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Zhu Honggiang (an independent non-executive
Director), Mr. Zhou Genshu (an independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Xu Yunhua (an executive Director).
Mr. Zhu Honggiang is the chairman of our Remuneration
Committee.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors
and senior management of the Company.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure for formulating policies on the remuneration of
Directors and senior management of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements in this annual report.

The biographies of the senior management are disclosed
in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. The
remuneration of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Remuneration band (HK$)
#ENAER CB7o)

RMFHEEEm =M EMEMN  BIKAR
FEBUFATES) BREEE B
FRTESR) RFEBERE RITESR) oK
A ERBRMAFNEZETER -

FAR FNZEGEBERTMRGEZ - FNZ
EECEREHBEST TR SHREERE
BY BN SR R 2R AR o

EEREREEEFHMN

KN EMEEAEERESRahEER
FMBRIT LI ERXAREEZHENER P
HE2022F12B31HIEEE EEENH
BN BE N AFERYBRKRM TS

SR EEBNEERENAETFR EEhS
MEEERE) — -MNEE2022512H31
HEEE  ShESEBBMNEHEMNAER MT

Number of individuals

AB

0—1,000,000
1,000,000—1,500,000
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Our Company established the Nomination Committee on
18 December 2018 with its written terms of reference
in compliance with paragraph B.3 of the Corporate
Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are, among others, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board on a regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members;
assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors.

Our Nomination Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Hou Jianli (an executive Director), Mr. Zhou
Genshu (an independent non-executive Director) and Mr.
Chen Geng (an independent non-executive Director). Mr.
Hou Jianli is the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the
policy for the nomination of Directors, the structure, size
and composition of the Board and assessed independence
of the independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”). The Nomination Committee will
assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria such
as education background, experience, skill and ability
to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities. The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Nomination Policy and report to the
Board when necessary. Also, the Nomination Committee
will review the Nomination Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any
such revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.
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EEXERRS

The Company has adopted a policy on diversity of Board
(the “Board Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. With a view to achieving a sustainable and
balanced development, the Company sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Company considers diversity of the Board
from a variety of perspectives, including but not limited
to age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All appointments to the Board are made on the
basis of merit, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Our Company and the Nomination Committee regularly
review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy:

(1) Independence: The Board includes a balanced
composition of executive and non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) so
that there is a strong element of independence in the
Board. Independent non-executive Directors have
sufficient talent and number to provide influential
opinions.

(2) Skills and experience: The Board has balanced skills
that are suitable for the Company’s business needs.
The Directors have a blend of finance, academic and
management backgrounds that taken together provide
the Company with extensive experience in various
business activities.

(3) Age: The Board has members from the 1960s and
1970s, respectively.
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In addition to the above objectives, in order to comply
with the Listing Rules, the Board Diversity Policy has the
following objectives:

(1) at least one-third of members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive Directors; and

(2) at least one of the members of the Board shall
have obtained appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or relevant financial management
expertise.

The Company recognises the importance of gender
diversity and recruits employees at all levels based on
merits and regardless of gender in order to ensure there
is a pipeline of male and female potential successors to
the Board and the senior management. The Company will
ensure at least one female Director will be appointed by 31
December 2024.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions
set out in the code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code.

The Board developed, reviewed and monitored the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of Model Code,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

The attendance record of each of the current Directors at
the Board and Board committee meetings and the general
meetings of the Company held during the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in the table below. The Directors
did not authorize any alternate Director to attend the Board
or Board Committee meetings.
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EEXERRS

Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held regularly
at least four times each year and shall be convened by
the chairman of the Board of Directors. If a Director is
unable to attend a Board meeting, he may appoint another
Director by a written power of attorney to attend on his
behalf. Such a power of attorney shall specify the scope
of authorization. Directors attending Board meetings on
behalf of other directors shall exercise their powers as
directors within their scope of authorization. If a Director
fails to attend a Board meeting and does not appoint an
attorney to attend, the Director is deemed to have waived
his rights to vote at that meeting. Each Director shall have
one vote. Questions arising at any meetings of the Board of
Directors shall be determined by a majority of votes. Where
the numbers of votes cast for and against a resolution
are equal, the chairman shall have the right to cast an
additional vote.
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Mr. Zhou Genshu 2/2 2/2 2/2 4/4 1/1
R
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Board’s Independence

The Company has established the following mechanisms to
ensure independent views and opinions are available to the
Board:

(i) Composition of the Board and Board Committees
° The Board endeavours to ensure the
appointment of at least three and at least one-
third of its members being independent non-
executive Directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time
to time).

° Apart from complying with the requirements
prescribed by the Listing Rules as to the
composition of certain Board committees,
independent non-executive Directors will be
appointed to other Board committees as far as
practicable to ensure independent views are
available.

(ii) Independence Assessment
° The Nomination Committee must strictly adhere
to the Nomination Policy and the independence
assessment criteria as set out in the Listing
Rules with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive
Directors.

o Each independent non-executive Director is
also required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change in his/her own
personal particulars that may materially affect
his/her independence.

° The Nomination Committee is authorised
to assess annually the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors by
reference to the independence criteria as set
out in the Listing Rules to ensure that they can
continually exercise independent judgement.
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EEXERRS

(iijj Compensation
° No equity-based remuneration (e.g. share
options or grants of shares) with performance
related elements will be granted to independent
non-executive Directors as this may lead to
bias in their decision making and affecting their
objectivity and independence.

(iv) Board Decision Making
° independent non-executive Directors (as other
Directors) are entitled to seek further information
and documentation from the management on
the matters to be discussed at Board meetings.
They can also seek assistance from the
Company Secretary of the Company and, where
necessary, independent advice from external
professional advisers at the Company’s expense.

o independent non-executive Directors (as other
Directors) shall not vote or be counted in the
quorum on any board resolution approving any
contract or arrangement in which such Director
or any of his/her close associates has a material
interest.

° The chairman of the Board shall at least
annually hold meetings with the independent
non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors to discuss major issues and any
concerns.

The Board will monitor the implementation and
effectiveness of the above mechanisms annually to ensure
the Board has a balance of skills, and that independent
views and opinions are available to the Board.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
and employees’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries, all Directors and members of the senior
management confirmed that they have complied with the
relevant provisions of the Model Code throughout the
period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

To maintain good corporate governance practices and
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable laws, the
Company appointed Ms. Zhang Wei (chief financial officer)
and Mr. Ip Pui Sum as the joint company secretaries. Mr. Ip
Pui Sum assists Ms. Zhang Wei in performing her duties as
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Zhang Wei is the
main contact person of the Company. The joint company
secretaries confirmed having received no less than 15
hours’ of professional training.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board is aware that it is responsible for monitoring the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group
on an ongoing basis and review their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the
key risk areas, including any remedial plans, if deemed
necessary or appropriate, to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The identified key risk areas and the
appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and
commented by the Board at its meeting annually.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review
on the effectiveness of both design and implementation of
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022, covering
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring that
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee will report
any material issues to the Board.

The Company has established its enterprise risk
management framework for the year. While the Board
has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound and
effective internal controls are maintained, management
is responsible for designing and implementing an internal
control system to manage all kinds of risks facing by the
Group.

The Group structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled
with risk management monitoring carried out by the finance
and compliance team. The Group maintains a risk register
to keep track of all major risks identified by the Group.
The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee,
and management with a profile of its major risks and
records management’s action taken to mitigate the relevant
risks. Each risk is assessed at least annually based on its
likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The risk register is updated by management as
the risk owners with addition of new risks and/or removal
of existing risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the
annual risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively manages
the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have
access to the risk register and are aware of and alert to
those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Our risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing process. The effectiveness
of our risk management framework will be evaluated at
least annually, and regular management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part
of the daily business operation processes in order to align
risk management with corporate objective in an effective
manner.

The Company has an internal audit function which primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of
the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports their
results to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

HANDLING OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With a view to identifying, handling and disseminating
inside information in compliance with the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), procedures including notification of regular blackout
period and securities dealing restrictions to relevant
Directors and employees, identification of project by code
name and dissemination of information to stated purpose
and on a “need-to-know” basis have been implemented
by the Group to guard against possible improper and/or
unauthorised use of inside information within the Group.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the external
auditor.

The Group was charged RMB1.8 million and RMB50,000
by KPMG for auditing and non-auditing services
respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022. The
non-auditing services mainly consist of counting services.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
and the Board. An annual general meeting of the Company
shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”).

CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

AT GENERAL MEETINGS

EGMs shall also be convened on the requisition of one or
more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to
the Board or a secretary for the purpose of requiring an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the
Company, shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company by mail to Room 4, 16/F, Ho King Commercial
Centre, 2-16 Fayuen Street, Mongkok Kowloon, Hong
Kong.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy, which is subject to annual review to ensure its
implementation and effectiveness. Such policy aims to
ensure that Shareholders will have equal and timely access
to information about the Company, so as to enable them
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow
them to participate actively in the affairs of the Company.

A summary of the Company’s shareholders’ communication
policy is set out below.

The Company provides information to Shareholders through
its financial reports (including interim and annual reports),
circulars, announcements and other disclosures submitted
to the Stock Exchange for publication.

To further promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a website at www.trgcns.com with information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial reports, circulars, announcements and
other information.

Shareholders’ meetings are a primary forum for
communication between the Board and Shareholders.
The Company encourages Shareholders to attend and
participate in general meetings to ensure a high level
of accountability and to keep them informed of the
Company’s objectives and strategies. The Chairman of
the Board, other Board members, and the Chairmen
of all the Board committees, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, are available to
answer any questions from Shareholders. Shareholders
are given adequate notice of the meetings, and detailed
voting procedures are included in circulars to Shareholders
accompanying the notices of meetings.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of its shareholders’ communication policy for
the year ended 31 December 2022, including the steps
taken at the general meetings, the handling of queries
received and the multiple communication channels in place.
The Company is of the view that the policy is effective and
has been properly implemented.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated 18
December 2018, the Articles of Association were adopted
with effect from the Listing Date. As at the date of this
report, no change has been made to the Articles of
Association after the Listing Date.

The Articles of Association are available on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Company proposed to amend the existing amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on 16 June 2023. The proposed
amendments are subject to the passing of a special
resolution by the shareholders of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this
annual report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

SUMMARY

This report is the fifth annual environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) report issued by the Group. This report
covers the work in the financial year from 1 January 2022
to 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

PREPARATION BASIS

The Group prepared the ESG report in accordance with the
ESG Guide (the “ESG Guide”) of Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules. The ESG report is intended to provide environmental
performance and social performance of the Group during
the Reporting Period, mainly including the environmental
and social issues related to the sustainable development
of the Group which the stakeholders’ concern, so that
key stakeholders can better understand the Group’s
sustainable development concepts, measures and related
performance, etc.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality

The ESG factors were thoughtfully selected through an
internal materiality analysis undertaken by us. The first
step entailed identifying potential material topics, with
feedback garnered from relevant stakeholders. After that,
these feedbacks were then prioritised with regards to
their environmental and social impact to the Group and its
stakeholders.

Quantitative

Statistical standards, methods, assumptions and/or
calculation methods for qualitative key performance
indicators herein and source of conversion factors are all
explained in the respective subsection of the Report.

Consistency
The statistical methodologies applied to the data disclosed
in this ESG report shall be consistent.
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IR - HERERES

SCOPE AND EXTENT OF REPORT
Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data
in this report basically cover the Group and its subsidiaries.

DATA SOURCE AND RELIABILITY ASSURANCE

The data and cases of this report are mainly derived from
the statistics report and related documents of the Group.
There is no false record or misleading statement in this
report and we shall be liable for the authenticity, accuracy
and completeness of the report.

PARTICIPATION AND CONTACT OF STAKEHOLDERS
The Group expects to respond to concerns of different
stakeholders on our performance of environmental
and social responsibilities through the ESG report, and
incorporate the opinions of various stakeholders into the
management of corporate sustainability. If the stakeholders
have any comments on the contents of the Group’s ESG
report, please feel free to send a letter to the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong to contact the company
secretary of the Company.

CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

As confirmed by the management, this report was
approved by the board of directors on 28 March 2023.
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1. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS OF THE PERFORMANCE 1.

OF ESG IN 2022
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3.1
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ESG CONCEPT OF THE GROUP

The Group formulated the concept of ESG
development by building the “2+2” two-wheel
driven strategy of “commercial vehicles + passenger
vehicles supply chain”, based on the Group’s core
values of “Integrity, Concentration, Innovation and
Win-win”. Under the guidance of the ESG concept
implemented by the Group through applying the six
modules of the Tianrui Excellent Management System
Project (“TES”), tasks are well done in such aspects
as the “top priority to research and development”,
“quality-oriented”, “supremacy of environment
protection”, “quality services”, “sharing development
with employees”, “giving back to society” and
“performance of social responsibilities”.

To better promote the normalized management of
ESG, implement the ESG strategies and enhance the
ESG related risk control, the Group adopts the three-
level governance structure: the board of directors, the
general manager and ESG working group. The Board
is responsible for implementing the ESG management
in a top-down way, the general manager for directly
managing and supervising, and ESG working group
for specific execution of the same.

INTEGRITY: HONESTY AND TRUSTWORTHINESS,

QUALITY-ORIENTED

Integrity: Honesty and Trustworthiness

The Group strictly abides by relevant national laws
and regulations, advocates a corporate culture of
integrity, and attaches importance to its own integrity
establishment. We promote the stable development
of an enterprise featured by ecologically sustainable
growth and strongly object to monopoly, illegal
competition, destroying of market environment,
violation of competition rules and other unfair
competition methods. During the Reporting Period,
we were not involved in any unfair competition or
corruption related lawsuits.
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3.1.1 Anti-corruption

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Policy and
Whistle-blowing Policy that explicitly requires all of our
employees and other external interested persons to
abide by the anti-corruption laws and regulations of
each jurisdiction, and encourages report the potential
illegal acts of employees, customers, suppliers and
other interested parties. As for the whistle-blowing
process, we have set up a whistle-blowing system
and channels to protect the whistle-blowers from
unfair dismissals, persecution and unnecessary
disciplinary actions.

3.1.2 Training on integrity

The anti-corruption strategy of the Group is based
on prevention, communication and training, regularly
advocating anti-corruption policies and regulations to
all the employees and fostering a sense of integrity.
Meanwhile, we conduct irregular training and
knowledge competition for all the employees, regulate
the behavior of employees, maintain an atmosphere of
integrity and dedication, and prevent the occurrence
of intentional fabrication and disclosure of trade
secrets, corruption, misappropriation, embezzlement
and other acts that damage the interests of the
Group. During the Reporting Period, we were not
involved in any corruption related lawsuits.
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3.2
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Integrity: Quality-oriented

3.2.1 Quality concept

The Group has always been practically strengthening
corporate quality management, formulating and
following the quality policy of “Quality First, Customer
First, Optimizing Management, and Sustainable
Development”. According to the deployment of the
Group, its management is divided into six modules:
leaderships, customer relationships, projects R&D,
production and operation, supplier partnerships and
employee incentives. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has established a total of 300 TES documents,
including 1 first-level document, 78 second-level
documents and 221 third-level documents, all of
which are classified by level; and 96 leaderships
documents, 12 customer relations documents,
49 projects R&D documents, 88 production and
operation documents, 16 supplier partnerships
documents and 39 employee incentives documents,
all of which are classified by modules. Based on the
basic principle of customer-oriented, we vigorously
promote the total quality management, as well as
establish 4M change management mechanism,
hierarchical audit mechanism, process discipline
inspection and rapid response mechanism of APU.

We strictly abide by laws and regulations such as
the Product Quality Law, the Standardization Law,
the Metrology Law, the Law on the Protection of
Rights and Interests of Consumers. We carry out
business operations in accordance with laws, abide
by contracts, ensure quality and firmly object to the
production and sale of sub-quality products.
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3.2.2 Control of incoming material quality

During the Reporting Period, we attach importance to
the performance evaluation management of suppliers,
and conduct a comprehensive evaluation from four
dimensions including supply ability, technical skKills,
quality capability and service capability respectively,
and had identified five suppliers in the black list, 15
suppliers in the yellow list, 12 suppliers in the green
list and 895 suppliers in the red list. The suppliers
in black list will be announced and the suppliers
in yellow list will be warned. The five suppliers in
the black and yellow lists continuously had been
eliminated, thus realizing the adjustment of the quota
for our suppliers. Under this management mechanism,
the willingness of supplier to improve themselves has
become stronger.

Under the guidance of the TES of the Group,
we strictly control the access and assignation of
suppliers, and conduct comprehensive evaluation
by referring to the on-site check results, historical
quality performance, quality system, main customers
and products of suppliers. Meanwhile, we benchmark
the industry supply chain system, and gradually
include the excellent suppliers in the industry into
the supply chain system of the Group. We organize
the suppliers of key materials and components and
parts to carry out technical communication with the
Group for six times, introducing professionals and
advanced technologies. We make comparison in
accordance with the method of “Three Unifications”
(unified standards, unified methods, and unified tools),
with 112 standards unified, and go to the factories
as “households in hardship” for providing on-site
guidance simultaneously, so as to improve quality
assurance capability of the suppliers and reduce the
non-performing ratio of incoming goods. During the
Reporting Period, the qualified ratio for the incoming
batches of materials of the Group increased by 7.07%
year on year.
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3.2.3In-process quality control 323 BAFEEER
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Combined with the benchmark enterprise operation
and management system, the Group conducts overall
planning, step by step development, item by item
implementation of 7QB for production quality based
on production and operation of the Company. 7QB
includes seven basic quality principles: qualified first
piece, error proof verification, self-inspection, final
inspection, red box, rework under control, quick
feedback. During the Reporting Period, 7QB has
been implemented effectively. Under the guidance
of the TES of the Group, we set up a APU cross-
departmental multifunctional team to rapidly respond
to the process quality problems, quickly curb and
promote the rapid improvement of the process
problems, as well as check and curb the customer
complaints at the shipment end, establish the
shipment inspection data according to the factory
division to form the heavy truck shipment qualified
rate, car shipment PPM, statistical indicators in
consistent with the customer, develop and implement
the factory quality agreement. We carry out 4M
change management, which includes personnel,
machinery and equipment, materials and operation
methods. The factory will identify the change points,
observe the operation on the change points, and
jointly conduct the first article assurance with
inspectors to ensure that the 4M changes are carried
out under control and the quality improvement
is remarkable. We establish a hierarchical audit
mechanism, which consists of four layers: team
leader, workshop director, factory director and general
manager. Each layer inspects item by item at the
audit frequency through using an audit table, makes
an action plan for non-conforming items, and verifies
the closure. During the Reporting Period, we signed
401 copies of standard samples, classified them
and established ledger management, compiled and
issued 989 copies of SIP instructions, and achieved
standardized inspection of process quality. We
have established a joint inspection mechanism to
conduct a comprehensive inspection and continuous
improvement of system operation, process discipline
implementation, HSE, etc. Based on the basic
principle of customer-oriented, we use scientific
methods to identify TOP process, after-sales and
customer complaints for analysis and improvement.
During the reporting period, the qualified rate of
the Group’s heavy card batches of clients reached
99.58%, a year-on-year increase of 0.6%.
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3.2.4 Quick response to quality issues

In order to ensure quality and rapid response,
the Group has set up an after-sales service team
for heavy trucks and cars, formulated “Customer
Complaint Handling Management Measures” to define
job responsibilities and response time (namely, after-
sales service personnel will arrive at the site within 10
minutes after customer feedback), and ensured the
implementation. Under the guidance of the Group’s
operational guidelines and on the basis of APU inter-
departmental multifunctional team, the Group sets
up an 8D informatization process, during which the
main engineers are responsible for solving quality
problems and dealing with unqualified products, and
the promoters verify the improvement results to form
a closed loop. The team worked together to solve 41
8D problems, solidified and spread horizontally from
the management mechanism and operating standards
to prevent similar problems from recurring. During the
Reporting Period, no products were recalled for safety
and health reasons.

3.2.5 Continuous improvement in quality

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
comprehensively promoted continuous improvement,
aiming at enhancing customer satisfaction. The Group
unifies material property standards, raw material
technical requirements and experimental standards,
as well as implements mold standardization
rectification to realize rapid mold change and improve
the production efficiency. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has achieved automatic transformation of
foam mold frame, semi-automatic ceiling, robot pick-
up, etc., expanding the development process line into
passenger cars. Through the reasonable suggestion
mechanism, a good atmosphere of participation and
active improvement by all employees is created.
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3.2.6 Quality achievements

During the Reporting Period, under the operation
of the excellent management system, the Group
has completed and passed the on-site audit by
customers of Geely, BYD, Magna Hongli and Mustang
automobile, completed the supervision and audit of
quality management system in IATF16949 automobile
industry and the supervision and certification audit
of CQC and E-MARK, with the honors of “Excellent
Supplier of Production Support Service” of Shaanxi
Heavy Duty Automobile Co., Ltd. and “Excellent
Supplier” of Shaanxi Automobile Group Commercial
Vehicle Co., Ltd.

Certification EC-

L==er
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FOCUS: SUPREMACY OF ENVIRONMENTAL

PROTECTION AND GREEN OPERATION

We focus on environmental management and are
committed to cultivating, protecting and improving
the environment. We incorporate the concept of
green operation into the processes of production and
management, and fulfill our corporate responsibilities
through continuous innovation and improvement. We
have set up an environmental improvement team to
save resources, improve the utilization efficiency of
resources and reduce the impact on environment, so
as to promote green integration and build a better
future together.

The Group strictly abides by the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Environmental Protection,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Ambient Noise Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes, and other laws and regulations. During the
Reporting Period, we did not suffer any material fines
or penalties for violating any environmental laws or
regulations.
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4.1 SAVE RESOURCES 4.1 HINBER

4.1.1 Management of water resource 4.1.1 kEFEE
The Group’s production and operating activities AEEBNEEKRETHITEFRAAK
mainly use tap water. To improve the efficiency of KoBTIRAKERERARE » H 1M
the use of water resources, we will be committed BBRODRETHEENRME@ET
to implementing various improvement projects for ZEMKREEB BREPRN > XEE
water saving in administration and technological MEKEWT EBFKERL TE
improvement. During the Reporting Period, the total 14.45% °

water consumption of the Group was as follows, and
the water consumption per output value decreased by
14.45% year on year.

2021 2022

Density Density

(consumption (consumption

per RMB1 per RMB1

million million

Total revenue) Total revenue)

2E BE

(B8 C=2=3]

AREE AR

Type il mE  WEHEE) e WEHES)

Total water BFEKET) 20,619 69.7 10,500 59.6

consumption (ton)

Repair of water pipelines IKE 4E(E

During the Reporting Period, the Group has completed the ¥R & HI R > A E BT R B K EE - W
replacement of a total of 38 pieces of daily consumables 7% H BFEM L 384 EE T E &1
such as faucets and foot valves, the repair of the main R #HEESZREE 2N REFREBEKERE
pipelines for once, and the repair of the branch pipelines & & k& ©

for twice, so as to avoid the risk of water resource waste

VvV VvV A A
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4.1.2 Management of energy 4.1.25EFEE

We will actively strengthen the management of
consumption of electricity, fuel, natural gas and
other resources in all processes to strive to improve
employees’ awareness of energy conservation and
environmental protection and the utilization efficiency
of resources.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of
major energy and resources by the Group is as

RPRBEEBMBFFEROHAEE 0
E-XARARAKREMERNEE > SH1RR
SEIHEREREAMERERAUNR -

BEHAR AEENETEZERNERHE
EBEROT

follows:
2021 2022
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE RE
(588 (BEER
AR AR
Type Ll e  WEHES) e  WEHEE)
Consumption of FEZ(KWH) 9,714,204 32,843.0 4,907,369 27,868.5
electricity (KWH)
Consumption of fuel (L) EHEL) 72,857 246.0 36,524 207.4
Consumption of KARMY) 98,654 334.0 41,504 235.7

natural gas (M?)

Power allocation planning and transformation BHREREBCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group reasonably ¥REHA  AEBESEREE DR B
allocated power facilities, reduced electricity usage and BEEEERREE -BEELER A H RS
saved basic capacity fees through annual transformer HHFZ > B BEFH HNELXTESE -

maintenance and monthly transformer load reporting and
shutdown applications.

VvV VvV A A
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4.1.3 Management of packaging materials

The Group previously used cartons to package
products and tooling bagging protection, leading to
the pain points such as high price, serious loss and
high cost, and the protection on the products was
relatively weak.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
developed recycling packaging devices such as
storage cages and boarding boxes to replace carton
packaging, so as to meet the needs for diversified
packaging sizes and facilitate storage management
and strengthen product protection.

During the Reporting Period, the consumption of

4.1.3ERHHEE

AEEBRRBAEBEENITEERMN
HOFEESS BEREINRNETES
ATFERY MEHERBEFRABY
B 55

REBR - FEERETAME BIR

HERROEBEARBAECE  BE
ZHRIEEBERTERNER  ERAH
BB -BEERPEMER-

REHR  SEBERYHEEBT LU

packaging materials of the Group is as follows: T
2021 2022
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE RE
(588 (BEE
AEM AR
Packaging material (T) BEYT) 142 0.5 75 0.4

During the Reporting Period, we have reduced the
consumption density of packaging materials by
20.00% and saved the cost of packaging materials
of RMB400,000 through the gradual replacement of
cartons with recycling packaging devices. Through
adding protection to tooling tools instead of tooling
bagging, we have saved the cost of packaging
materials of RMB270,000, effectively reduced the cost
waste of carton packaging and tooling bagging and
reduced the environmental pollution.
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4.2 Environmental Management

Through technological reform and innovation, the
Group constantly improves the technological process
and strives to reduce the environmental impact during
the production and operation process. The Group
increases its investment in environmental governance,
purchases environmental protection equipment to
further reduce wastewater and waste gas emissions,
and strengthens and optimizes the management and
disposal of solid waste. During the Reporting Period,
the Group spent over RMB800,000 for environmental
governance and renovation.

4.2.1 Wastewater discharge

The Group attaches great importance to emissions
and waste management. In the production process,
water is mainly used in the cooling process. Water
recycled from sealed pipe network is used in the
cooling of the injection molding machine and the
cooling of the mould water cutting. Therefore, we do
not produce large amounts of industrial wastewater
throughout the production process. The wastewater
discharged by the Group is mainly employees’ daily
life wastewater, including toilet drainage and wash
drainage. Such wastewater will be discharged into the
municipal sewage pipe network after being treated
by the treatment facilities such as grease traps and
septic tanks, and finally enter the sewage treatment
plant. The plants are equipped with rainwater pipe
network, through which the rainwater is collected
and flows into the municipal rainwater pipe network.
During the Reporting Period, the Group met the
standards for self-inspection and mandatory sampling
inspection on wastewater.

IRIF - HEREBHRS
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4.2.2 FFRHBEK

4.2.2 Exhaust gas emissions

The Group adopts organized emissions on dust
and organic waste gases from different stages of
the production process. The dust generated in the
production process is dedusted by a bag filter, and
a gas collecting hood is set to collect the organic
waste gas generated in the production process, and
then collected and treated by a special exhaust gas
treatment facility by “UV photolysis + activated carbon
adsorption”. After the treatment, dust and organic
waste gas are discharged through a dedicated
exhaust pipe. During the Reporting Period, the Group
met the standards for self-inspection and mandatory
sampling inspection on exhaust gas.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s emissions of
dust and organic waste gas are as follows:

FAEEHEEBRPIARMAMELSE
B EMBKE RHEIW T A HA
WM-HEEBRTELENMEBBHMR
PRERETHRERE REEREHSE
EBRETPEENARERETHRE K
EREBEABERREERBHERAIUV
SRR AEMRRI DR ETRE M
ENEREBERCEERBEBERASR
BHBR -BEHRAN *EBERETR
AMR BRI R EER -

WEMR AEESERANENERH
BUWE

Main emissions FEHBRY 2021 2022
Dust (kg) 1 EE(kQ) 66.0 55.0
Nitrogen oxide (kg) KEALEY (k) 53.0 45.0
Toluene (kg) B 2K (kg) 64.0 60.0
Xylene (kg) Z B XK (kg) 78.0 69.0
Non-methane hydrocarbon (kg) JE BRI 4B )% (kQ) 224.0 205.0
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During the Reporting Period, the greenhouse gas BREHR AEEHRNEEREBEHE
emissions of the Group are as follows: wmr
2021 2022
Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(BE8 (B8
AR AR
Type of greenhouse gas BAEREELER] e  WRHES) wme  WEHESR)
CO: (M) CO: (T) 57 0.19 29 0.16
The Group insists on continuously improving AEBRFIEBRERALEEIZ BT
production processes and optimizing measures PRt O EIRE N BB IRE
for pollution prevention. The Group installed a BHERM - -RBERA - -HERAMNBIE
total of 10 environmental protection hosts and 10 T HZEIRFREHI0E > BERE10ME -
exhaust cylinders on the injection molding, molding, WEHEN EE -FRE HEEELEIR
foaming, gumming, powder and boiler, which will be RILfE-

monitored and maintained regularly to jointly promote
environmental protection.
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4.2.3 Treatment of solid waste

The solid waste generated in the production process
of the Group mainly includes domestic garbage,
production solid waste and hazardous solid waste.

Domestic garbage is classified and collected in bags
by garbage bins and then recycled and disposed of
by the qualified sanitation department at the garbage
station.

Production solid waste is mainly the scrap produced
in the production process, such as fiberglass board,
black fabric and leather. After being collected sorted
and packaged, the scrap is temporarily stored in
the temporary storage area for general waste, and
delivered to qualified recycling units through recycling
& comprehensive utilization or regular sales. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s average scrap
produced monthly decreased by 0.83 tonnes year-on
year, due to the effective cost control measures.

Hazardous solid waste includes oil-water mixed waste
and oily solid waste, and hazardous solid waste
includes oil-water mixed waste and oily solid waste,
and mainly represent hazardous waste, such as waste
oil, waste activated carbon, used lamp and waste
titanium dioxide photocatalyst plates, etc. Waste oils
and fats are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.
Activated carbon, UV photolysis lamps and titanium
dioxide photocatalyst plates are regularly replaced.
To reduce waste, the hazardous wastes generated
during the production process are collected in special
containers with classification marks and temporarily
stored in the temporary storage for hazardous waste,
and are regularly entrusted to qualified disposal
suppliers by the government for safe disposal.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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During the Reporting Period, data of hazardous and

RERRN AEBEENEESERYM

nonhazardous waste generated by the Group is as EEBEEYHRBUWT .
follows:
2021 2022

Density Density
(consumption (consumption
per RMB1 per RMB1
million million
Total revenue) Total revenue)
BE BE
(BB8 (BEE
ARKE AR
Type of solid waste [El A8 B W EE R Bme  WERHES) wE WEHEEES)
Household waste (T) ESERIR(T) 5.4 0.0183 2.3 0.0131
Production solid waste (T) 4 EREEE(T) 875 2.9583 434 2.4646
Hazardous solid waste (T) 15k EEE(T) 3 0.0101 1.5 0.0085
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4.2.4 Noise management

4.3

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR

The main noise sources of the Group are air
compressors, fans, injection molding machines,
pulverizers, circulation pumps, cooling towers and
other facilities. The Group selects low-noise device,
rationally plans the layout of the plant area, maintains
the various types of noise equipment indoors or at the
equipment rooms, separates material items with large
noise decibels, or adopts vibration reduction, and at
the same time, puts in place protective facilities to
ensure the safety of employees at work. In addition,
the Group sets greenbelts to reduce noise, thus
reducing the impact on the surrounding environment.

Climate Change

The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
repeated its warnings and called for actions from all
walks of life to slow down the rate of global warming.
At the “Climate Action Summit” organized by the
United Nations in 2019, governments and businesses
across the world undertook to take active actions to
materialize the development goal of “Zero Emission”
by 2050, and further accelerate the transition to the
low carbon economy. In the face of the increasingly
serious climate change, the Group actively took
measures in building its climate resilience.

424 EEEE

4.3
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4.3.1 Transition Risk and Physical Risks

As the extreme weather is getting worse nowadays,
mitigating climate change has become a global
consensus. In response to climate change,
enterprises will continue to develop emerging
technologies, such as switching to low-carbon
energies, supporting the shifting to low-carbon
economies, which would cause transitional risks
and increase in costs. If changes are made by
governments under the “Paris Climate Agreement”,
and reduction is made to the extraction of fossil fuel,
the fuel price would be on the rise, which may lead
to increase in the production cost of the Company.
In addition, we may face more frequent and severe
extreme weather conditions, such as floods, drought
and rainstorm. Extreme weather conditions may lead
to disruptions to supply chains and operations.

To mitigate and adapt to climate change, the Group
strove to explore the use of alternative energies or
renewable energies in operations, and endeavored
to reduce emission by taking effective measures and
technical approaches, such as applying recyclable
packaging appliance and optimizing factory facilities.
The Group is committed to improving the rates of
resource utilization in daily operations and reducing
operating costs by efficient management of energies,
water resources, packing materials and wastes.
Meanwhile, we actively explore in developing long-
term goals for emission reduction.

To adapt to climate change, the Group will
monitor and review the latest development of the
technologies, regulations and policies in relation to
climate change, and enhance the awareness of our
employees on heat stress related diseases.

IRIF - HEREBHRS
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R&D capacity
Bt 22 At

“HERERERS

4.4 Environmental Achievement

During the Reporting Period, the Group passed the
ISO50001 energy management system certification
and obtained the certificate of energy management
system certification.

i:ac
nt%n#ﬁ&aa#

v -

INNOVATION: TECHNOLOGICAL PROGRESS

AND CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group emphasized
the management thinking of “Strengthening innovation
and R&D”. It adopted the R&D management
systems recognized by benchmarking enterprises,
and enhanced the basic professional ability of
R&D personnel, aroused their working enthusiasm
and stimulated their competitive spirit, by offering
professional and comprehensive trainings, well-
designed incentive programs and “horse racing
mechanism” for talent selection, which fully improved
our R&D capability and innovation level. During the
Reporting Period, we cooperated with benchmarking
enterprises to provide 19 trainings in our technical
center, with 42 training hours in aggregate.

Environmental Social and Governance Report
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5.

312 new products (parts) developed
312 ER (BH) BE

13 new projects developed
13EMIBERZ

4 technological innovations
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5.1 Enhancing Customer Experience through

Technological Innovation

In accordance with the planning of “focusing on
the design and development of heavy trucks and
strengthening the design and development of sedans”
under the Group’s “2+2 strategy”, the technical center
introduced internationally advanced management
system and management standards, and is currently
conducting in-depth cooperation with the leading
design companies in the industry. By adhering to
the management concept of “quality and cost are
rooted in design”, and the mission of “providing
customers with satisfactory interior system solutions”,
we are always committed to creating long-term value
for customers. During the Reporting Period, we
developed seven types of vehicle interior products,
involving the fields of interior and exterior decoration
and rearview mirrors of heavy trucks and dashboards
for passenger vehicles, etc. During the Reporting
Period, the Group spent over RMB10 million in
technologies and R&D.

Reform and Innovation of Blow Molding Centralized
Feeding System and Side Material Reuse System

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted vacuum
suction devices to transform the plastic film blowing
system, and adopted hanging chain and shredding device
to transform the machine side material recycling system.
Centralized management of raw material was applied to
automatic feeding, and automatic transfer and crushing
of edge material was applied for reuse in feed bins in a
timely manner. Through the transformation and innovation
of the system, the on-site 5S was significantly improved,
the energy consumption was greatly reduced, and the
labor intensity was significantly reduced, while the semi-
automatic production mode of blow molding is realized.
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Innovation of Automatic Line of Ceiling Heat EfEHHEE 2 8BRS RH

Conduction Oil Oven

During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted HREHAN  ZAEBEFXABIRECIBEMGES
Modular Type | wiring to complete the transformation ISR IBEMHEH HEEE B HENEE
and innovation of the ceiling heat conduction oil oven o HBHEETHAKANERE NIRRT L2
automatic line. The light structure was employed in fRB&E ; BB A T &8 ERIEE  BRET A
the operation of the equipment, thus strengthening IR AMEBEFRE RS T EENEX ; £
the safety; manual repeated feeding and fetching were &7 ERBEEBE K -

eliminated, thus reducing labor costs and labor intensity,

and improving production efficiency; the stability of

product quality was enhanced.

Development of Injection Molding Assembly Line of  F¥8/)\{4 i 7k 43 A &
Small Parts

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the *REHAAN > NEB T HFB /N THH
optimization of the production mode of the factory of 4 EEANEL > BT RAKE -BIERET —
injection molding of small parts, developed the assembly AEBEZ a# - ZAMERER BRI
line, realizing the practice of multiple machines being HMETEERESS BFBETAIRAC
run by only one person, the centralized inspection and
packaging of the products of multiple machines, which
improved the 5S of the production site and reduced the
labor input.

Development of Automatic Fetching System for FBARHEBZIABTEHGFRAFRE
Robots of Injection Molding Large Parts

BERAR ZREBETR T E
BRI A B SIS
MEEMEME RGN

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed
the development of six-axis robot automatic
fetching of injection molding of large parts and
five-axis robotic arm automatic fetching, realizing HE - BRT2EEEEE
fully automatic injection molding production. It has ERBTEERE KR
raised production efficiency, greatly reduced labor BT ANTEHRE -~ 058
intensity and strengthened safety. TEZRRE

VvV VvV A A
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Standardized Transformation of Injection Moulds

and Equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group solved the
problems of disarranged pipes and easy leakage of
interfaces by standardizing and reforming the injection
moulds and the water and electricity interfaces of
equipment, reducing the time spent on upper and lower
moulds and improving the production efficiency.

Optimization of Foaming Carpet Mould Frame Area
Pipeline

During the Reporting Period, the Group completed the
optimization and transformation of the foaming carpet
mould frame area pipeline. It solved the problem of high
operation failure rate of foaming mould frame equipment,
increased production efficiency and improved the 5S on
the production site.

FBRARRFHRELCRE

BEHAR FEEERH TBRANRKRE
BKBRZEORELNRE BRERZAMN
BROZEBESREENRE BT ETE
BERR -ReETEEMX-

BAMBAERNEHERECRE

BEHA AEBTR T HEEMBERE
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BETHEXSsHNEE B TEEREX
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5.2

Continuous Improvement and Enhancement

The Group implements pragmatic recommendations,
and leads and encourages all employees to identify
opportunities for improvement in work. It forms a
team to review pragmatic recommendations and
follow up their implementation, so as to reduce
work cost, increase work efficiency, ensure product
quality and improve operation conditions. During
the Reporting Period, the Group implemented 401
pragmatic recommendations, generating an actual
income of RM414,800.

52 HERSEREH
AEEHTERNSEBLES I EMH
BE2RBE T TEPNER
THoHEERTBESELCEZER LR
ECBEREEERZH EmMBERT
EFREA RBRAIERE - REERES
M ERER N -BREHRN > AEEH
EMSECESRIOIE EESTR KT
41.488 5 °

Summary of excellent pragmatic recommendations in 2022

02FBFCELEE
Type of Commencement Completion Actual Monthly
No. Project Name Improvement Date Date Income (RMB)
BERAWE
B3 R HERY el TR ()
1 Proposal for cost improvement of Reduction in cost 2022-02-17 2022-03-28 3,395.28
a product Simplification of process
ERERTRRAE RAERA
oo
2 Proposal on fiberglass saving Reduction in cost 2022-08-29 2022-09-16 2,102.00
RERHIRE LA
3 Improve of foam mold frame limit Reduction in cost 2022-9-30 2022-11-13 1,600.00
BARRRUNE AT AR
4 Optimization of the structure a floor Reduction in cost 2022-3-22 2022-3-31 1,388.89
mat mold
iR EELBED LA
B Optimization of fabric for a product Reduction in cost 2022-04-20 2022-05-25 1,095.25
EERANEL 2
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5.3 Carrying out Industry-universities-research 5.3 HEEZ2WSEIER
Cooperation Projects

The Group vigorously carries out industry-university KEEBRKNHEEZWSEEE 3IA
research cooperation projects, introduces high-quality BERAMENEEE R RIFMEIRED
resources from universities and society, and maintains B9 ot 3 o

the advanced research and development capacity.

Appointment of Dr. Chu Jianjie as the Chief Expert BREVEGRELIAEREREER

of Group

Dr. Chu Jianjie, an associate professor of the School of #JEGBE Lt ABIL TEABWEET T %
Mechanical Engineering of Northwestern Polytechnical =Rt ZMBEIHE  TENRETXERRS
University, is mainly engaged in the research of fields BRI - EEHERSEEM T ERF R AEK I
including industrial product design and development, FFEBEMEBHAFIT ¥ EBH20185F
industrial design of equipment manufacturing, and MUAREFEAILE T X ABE T ERTE AKT
ergonomic evaluation technology. Mr. Chu has been MIEHEHEHRZ=I EE BT XK
the deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Industrial 2 E TEXRXIALETP LRI FF - B
Design and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and B BEBERABHRRE_EH -PASHE
Information Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical R MiES =5 LEHIFo

University since 2018 and the deputy director of the

Shaanxi Industrial Design and Development Center of

Northwestern Polytechnical University. He has won

various awards such as the second prize of the National

Teaching Achievement Award and the third prize of the

Shaanxi Science and Technology Progress Award.

Dr. Chu Jianjie has been the chief expert of the Group I EHEE LR2019FEREXSEBEHE
since 2019, focusing on the research of fields including B R ' EHFERHFTL Rt  ERR
digital design, product design, simulation of ergonomic st~ A T MRt EEFE R L EE
design, and development of new products. 13 B9 B 3T o

VvV VvV A A
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Industry-university- research cooperation with the
Key Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics
of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University

Northwestern Polytechnical University is the only
multidisciplinary and research-oriented university in China
that is simultaneously developing education and research
programs in the fields of aeronautics, astronautics, and
marine technology engineering. It is now affiliated to the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology. It is one
of the universities of the “211 Project”, “985 Project” and
“First-class Universities” (Class A) in China. As one of the
earliest universities in China to develop talents for modern
industrial design, conduct scientific research and provide
design services, Northwestern Polytechnical University is
a vice-chairman of China Industrial Design Association,
a vice president of Innovation Design Alliance of China
and the Industrial Design Institution of China Mechanical
Engineering Society, and a deputy chairman of the
Teaching Steering Subcommittee of Industrial Design of
the Ministry of Education, and has high status and good
reputation in the domestic industrial design community.

Northwestern Polytechnical University has been devoted
to the research of fields including digital design, product
design, simulation of ergonomic design and development
of new products. It has undertaken dozens of major
scientific and technological research projects such as
the National 863 Program, the National Science and
Technology Support Plan, the National Natural Science
Foundation, the National Manned Space Project, and the
Basic Research on National Defense.

The Group carried out industry-university-research
cooperation with the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design
and Ergonomics of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of Northwestern Polytechnical University,
and provided design services and technical support for
developing new products by leveraging the resources of
the Key Laboratory of Industrial Design and Ergonomics
of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology,
Shaanxi Industrial Design Engineering Laboratory, Shaanxi
Industrial Design and Development Center and other
provincial platforms, focused on the design of automotive
interior parts in the field of industrial design, and
conducted in-depth research on key common technologies
continuously, so as to maintain the advanced nature of
research and development of key design technologies.

BRILTEABRTIERFRARINIGE
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Cooperation with Xi’an Jiaotong University

to Conduct the “Smart Factory Planning and
Development” Project

Xi’an Jiaotong University is a comprehensive research-
oriented national key university directly under the Ministry of
Education in China as part of the national “Double First-class
Universities”, the “211 Project” and the “985 Project”. It is
also one of the key universities in China during the “Seventh
Five-Year Plan Period” and the “Eighth Five-Year Plan Period”
and is included in the “Everest Plan”, the “Strengthening
Foundation Plan”, the “2011 Plan”, the “111 Plan”, the
“Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Engineers”,
the “Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Doctors”
and the “Education and Cultivation Plan for Excellent Law
Talents”. Besides, it is also the chairman of China Artificial
Intelligence Alliance.

Mr. Sun Xinyu is a professor and doctoral supervisor of
the Industrial Engineering and Operation Management
Department of the Management College of Xi'an Jiaotong
University, senior programmer, member of the “key laboratory
of process control and efficiency engineering” of the Ministry
of Education, member of the young top talent support plan
of Xi’an Jiaotong University, and director of the Xi’an Jiaotong
University —BAYES Data Intelligence Joint Lab. His research
areas include e-commerce operation management and
marketing optimization based on big data, supply chain and
logistics management, measurement and statistical analysis
and operation model optimization. He has close cooperation
relationship with the National Public Credit Information
Center, China UnionPay, China Telecom and other companies
and stable sources of big data, and has established its own
data assets.

The Group collaborated with the Xi’an Jiaotong University
and the Sun Xinyu’s research group to develop the project of
“Planning and Construction of Smart Factory”, which focused
on the overall planning of the factory’s intelligent production,
the design of a standardized production model, and the
analysis and realization of automatic production requirements
and the digital operation and simulation optimization of
production workshops and the establishment of digital
models, aiming at building the “Smart Factory, Digital Twin”.

VvV VvV A A
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Industry-university-research cooperation with Xi’an

University of Posts & Telecommunications

The purpose of this cooperation is to better combine
the teaching and scientific research of schools with
the practical production of enterprises, to promote the
fulfillment of the talent cultivation goal of higher education
and the technological progress of the production
of enterprises, to fully leverage the advantages of
higher education schools and enterprises in talent
resource, scientific research and production practice,
to promote the industrialization of the technological
results of schools, to improve the teaching and scientific
research levels of schools, to enhance the ability of
schools to serve the society and to sharpen the core
competitiveness of enterprises.

The Group has conducted a comprehensive cooperation
with Xi’an University of Posts & Telecommunications
in talent cultivation, scientific research, education and
teaching, and industry university-research cooperation
between school and enterprise, jointly built an off-
campus practice education base for college students,
a talent cultivation base for enterprises and a base
for conversion of scientific research achievements,
whereby forming a landscape of mutual promotion and
development of professions and industries, and strived
to achieve “school-enterprise cooperation and industry-
school win-win”.
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5.4 Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group has established a three-in-one intellectual
property system of patents, trademarks and
copyrights, and has implemented innovation-oriented
and high-quality development.

The Group has a total of 23 patents, including 2
invention patents, 1 design patent and 20 utility
model patents, and has 1 trademark. Invention
patents and design patents are applied to the major
products of the Group and are the core process
technology. The utility model patents are mainly used
for the improvement of production equipment and
process methods to realize the purposes of achieving
energy saving and emission reduction, improving
production efficiency, mitigating labor intensity,
eliminating hidden safety hazards and reducing labor
costs. During the Reporting Period, applied for 1
patents pending approval.

The Group mainly protects its intellectual property
rights through online tracking and rights protection
litigation. Besides, when our sales and R&D staff
discover competitive products or marketing materials
that may infringe the intellectual property rights of
the Group, they will immediately notify the legal
department, which will then follow up and conduct the
investigation.

The Group has established an innovation incentive
mechanism to encourage technical R&D personnel
to boldly innovate, design and develop special
equipment with independent intellectual property
rights by utilizing the advanced process technologies
and equipment in the industry, and quickly transform it
into productive forces and put it into production, thus
promoting the automotive and intelligent production
process.

IRIF - HEREBHRS
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6. WIN-WIN: MAKING PROGRESS AND

BUILDING A BRIGHT FUTURE TOGETHER

6.1 Win-win: Satisfactory Customer Services

6.1.1 Management system for customer services
During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to strictly implement the site customer service
management systems, standards and regulations
such as the “Guidance on the Management of
Site Customer Emergency” and the “Regulation
on the Processing and Management of Customer
Information”, and strived to provide customers with
quality products and services to meet their diversified
needs.

For after-sales services, we arranged dedicated in-
factory commercial vehicles and passenger vehicles
after-sales service personnel at the customer’s
office, and conducted after-sales interview with
customers through email, WeChat, telephone, face-
to-face interview and other means, with the customer
satisfaction continuously improved. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was honored the title
of “Excellent Supplier with Production Supporting
Services for the Year” from our customer.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6.1.2 Customer complaints management procedures

confirmation of diagnosis

Pre-project team evaluation

RIAAE B AT BRES R

We attach great importance to customer demands
and have established procedures under the
Regulation on the Processing and Management
of Customer Information, which divides customer
complaints into two categories, verbal complaints and
written complaints. After receiving complaints from
customers, we will complete the After-Sales Quality
Tracking Record and set up WeChat communication
group with relevant departments to establish an
analysis team as soon as possible. To ensure that
customer complaints are handled in a timely manner,
we have established complete procedures for
processing customer complaint information, as shown
below:

Feedback of problem points

i =B Bf % B

|
v v
Pre-project problem

Al HA 18 B [ & EEEEME
2 , 2

Pre-project team

AIHAIE B AAFE SR 22 ERNRITIZMERDZ
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of repair solutions

| |
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(4

Mass production projects problem

Confirmation of diagnosis by after
sale team leader or engineer

Evaluation of rework solutions by
after sale team leader or engineer
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Closure of problems
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During the Reporting Period, we included indicators
such as the timeliness of completion of customer
complaint and customer satisfaction in the
Performance Assessment Form, which stipulated that
the feedback and tracking of customer complaints
must be evidenced by corresponding “Analysis and
Rectification Report of Problem”, and reviewed
the number of customer complaints and timeliness
of completion on a monthly basis. Meanwhile,
we carried out the customer satisfaction survey
on an annual basis according to the “Customer
Satisfaction Evaluation Procedure”, involving 5 project
modules such as quality, delivery, service, price, and
suggestions for improvement. After the completion
of the survey, we investigated and summarized the
items with low individual scores and complaints in
customers’ messages, and discussed improvement
measures, and finally formed the “Analysis Report of
Customer Satisfaction”.

In addition to the management of individual complaint
cases, we also summarized and analyzed customer
complaints every month to identify the source of the
problem, optimized the solution from the source, and
formed the “Monthly Customer Complaint Analysis
Report”, so as to analyze the causes and determine
the responsible person, as well as formulate
corrective measures and track verification results. If
quality problems with potential risk were identified, we
would send a quality alert and follow up to solve the
problem as soon as possible. During the Reporting
Period, the amount of customer complaint issues of
the Group was 160, decreasing by 9.1% year on year.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6.1.3 Protection of customer privacy

It is our responsibility and obligation to protect
customer privacy and security of business
information. We strictly comply with the laws
and regulations in relation to the “Confidentiality
Agreement” entered into with customers, and strictly
protect the privacy information of customers.

We are also committed to protecting the privacy and
confidentiality of the personal data of our employees,
customers, suppliers, business partners and other
identifiable parties. For the use of information,
we have restricted the level and authorization of
information available to employees, and require
employees to prudently handle customer data in
accordance with the authorization. Employees
may have access to relevant customer data only
when there is a supportable reason, and the use of
customer data is limited to the purposes as specified
in our contract.

6.2 Win-win: Partnership with Suppliers
6.2.1 Establishing win-win partnership with suppliers

During the Reporting Period, the Group developed
over 20 new high-quality suppliers under the principal
of establishing win-win partnership with supplier. We
committed to introduce domestic renowned high-
quality suppliers with industrial leading position.
In order to guarantee that the product quality
of the Group can be improved continuously, we
organized several technical exchanges and visiting
study activities with domestic renowned material
enterprises.

IRIF - HEREBHRS
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had 166
material suppliers, among which 89% of suppliers
were located in the eight provinces as follows:

RERAN  AEBHEAMEHER166
KoHAPBIRMEEFDMAEUTEKRE
> AESMUT :

Distribution of suppliers (Top 8 provinces)

HEEsHER (Fisd)

Xinjiang
#es
Gansu
HEE
Qinghai

58

Tibet

75 7L

Heilongjiang
REEL

Jilin
M

Liaoning
HE

Inner
Mongolia

Sichuan 16
r\‘onggq i Jigngxi
\ Hunan AN
Guighou ~ MH
Em\ +Taiwan
Yunnan S o aB
Em Guangxi
7
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We maintain close contact with suppliers. During the
Reporting Period, in order to improve the quality of
supplier, we continuously adopted below measures:
unifying standards; conducting performance test
and spot check on the main materials; eliminating
the suppliers appeared in the black list for several
consecutive years based on the performance
documents of suppliers; for suppliers who had quality
problems repeatedly, conducting regular interviews
and training and enhancing the quality awareness
of suppliers. In addition, we have conducted in-
depth exchanges and communication with suppliers
on new technologies and processes for passenger
vehicles and heavy trucks’ interiors, so as to provide
customers with satisfactory products.

We examine in advance and review new suppliers
through the “Questionnaire of Suppliers’
Qualification”, the “Guidance on Evaluation and
Selection of Potential Suppliers” and the “Guidance
on the Review of Suppliers of Productive Materials”
every year. After the suppliers passing the review, we
conduct comprehensive performance evaluation on
the supply position of suppliers through procedural
documents such as the “Procedures for Managing
and Controlling Supplies”, the “Guidance on Regular
Evaluation of Suppliers of Productive Materials”,
and check the suppliers on the red list and black
list based on the evaluation results of suppliers’
performance. We will provide specific assistance and
help to suppliers on the black list for improvement
and eliminate those who still cannot meet the supply
requirements after such guidance in accordance with
the “Work Instruction on Improvement of Suppliers’
Capability”.

IRIF - HEREBHRS
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6.2.2Continuing to promote suppliers’ social 6.2.2}3EHEHETH TEMT

78

responsibilities

While continuously strengthening its own management
of sustainable development, the Group takes the
lead in promoting the ecological management system
for the sustainable development of the entire supply
chain. Suppliers are evaluated from five aspects
according to the Questionnaire of Suppliers’ Social
Responsibilities, namely labor rights, health and
safety, environmental protection, business ethics,
and requirements of management system. For high
quality suppliers with higher ranking of performance,
we will give support through increasing the share
and developing new projects in the same conditions
in accordance with the “Management Rules for
Motivation of Suppliers” and the “Management rules
for Supplier Quota and Switching”; for suppliers
with lower ranking of performance, especially those
who violate relevant requirements, rectification is
required within a time limit, failure to do so, we will
restrict business cooperation opportunities until the
cooperation is terminated.

Meanwhile, we include safety and environment
management and social responsibility related clauses
in the “Purchase Contract” signed with suppliers,
which clearly requires that the products provided
by suppliers must comply with the national laws,
regulations and rules on safety and environment, as
well as meet the operation concept of protection
of employee’s rights and environmental protection.
The Group keeps close contact with suppliers, holds
several exchange meetings with suppliers, conducts
professional technical communication on raw
materials and packing materials, to jointly pursue how
to apply the new environment-friendly materials with
greener and better sustainable development functions
in our products.

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR
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6.3 Win-win: Share Development Results with

Employees

6.3.1 Employment overview

The Group pays great attention to the labor rights and
interests of our employees, and strictly complies with
the provisions of the “Labor Contract Law” of China
and other labor laws and regulations. It formulates
other employment terms on working hours, and
holidays, so as to effectively protect the legitimate
and reasonable rights and interests of our employees.
We never permit the use of any forced labor.

We have a fair and transparent staff recruitment and
employment process, forbid to recruit and use child
labor, conduct background investigation for the newly
recruited employees, put an end to illegal employment
of child labor and the phenomenon of forced labor.
We have a highly transparent recruitment process,
and is committed to providing fair employment
opportunities and creating a respectful work
environment for our employees. The Group advocates
anti-discrimination and formulates relevant policies to
treat others with fairness and dignity. Our recruitment
of employees will be based on a range of diversity,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
In the case of dismissal, the Labor Contract of
employees who do not meet the requirements of the
Labor Law will be terminated according to the Labor
Law and the Company’s rules and regulations.

IRIF - HEREBHRS

HE HEETHZZER

0

6.3.1 EVFHER

FEEBSBIEIFMEANS L&
mo BB EBTRENCEEBERE)R
EREME TERER > RRHREHt
ERAGRGNIRRI -RAGE UE
REEIMNEEEEED KMTER
BHERGIZINBEREE-

RMPATATERNE I REMNEXE
MR RBIEBBENERAEI -HARA
EETHERASTS HEETIT -RHEFT
FEFERRERNELE-RARESE
HENEBRERF RORREHATHM
e RETRAE—MEAERTEEMR
SENTFRBE-AEBANEBERIK
RoWHERBEARR ERAF - E&
MHFHMA - KFAEREEU—ZIZ
TlEBEREE GEERERER
FR -XERBIEEFR - BEHE -FEXEEL
BoRE-NBARRGER - THRES
B HARNEEHEIRERANE L
REFHEZNADREFNERERS P

&R

ANNUAL REPORT %R 2022

79



80

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERES

As of 31 December 2022, there were 389 employees

in the Group.

Number of employees by gender

BRUENBDETAK

70%

Female %«

@ Vale &

Number of employees by ranking of positions
RERIIETAK
[
5% 4%
4%

87%

@ Senior 5%
@ Junior #) 4%

Middle H 4k

General —f%

B E2022F12A31H "EBECHA
B E389% o

Number of employees by age

BRERANDETIAHK

8%

49%

43%

@ 20-34 years old 35-49 years old

205%-345% 355%-495%
@ More than 50 years old
5068 M £

Number of employees by region

BRHMEHSEIAH

25%

75%

@ n Shaanxi Province
=

QOutside Shaanxi Province
BR7E & Sh
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Employee turnover ANB sk
During the Reporting Period, Employee turnover by WS ZMER - F8R AR K& E
gender, age group and region as follows: PHEERKLEE > ITHE :
Number of employees by gender Number of employees by age
BHUERBZTETIAH HEREZTEIAY
4%
26%
40%
56%
74%
@ \Valke £ Female & @ 20-34 years old 35-49 years old
205%-345% 355%-495%
More than 50 years old
50 A &£
Number of employees by ranking of positions Number of employees by region
HHREADTEIAH BHEAHZTEIAK
0.3%_ 50

15%

20%
78% 85%
@ Senior &% Middle 51 4R @ In Shaanxi Province
Junior #] 4k General —fi% PREEE P
Outside Shaanxi Province
B 78 & S
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The remuneration policy of our Group is based
on employees’ performance, qualifications,
competence and rewards to them with reference to
comparable market level. Remuneration package
typically comprises salaries and other benefits,
discretionary bonuses and retirement benefits
scheme contributions. We have established a
scientific and reasonable salary system with market
competitiveness in accordance with the TES system,
and determine the staff salary scales and levels
in accordance with the ranking of positions and
market level based on the present condition of
the Company. Under the “Employee Performance
Management Procedures”, the Group has adopted
a diversified performance evaluation mechanism
covering the personal KPIl assessment results of
employees, the scores given by higher competent
department heads and the completion percentage of
weekly work plan; it regularly adjusts salary scales
and levels and increases employee compensation
and benefits in accordance with the “Management
Measure for Salary Level”, etc.; under the principle of
“openness, fairness, impartiality, equality, competition
and selection”, the Group regularly conducts the
internal competition and employment and the
professional technological sequence assessment
to select those with outstanding performance and
working hard for taking important posts. With the
management concept of “co-creation and win-
win”, the Group continued to establish effective staff
motivation mechanisms including the cost reduction
motivation plan for all staff, the sales motivation
plan for all staff, the budget motivation plan, etc.,
and achieved the sharing of the development
results of the Group with staff. During the Reporting
Period, the Group carried out 5 internal competitive
selections with 11 employees promoted, and three
professional technological sequence assessments
with two associate senior engineer and 11 first-
class engineers assessed, which helped the Group
promote the establishment of the talent team and the
organizational development and construction of the
Group while fully enhancing the sense of achievement
and happiness of its employees.
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We have been committed to providing diversified and
superior benefits to employees and creating a better
working environment. In addition to statutory benefits,
we have in place a benefit system with diversity.

IRIF - HEREBHRS

B —EBEURBIRBEHZEEEN
EIRMN AIBEEFNIFERE R
MEREEIZEREAERANERZ
EEETZTENEFNER-

Diverse benefit system

ZRIERAER

95
[

o

Statutory benefits
= E B AE T

Activity welfare

mERAER

Other welfare
HE &7

Statutory benefits % T 48 1@

v/ Social insurance and housing fund
hlE—%

v/ Statutory holiday
EEEIRHE

v/ High temperature leave
=

Activity welfare ;& 8 $8 18 7

v Women'’s Day
LCReq=0]

v/ Dragon Boat Festival, Mid-Autumn
Festival, Spring Festival. etc
IHFEI - PRED s BEE

Other welfare EE &7

v Free employee quarters (air
conditioner, heating, wifi)
REEIES (TH BRI wifi)

V' Meal allowance
B RE

v Employee anniversary
ETBEFELR

6.3.2 Staff training and development

The Group provides a variety of trainings for all
employees to improve their comprehensive skills and
meet their needs of positions. Induction trainings
on regulations at group and department level, job
duties, working skills, safety production and career
development program, etc. familiarize our employees
with the Group as soon as practicable and make
them fit in with their respective positions. For on
the-job employees, the Group provides targeted
training tailored to their career development and
encourages employees to participate in job-related
training organized by external organizations, whereby
enriching our employees’ professional knowledge and
comprehensive abilities. In addition, the Group invites
excellent industrial professional personnel to provide
high-quality training contents for employee, enabling
the employees to acquire advanced professional
knowledge and management philosophy.

6.3.2 5 T1Z38 %=
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During the Reporting Period, we established our
internal trainer team and developed more than 10
courses internally, with an aim to extract outstanding
practices and impart them to all of our employees.
We organized 170 group-level online and offline
trainings and 102 department-level trainings, with 400
employees participated and totally 42,976 training

REHAR AEEBREANIMMBKRMA A
B0 RE EEENESE
BIEEE2EET HBERRG LF
THEN170B > BAKEI 10218 &
BlE T400 A B4R B RFE 42,976/
B o

hours.
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
MBI o RIEEGIERTFH2INEE
Male Female
Gender 14 A1) % %
Number of trainees 23 A 269 120
Headcount YN 280 120
Proportion of trainees 25lMh L 96% 100%
Average training duration (in hours) EH2IEFE (M) 95 98
The proportion of trainees by gender and the average duration of training
ZE R DZIREMGLERTHEZINE
Senior Middle Junior General
management management management staff
Position level 4 4R SHREER FHREER VHREERE —mRET
Number of trainees 2l ANH 11 17 17 345
Headcount PN 19 17 17 347
Proportion of trainees  23ll{4LE 58% 100% 100% 99%
Average training TH2IIEE (NE)
duration (in hours) 130 110 40 20
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PLM System Training Process Training Training for Internal

PLM% # 1% 3 TRz El Lecturer
P &6 =5 B 15 5l

High-tech Enterprise Composite Material Product Knowledge
Knowledge Training Knowledge Training Training
= (& 48 BA A 5% 15 Bl 8 & MK 5 B 7 om A 8 15 3

A bA VIV

6.3.3 Health and safety of employees

The Group has always attached great importance
to the health and safety of the employees, and
is committed to providing employees with a safe
working environment to avoid occupational hazards.
The Group strictly abides by the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases”, the “Safe Production Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Fire Law of
the People’s Republic of China”, and other laws and
regulations.

6335 T HFEMNZZ
rER--HAEEEREINREERR
2RO AEIRHEZENIFERE
BESIBEMSE - AEERKE
FCREARBEMEBERBAE)
(FEAREMNBZZEEE) ~ (F
EAREMBECHBE) EEXEERNKR
Eo
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The Group requires the newly recruited employees to
carry the entry medical examination report and pays
five social insurances and one housing fund (F B
—3%)and commercial insurance for the employees
according to the statutory requirements. In order
to enrich the spare-time life of employees, we
establish the staff room equipped with the facilities
including table tennis, badminton, chess, treadmill
and karaoke, enhancing the staff physical exercise.
We attach importance to employee sports and set
up table tennis, basketball and badminton sports
venues and facilities for employees to exercise. We
have placed safety infrastructures and implemented
relevant safety policies in order to ensure equipment
safety and prevent or minimize exposure to hazardous
materials. During the Reporting Period, we have
revised more than 10 safety management documents,
including the Safe Production Responsibility
System (ZZ24E£EEMTH)), the Hidden Hazards
Inspection and Rectification System (((EEHF& 8
JAIEHIE)), the Regulations on the Management of
Safety Accidents{(Z2EWEEIRE)), the Safety
Education System (ZZ2#HBEHIE)), etc., providing
guidance to employees in maintaining a safe working
environment, and we have assigned responsibility for
maintaining safe work spaces to each department. We
have established the Safety Management Committee
consisting of representatives from management and
employees. The Safety Management Committee
ensures that all responsible departments conduct
safety training, report accidents and implement
accident prevention procedures. The Group also has
fire prevention facilities and conducts fire drills on a
regular basis. Production employees receive regular
training on equipment operation and occupational
safety equipment. We have also adopted incident
handling policies, in order to minimize losses and
improve our response time in incident handling.
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Third-level Enterprise of Safety Standardization ZRBRELC=HREE

During the Reporting Period, the Group [Emr—==m====m HEMRAN  AEFBIEMBEBEZ 2
successfully passed the review of H SERELCEBIB TERIZE
production safety standardization and won EREELC=ZHRELE I EEBR-
the honorary title of “Third-level Enterprise
of Safety Standardization”.

b il L g

L e 4 :

FREBEERE S

=0

Annual Occupational Health Examining HEBEFEERA

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted HREHA ZEEHEBREFEEERD
the annual occupational health examining, rewritten W BB EXE LT ERS  REBH ¥
the occupational sanitation assessment report, and 18 4 57 8 3R & 0 B 3£ & 4 & E 1% 8 4 &
organized 138 staff at the positions that would cause 138fIBiZEFEENAE T s ¥ MR o
occupational diseases for targeted physical examination

according to the occupational sanitation assessment

report and the annual occupational health examining.

ANNUAL REPORT 3§ 2022 87



88

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE-HERERES

Special Safety Training

During the Reporting Period, in order to actively respond
to the call of the National Production Safety Month, the
Group carried out safety special training of “taking history
as a mirror by warning bell”, calling on all employees to
strictly abide by relevant safety regulations, eliminate to
violations and stay away from accidents.

During the past three years (including the Reporting
Period), the Group did not suffer any significant
work-related injuries or fatalities caused by work.
We have complied with all relevant laws, regulations
and administrative regulations in all major aspects
of health and work safety, and have not received
penalties from PRC regulatory authorities.
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6.3.4 Care for Employments
The Group is committed to create a harmonious,
warm and united working environment for employees,
and cares for every employee from various aspects,
including basic necessities of life. We not only
consider employee’s benefit, but also hope to convey
our caring for employees to their family members.

Holiday welfare

IRIF - HEREBERS

6.3.45 T 1%
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During the Reporting Period, the Group provided
diversified premium holiday activity welfares, created
holiday atmosphere, warranted the welfares to the
employees and enhanced their sense of happiness.
The welfares included “Online Card Coupon for Spring
Festival Welfare (fE4R £55BE & @7F)) ", “Gracefulness
and Elegance (IBEFH#  REEE) ) > “Dragon Boat
Festival Meets Children’s Day (B #z R ) | > “Mid-Autumn
Festival Full of Love (FR#k{E&E> fEmA E) 1 and other
diversified holiday welfares.

BEHR TEERESKEENSH
REPEM EEHAANE REBRI®
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Diversified Staff’s Lives

During the Reporting Period, the Group organized Party
members and cadres to carry out the theme education
of “Celebrating the 20th CPC National Congress, and
Forging ahead on a New Journey”, remembering the
great achievements of revolutionary martyrs and receiving
the education of revolutionary tradition.

ZRIEETEE

e cEREBEERTRARIE
N+ R EEFNTERIACHBEES @
BEMEMNNENERE B E0ERH

Eo

6.4 Win-win: Actively Fulfilling Social Responsibility
The Group is keen on the public welfare undertakings
to promote the harmonious development of society.
We have participated in a number of public welfare
activities in the fields of charitable donation,
environmental protection and voluntary services, and
actively exerted its influence to provide women and
children in communities with needed explanation.
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As a responsible group, we believe that we can R —RBEENEER EMERGS &K
promote the harmonious development of society by MealBeERETHEEANER
actively fulfilling the social responsibility of improving YO REMENEER - AEEEIEE
people’s livelihood. The management of the Group TERE2EREIBEMmSEM & IEE > M)
encourages all employees to proactively participate PEEAEBEEERTHARNESNEL
in community activities and hopes to contribute EMHERBNESAMEBERMAOZE
efforts to improve and help address the issues AEEERRFRBOTHEES BBN 5B
affecting the well-being of local residents through i ZESHEB HREEERTSE
their personal actions. The Group insists on fulfilling BB2E A A@mEE -

its own social responsibility, closely cooperates with
the government, hospitals, charities, media and other
organizations to actively participate in public welfare
activities.

Donations to Education HEME BRAHE

During the Reporting Period, the Group donated 111 #HREHRN AEBALHE+ /2 HE
teaching computers to Jingkai No. 12 Primary Schoolto 1118 # 2B > AXNS /B4 EH R
help improve the teaching conditions of primary school #E{&{¢FB) /o

computer courses.
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APPENDIX: THE CONTENT INDEX FOR THE [fitf : E8HMXHRIBE HEREAR

GUIDANCE OF ESG REPORT OF HKEX

HiE5IRB RS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IEHE BEE -REERWMEENEE e

A. Environment

ARE

ASPECT A1: EMISSIONS General disclosure Information on 4, Focus:

BEA1: B4

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and

nonhazardous waste.

—RKE

(a) BE; &

(b) BFHETABEKX

KPI A1.1
BRARIERAL

KPI A1.2
BRENERA2

KPI A1.3
BREMIERALS

KPI A1.4
BREMIERALY

t:}

ERBERAREERRE

BRCmAkRIMNHFS FEREEERENNELSN:

FENRRARRRANER

The types of emissions and respective emissions
data.
FRMBRERERENAE-

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tons) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (BE1) RERBR BE2) RERBLEHRE (U
Wit 8) Rk (MER) ZE (MUSEEE [ §ERM
8o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tons) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FMEAREEENEE QB E) R (NER) BE (MM
BEEE( SERMHE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tons)

and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEAREEENAE WBAE) R (MMER) BE (0
BEEE( -SERMHE)
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4.2

4.2

4.2.2

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.3

4.2.3

Supremacy of
Environmental
Protection and
Green Operation
i RBELH
BEE

Environmental
Management
RHED

Exhaust Gas
Emissions

BRIR

Treatment of solid
waste

EEEENRE

Treatment of solid
waste

EEEENRE
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IRIF - HEREBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

TR BE - REERMRBRANER RESH
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps 4.2 Environmental
BRENIERAS taken to achieve them. Management
BAFMTUNEHEECRARIBLERMARNYS 4.2 REEE

ASPECT A2:
USE OF RESOURCES
BEA2: BEER

B o

KPI A1.6
BRENIERAL6

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
WREBEERBREREZNNA L REBRMT LN
BERRARIELERMERNT R

General disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources including energy, water and other
raw materials.

-REE

BUERER (BEER KREMEME) HBE-

KPI A2.1
BREMERA.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
REDHNNERKR/ABBER(ME R BFE
UFEFERHE) REE (MUSESE[M §BR
MEtE) o

KPI A2.2
BREMIERA2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per
unit of production volume, per facility).
BEKEREE MUBESEM SERMHE) o

KPI A2.3
BRENIERA23

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.
WHATUNE RER NG ERRARIELERME
g
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4.2.3 Treatment of solid
waste

423 EREEVRE

4.1 Save Resources
41 BNER

Management of
Energy
EREE

Management of
Water Resource
KEREE

4.1 Save Resources
41 BNER
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Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IERE EE —REERMRENER RESH
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in 4.1.1 Management of
BRENIERA24 sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Water Resource
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve  4.1.1 kKERERE
them.

BEEKRERKBRLIBEMBE URMATINAEK
WEARRARNELEARMRBNI R

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products 4.1.3 Management
BRENIEEA2S (in tons) and, if applicable, with reference to per of Packaging
unit produced. Materials
RARMAREMHNEE QM E) R (NBR) 8L 413 OXHHEE
EEfifhE
ASPECT A3: General disclosure 4.2 Environmental
THE ENVIRONMENT AND Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and Management
NATURAL RESOURCES natural resources. 42 BEEE

BEAS: RERXAER —HHE
BEETAEBRERRAERENEAT ENHR

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities 4.2 Environmental
BRENERASA on the environment and natural resources and the Management
actions taken to manage them. 42 BREEE
BREBEHHERRRNRERNEATZ EREFNE
BERZENTE-
ASPECT A4: General disclosure 4.3 Climate Change
CLIMATE CHANGES Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues 4.3 REE
EBEAL . RIEE( which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.
—-REE
R REHEO R ERETARENENERRGHASENEE
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues 4.3  Climate Change
BRENIERAL which have impacted, and those which may impact, 4.3 &EZ(:

the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
HEBERIEEHETAELY ENEARGRRS
B REHTH
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IRIF - HEREBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR EE -RERERMBEMER

Disclosure Section

HESH

B. Society
B.itg

EMPLOYMENT AND
LABOUR PRACTICES
ERRFIER

ASPECT BA:
EMPLOYMENT
BEB1: ER

General disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination and other benefits.

-REE

ERFNRRE BREREA LB RA- -TERS S RERUKEM

GBRENH

(a) B3, &

(b) BFHETABEAZENBEEARRRANER

KPI B1.1 Total number of employees by gender, type of
R EMIEEB1.1 employment, age group and region.
BUAEREY FRANRMEENNEELY

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover by gender, age group and
BEENIEEBI.2 region.
BENFREDNRHEEINEESREAILE

6.3.1 Employment
Overview

6.3.1 ERHR

6.3.1 Employment
Overview

6.3.1 ERHR
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERES

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IERE EE —REERMRENER RESH
ASPECT B2: General disclosure 6.3.3 Health and Safety
HEALTH AND SAFETY Information on: of Employees
BEB2: BREAR2 (a) the policies; and 6.3.3 BEIfENZ2
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
—R%E
FHRMRZRTIERERREESHEBELERAEN.
(@) B&E; K
b) BFHETABEARENABMERRRANER o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred  6.3.3 Health and Safety
R ENMIEEB2. 1 in each of the past three years including the of Employees
reporting year. 6.3.3 EIEBRENZ2
BE-F (BEFEREE) SERITHNAURL
Ko
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
R ENERB2.2 AIGEAIERG-
KPI B2.3 Describe the occupational health and safety 6.3.3 Health and Safety
BRENIEEB2.3 measures adopted and how they are implemented of Employees
and monitored. 6.3.3 EIRENZZ

HERRMNBEREAR2ER URERATRE
ERike

CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXImSEANHERAR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEREBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section
IERE EE —REERMRENER RESH
ASPECT B3: General disclosure 6.3.2 Staff Training and
DEVELOPMENT AND Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties Development
TRAINING at work. Description of training activities. 6.3.2 ETIEHEEE
EEB3 : &R KIE: —REE

EURARERTIFEENAARRANBR HLENEH -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender 6.3.2 Staff Training and

B R BN I51E83. 1 and employee category (e.g., senior management, Development

middle management). 6.3.20 BIRIEER

RUENREEERN MNMEREEE -TRERES) 3)
WRINEERDL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee 6.3.2 Staff Training and
R ENI51EBS.2 by gender and employee category. Development
BRERRESERNE D SLEEBRARINTHEH 63.2 BEIENEER

ASPECT B4: General disclosure 6.3.1 Employment
LABOUR STANDARDS Information on: Overview
BEB4 . HT#E (a) the policies; and 6.3.1 ERIER

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and forced labour.

—REE

EERBLETIRRHZIN:

(a) BE R

(b) BFHETABEAZENBEEARRRANER

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 6.3.1 Employment
B3 i MIRTEB4 A practices to avoid child and forced labour. Overview

HERSRREANERIBRETIRBHST - 6.3.1 BN

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 6.3.1 Employment
BEENIEEBRA.2 practices when discovered. Overview

HEAZRERBENRERARERARRNS R o 6.3.1 BN

ANNUAL REPORT 3§ 2022 97



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - HERERES

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

TEEE BEE -REBERMARANER RESH

Operational Practice

EE2REA

ASPECT B5: General disclosure 6.2.2 Continuing to
SUPPLY CHAIN Policies on managing environmental and social risks of supply chain. Promote the
MANAGEMENT —-REE Suppliers’ Social
[EMEB5: HERER EEMEENRERHEABREE: Responsibilities

KPI B5.1
BRIENME1RB5.1

KPI B5.2
BRENIERB5.2

KPI B5.3
BRENIERB5.3

KPI B5.4
BB NISEBS .4

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
EHEEDNHREFHE

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

WREAERMEENEM AERATEREANME
BHE UREBEANRTRERR Ao

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.
RAERANAEESARENRERTEARNE
B UREERTRERR %

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R REARERRELARRERRRBNESN
URBBRATRERA o
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6.2.2

BEEDHEAL

EEE::

Establishing Win-
win Partnership
with Suppliers
BUAFLRMNM
EEBHEBG

Establishing Win-
win Partnership
with Suppliers
BUAFLRMNM
EEBHEBG

Continuing to
Promote the
Suppliers” Social
Responsibilities
RERBHERL

EEL:

Continuing to
Promote the
Suppliers” Social
Responsibilities
RERBHESL

EEL:



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIF - HEREBHRS

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

Disclosure Section

IERE EE —REERMRENER RESH

ASPECT B6: General disclosure 3.2 Integrity: Quality-
PRODUCT Information on: oriented
RESPONSIBILITY (a) the policies; and 3.2 HE:EEAX
EmB6: EmEME (b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.

~BiHE

FEFRHEERNRBHRREEZ2 BE RERVREEURBRA LN

(a) B&; Rk

(b) BFHETABERX

KPI B6.1
B 5 % WIS 12B6.1

KP| B6.2
B 5 W1512B6.2

KP| B6.3
BB MI51E86.3

KPI B6.4
BRENE1RB6.4

KPI B6.5
R ENIE1RB6.5

FENRRARRRANER

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
BENCEREREETRZ2ARREMMARKN
BAtte

Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BREEREMRRBORAUEUREE L

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

HERGEERRENAERABNOEM-

Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.
BREERTRERERBNER-

Description of consumer data protection and

privacy policies, how they are implemented and

monitored.

HRHEEERRERMEIR URERRTREER
Fike

3.2.4 Quick Response

to Quality Issues

3.2.4 BERREE

6.1.2 Customer

Complaints
Management
Procedures

6.1.2 R EEME

5.4

5.4

3.2

3.2

Protection of
Intellectual
Property Rights
MHERRE

Integrity: Quality
oriented

HifE HERX

6.1.3 Protection of

Customer Privacy

6.1.3 RREMLRE
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IR - HERERES

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators Disclosure Section

IERE EE —REERMRENER RESH
ASPECT BT: General disclosure 3.1 Integrity:
ANTI-CORRUPTION Information on: Honesty and
EEB7 . RES (a) the policies; and Trustworthiness
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant 31 HE HETE
impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
—R%E

BEBLER PR RERAREN:

(a) B R

(b) BFHETABERX

FENRRARRRANER -

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 3.1 Integrity:

B R EAI51EBT.1 corrupt practices brought against the issuer or Honesty and
its employees during the reporting period and the Trustworthiness
outcomes of the cases. 31 M HBTE
RERBAHETAIHESRELEEENESHA
RENEBERFDRER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- 3.1 Integrity:

BRENIEERT .2 blowing procedures, and how they are implemented Honesty and
and monitored Trustworthiness
HEpmSEEREREF UREFRTREERE 31 #AE #HETE

KPI B7.3 Description of the anti-corruption training provided  3.1.2 Training on

FRENIEEBT.S to directors and staff. Integrity
WAMEERETIR|NORESE 3.1.2 BEE
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIE -1 g

Major Categories, Aspects, General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators

IERR EE -RERERMBEMER

RERHS

Disclosure Section

HESH

Community

#HE

ASPECT B8: COMMUNITY General disclosure

INVESTMENT Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
EmBS: #HERE communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities” interests
—RKE

BB ER T REEMEHERENRAHERRDEERHBHNENER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education,
BB EM151288. 1 environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sports).

SIEMEE (MY BEFE - FIFTX BR X

6.4 Win-win: Actively
Fulfilling Social
Responsibility

6.4 H#F: BEETH
2541

0

6.4 Win-win: Actively
Fulfilling Social
Responsibility

6.4 HE: BEBIH

-85 - BEf
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time) to the 6.4 Win-win: Actively
A& E M5 1EB8.2 focus area. Fulfilling Social

ABIERFBRER WEHAKH) o

Responsibility
6.4 HE: BEBIH
BEf
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Directors’ Report

EFXEHS

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands and its registered office address is
3-212 Governors Square, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue, P.O.
Box 30746, Seven Mile Beach, Grand Cayman KY1-1203,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company, and
the Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in
the research and development, manufacture and sale of
automotive interior decorative components and parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business, investment and financial
activities, including a fair review of the business using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business as well
as environmental policies and performance, as required by
Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance, is shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 8 to 15 and in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” on pages 41 to 101 of this
annual report.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE COMPANY
Description of possible risks and uncertainties facing the
Company is set out in note 24 to the financial statements in
this annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate amount of revenue from the Group’s largest
and five largest customers for the year ended 31 December
2022 represented approximately 57.3% (31 December
2021: 57.4%) and 97.1% (31 December 2021: 97.0%),
respectively, of the Group’s total revenue from sales
operations.

The aggregate amount of purchases from the Group’s
largest and five largest suppliers for the year ended 31
December 2022 represented approximately 18.7% (31
December 2021: 17.4%) and 48.7%, respectively (31
December 2021: 42.3%).

So far as is known to our Directors, none of our Directors,
their respective close associates or our Shareholders
who are interested in more than 5% of the issued share
capital of our Company has any interests in the five largest
customers or the five largest suppliers of our Group.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group endeavours to maintain sustainable
development in the long term, continuously create
value for its employees and customers, and foster good
relationships with its suppliers. The Group understands
that employees are its valuable assets, and the realization
and enhancement of employees’ values will facilitate the
achievement of the Group’s overall goals. For the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group provided generous
social security benefits to its employees to motivate
them while heightening their sense of belonging. The
Group also understands the importance of maintaining
good relationships with its suppliers and customers to
the overall development of the Group. The Group places
emphasis on supplier selection and encourages fair and
open competition to foster long-term relationships with
quality suppliers on the basis of mutual trust. To maintain
the competitiveness of its brand and products, the Group
abides by the principles of honesty and trustworthiness and
commits itself to consistently provide quality products to
establish a reliable service environment for its customers.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no
significant and material dispute between the Group and its
suppliers and/or customers.

Directors’ Report

EFERS

FTERRRHEER
HE2022F12831HIEFEE  REBAXEER
MBEAERAEREATRL W AEEED A4
AEBHEEFHBEWANS7.3% (20214F
12831H 1 57.4%) ’%97.1% (2021F12 8
31H :97.0%) °

HE2022F12831HLELEE B EAEEER
AEEERAAEEIRENRES N
1518.7% (2021F128B31H 1 17.4%) &
48.7% (20214128318 : 42.3%) ©

MEMNESHI MEEST - RESEN
REBMBAANETRBSULNEHTR
AP EAEREGNRRNETEBRNDIKRER
HERHEBTHRE TR -

BEE - ZERPAMEENEZRF

AEBNIRAEFEREBNISELR A
BEMEBALAFERNGCEE LHMEERE
FREFMG AEBFHAREREASBTEEE
EEEBENERARA TEPREAKERE
BEEZEHNBR MNEE20225128310 1k
FE - AEEAEERBEENHRER
EHEEEITFREBENREIRNRE T E
ENGER AEETHEEREERIRER
HBERERG HEAEBR2EBER+HE
ToRAEBE+PERBEHEBNEE &/
NERABEBRF O AEZEEEHEEHERE
UEEBNEGFRAG AERFAIEERERE
MZBEEBEN AEBRTEAANETEZERL
BRORERPRME—EZEEER ARRE
E—EIEBEBMNRFEREE NEE20224F
12B31HELEE AEEBEEHER R/
RERZEMESTEEREAR M4
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Directors’ Report

EFXEHS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 5 of this annual report.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

FINAL DIVIDEND
The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
The Group is committed to contributing to the
sustainability of the environment and aims to become
an environmentally-friendly corporation that pays close
attention to conserving natural resources. We strive to
minimize our environmental impact by conserving electricity
and water and encouraging the recycling of office supplies
and other materials.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND

REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, as far as the
Company is aware, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group that has a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

BANKING FACILITIES AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Details of the borrowings are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 17 to the financial statements in this annual
report.
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PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in properties, plants and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
11 to the financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available

for distribution amounted to RMB224.0 million.

RESERVES
Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and
of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in note 23 to the financial statements in this
annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between
meeting shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital
management with a sustainable dividend policy. The
Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders to
participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for future development. When
considering the dividend payment, the Board shall take
into account the factors including but not limited to the
Company’s operations and earnings, capital requirements
and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital expenditure and future development
requirements, shareholders’ interests and other factors that
the Board considers relevant.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report, neither our Company, nor its
subsidiaries have purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Directors’ Report
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Directors’ Report

EFXEHS

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the directors of the Company,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules at any time up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE

As permitted by the Articles of Association, every Director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets and profit of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her
office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officer’s liability coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Company.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December
2022.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
made a donation of desks and chairs worthy of
RMB500,000 to Xi’an Jingkai Second Primary School.
The Group made a donation of computers worthy of
RMB390,000 to Xi’an Jingkai Twelve Primary School.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Hou Jianli (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Yunhua

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhu Honggiang

Mr. Zhou Genshu

Mr. Chen Geng

Mr. Zhou Genshu and Mr. Zhou Genshu shall retire from
office by rotation in accordance with Article 108 of the
Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Xu Yunhua shall hold office until the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election in the said meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers that all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 16
to 21 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with our Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s
notice in writing to the other party.

Directors’ Report
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Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has
entered into an appointment letter with our Company for a
term of three years unless terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s written notice to the other party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has entered into a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes
16.1 and 16.2 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) has
been entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

No contract of significance (as defined under Notes 15.2
and 15.3 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
an entity connected with him/her or Controlling Shareholder
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year under review.
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors of the
Company and five highest paid individuals of the Company
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements
in this annual report. The emoluments of the Directors
is determined by reference to the relevant Directors’
experience, responsibility, workload and the time devoted
to our Group.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTERESTS

None of our Directors and their respective close associates
are interested in any business which competes or is likely
to compete with that of our Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Details of corporate governance practice adopted by
the Company are set out in the section of “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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EFXEHS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at the date of this annual report, the interests or short
positions of each of our Directors and chief executive
of our Company in our Shares, underlying Shares
or debentures of our Company and our associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”)) which, were required to be notified
to our Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which any of them was taken or
deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein or which
were required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(@) Interest in our Company

Name of Director Nature of interest

EFRRETHRAEBRKRG HEEARSG
REEENEDZRXE

REFEHRAH RPAESREARATETETH
ANEZBRALRKRERE LB (TEXRE
HEREEEAEXVER) RS - ABRERM I
BEETEERBESR(ZSRBEREM)
(BB EREES71E) (TSFOU) EXVELE7
RESHBANG AR KRB AN ERT
KE (BERESHRBEERANEXEN
WEWEMEAREEBNEZARAE) AR
BEERPERGFEI521F B0 A IEFr it
WELMPEREBREZETHENGTEARQT
RO EZRXEBOT

k

(a) MAEAE

]

B9 #E

Number of
Shares Percentage of
(Note 1) shareholding

EEN4A DS iR g8 (MisE1) FRE 7L

Mr. Hou Jianli Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)

(EFes fo@fm ; SEGEE#ED (E2)

Notes: MI5E ©

1. The letter “L" denotes our Directors’ long position (as defined 1. FHRILERMPAESTNZEROTNGE (BT B

under Part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

2. Mr. Hou Jianli (“Mr. Hou”) is the spouse of Ms. Chen Bierui
(“Ms. Chen”). The entire issued share capital of H&C Group
Holding Limited is beneficially and legally owned as to 60%
and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen respectively. By virtue
of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by H&C Group
Holding Limited.
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(b) Interests in our associated corporations

Directors’ Report

EFERS

(b) HAEEE B

Name of Name of associated Number of Shares Percentage of
Director corporation Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
EENRS WHECEE R AT BEME R EE (M) RREE DL
Mr. Hou H&C Group Holding Limited  Beneficial owner; Interest of 100 (L) 100%
spouse (Note 2)

EiE H&C Group Holding Limited EB&Z#EEB A ; Eo@#Em (His2)

Notes: P -

1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. FHEI IERZEROHNETE (EEREEK H

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors or the chief executive of our
Company has any interests or short positions in our shares,
underlying shares or debentures of our Company and
our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions in which any of them was taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to our Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BIRPIEXVER) o

2. BEERERBRLLIHEMB -H&C Group Holding
LimitedW 2 8 B 8174 2D B B E o £ KRR
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Directors’ Report

EFXEHS

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this annual report, the persons or
corporations who has an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRNROUEARGFHEROE
mRRE

REFHERBH REZFRPEHERHEXV
BE2RFEINDWLARAEARDKEHAREE
SRAERAEFEI6HABFHNECMATE
B T ALTIEER QB RKD AEE
RPPEENEDTIXEDNT

Number
Name of of Shares Percentage of
Shareholder Nature of interest (Note 1) shareholding
IR E T BmtE KR & B (MsE1) FRESL
H&C Group Holding  Beneficial owner 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
Limited
BR#EEA
Mr. Hou Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
EhE ot ; REFEEED (T 2)
Ms. Chen Interest of spouse; interest in a controlled 1,500,000,000 (L) 75%
corporation (Note 2)
R+ FofBfEs ; REFVEEED (5 2)
Notes: MI5E ©
1. The letter “L” denotes the long position (as defined under Part 1. FHRTILIIERZERMNETE (EEREHAE

XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. Mr. Hou is the spouse of Ms. Chen. The entire issued share
capital of H&C Group Holding Limited is beneficially and
legally owned as to 60% and 40% by Mr. Hou and Ms. Chen
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Hou and Ms.
Chen is deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
held by H&C Group Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual
report, the directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2022 or the
period following 31 December 2022 up to the date of this
annual report, was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or holding company or any of the subsidiaries of the
Company’s holding company a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors or the chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
Directors and chief executive, or their spouse and children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right
during such period.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the PRC local government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the
PRC, and operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Particulars of
these retirement plans are set out in note 6 to the financial
statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2022, which did not
constitute connected transactions under chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, are set out in note 26 of the financial
statements in this annual report.

Directors’ Report
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company has received the written confirmation
from each of H&C Group Holding Limited, Mr. Hou
Jianli, Ms. Chen Bierui (the “Covenantors”) in respect
of the compliance with the terms of the non-compete
undertaking (the “Non-compete Undertaking”), entered
into between the Covenantors and the Company as set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings From Our
Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus. Each of the
Covenantors has confirmed and declared that he/she/ it
had strictly complied with the Non-compete Undertaking
without any breach thereof. All the Independent Non-
executive Directors had reviewed the matters relating to the
enforcement of the Non-compete Undertaking and consider
that the terms of the Non-compete Undertaking have been
complied with by each of the Covenantors for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITORS
The Company appointed KPMG as auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

KPMG will retire, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
Hou Jianli

Chairman

Xi’an, the PRC, 28 March 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 124 to 220, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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BIZHBMERS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS
Key audit matters are those matters that,

in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

MEEFSEH
FREBFFERRBERMANEXRAE B
HEAMGRaUBRENEFR/EENS
R-EEZEREARMBFAERGEEHHR
KREHAERFETREN -HMAFTSTHE
EEERHEBINER -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide

a separate opinion on these matters.

BEZRWRERREEHERER

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

R S FEIRZN L 147124 (a) % M1 522(h)()F12(k) B9 & 51 B 7 ©

The Key Audit Matter
FREEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

B EEM AR

At 31 December 2022, the Group had a significant
balance of gross trade receivables which amounted
to RMB87,904,000, representing approximately
16.97% of the Group’s total assets at that date,
against which an allowance of RMB2,204,000 for
expected credit losses (ELCs) was recorded.
12022 12831H BEENEZRUHRIEREE
A ANR187,904,0000 (HEEBENZBHEEERE
BEN16.97% MixFTEAMEAIBKR(ELCs)EHEA
K 2,204,000t °

The Group’s trade receivables mainly arose from
sales to heavy truck and passenger vehicle
manufacturers.
EEENBZRERUABTIERBEL RERFKAS
BliEmH o

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance
for trade receivables included the following:
HABWABRDRNEARNEAREXBEUATE
15 .

o Obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt
collection and estimate of credit loss
allowances;

s THEKIEHEEEREEEESN EHEWMNE
EFEEEREMGSARNBEEANSEENZS
EfREFEMML

° evaluating the Group’s policy for estimating
the credit loss allowance with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e ZRRTEHAENNER FEEAEBRNER
BREHEE GBS ;

116 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEXIESENTARAT




Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BIZHBEMERS

FARESEIE @)

Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

BEERBRERRGEEHRERER

Refer to Notes 14 and 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Notes

2(h)(i) and 2(k).

RS B LM EE14/124(a) % I 522(h) () F12 (k)Y & 51 I 7 ©

The Key Audit Matter
B EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FREMMARR

Management measures loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL of the trade receivables which
is based on ageing of the receivables and expected
loss rate for each category of trade receivables
grouped according to the shared credit risk
characteristics. The estimated loss rates take into
account the ageing of trade receivable balances, the
repayment history of the Group’s customers, current
market conditions, and forward-looking information.
Such assessment involves significant management
judgement and estimation.
EEEREBUIRRNEDBRRARERBERENS
BREF BUPRRNEmBERAERERBRABEER
BREKHRIENRE U SARBERDR BREEEHR
BRSO MFEBREBEARGHE RPBEAXNES
AROERBENGEHRRE - EEERNENTE
= AT IS AR A A BE M B - BRI IS RE AN E
B g H e fE 5t o

We identified the ECL allowance for trade
receivables as a key audit matter because
determining the level of loss allowance is inherently
subjective which requires significant management
judgement.
EMBRERERANERERBRAEGIRCAMAES
FFEENRAEAZ  BRERKENEEEALANT
By REXEEEH o BiTEE 5 RIKRIEER
REBEBNSEFEXEEUATEE

° assessing whether items in the trade
receivables ageing report were categorised
in the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing a sample of individual items
with the underlying goods delivery notes,
sales invoices and other relevant underlying
documentation;

e BEHWMEBLEANEERHENEEE HE
EEMEMMBRE X4 sTERBERRRE RS
FNIEE 2D E S EMIRIRE D48 ;

° assessing the appropriateness of
management’s estimates of ECL allowance
for trade receivables by examining the
information used by management to derive
such estimates, including testing the
accuracy of the historical default data and
evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on latest
financial information of major customers,
current economic conditions and forward-
looking information; and

s BREXKEEEABUGEERWIRAINIERER
BREFEENES O NAEERIBEEN
ERUNTLELBEBAXESERTIERRAN
AT RS B ~ 2 R0 AR AR R AN A BE M BURE
TEEAE ILEEELEHENSEY ;
b4

° re-performing the calculation of the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2022 based on
the Group’s credit loss allowance policies.

e REBEEENGERHBRAEERR EMFERN
202212831 HHB K EME o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

FEESEIE @

Timing of revenue recognition

Wi A B 5T s

BEGR S B IREN Z4R M2 & 51 B K ©

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

The Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FREMARR

Revenue from sales of automotive interior and
exterior decorative products is recognised when
products are delivered at the customers’ premises,
the customers take possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the point in time
when the Group transfers control over the products
to the customers.
EEYRERGHRN ERGE RBMNEDRRS Al
BHESRTEERRNERNEGFREETZERN
HE—ESE HESBEANIRGER WA FES
N

We identified the timing of revenue recognition
as a key audit matter because revenue is a key
performance indicator of the Group which increases
the risk that the timing of revenue recognition may
be manipulated to meet financial expectations or
targets.

BPHP WA SESEARESEE BAKRASR
EEE-ENRARRRER BIMBRAPTERRIZEN
ERYHERNERNERE -

Qur audit procedures to assess the timing of

recognition of revenue included the following:

HTEWRARISLEEARNEAERNEEUATE

15 :

° obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of management’s key internal
controls in relation to revenue recognition;

e THRRMMLEIEEHEWAESS BORERNI
BRI BT B REERUME

° inspecting customer contracts, on a sample
basis, to identify terms and conditions relating
to goods acceptance and assessing the
Group’s revenue recognition policies with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

. SRHAMBEERPNGHN UHNABEYR TR
R IR R R R AR BRIR 1T G 5t ERIAIARE
A EEENVRAESRR ;

° comparing, on a sample basis, specific
revenue transactions recorded before
and after the financial year end date with
underlying documentation, which included
goods acceptance notes, to assess
whether the revenue had been recognised
in accordance with the terms of the sales
contracts and in the appropriate financial
periods;

e REEARZE HRNURFEELEHAER
RHETWARZEERXE (BEEYEIR
B) UFTHBAZRSEREBEHESQKERN
BE M B EAE R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BIZHBEMERS

FARESEIE @)

Timing of revenue recognition

Ui A B 5T s

BRI BIREN Z4R M2 & 51 B ©

Refer to Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in Note 2(r).

The Key Audit Matter
B EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bt FHEN AR

inspecting underlying documentation for
manual journal entries relating to revenue
which were recorded during the year and
which met other specific risk-based criteria;
and

1% B B AF PO B S IR A AE R e R & HLAt A4S TE AL R
BENFIEst 0B H ; &

obtaining external confirmation of, on a
sample basis, transaction amounts for the
year and debtor balances as at the financial
year end directly with customers.
RREARE BERERNZTRERNFERZETHE
MBEFHFERE S RBUIRIBHRENHF
& o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

MEMBHRRRGBEMRSUINER

EFANHMBENABS -HMENEEHN
FHERANFABEER  EFAERGEEHHFRE
EA LSRR QR =

BRMBGESMHFRENTR I AR EH M
B M TAHZETEMENERETMAT
NHERER o

HEHMABRGEMBERERNES HANE
EARBEMEN  FILBRER  ZEHEM
ENRCRGEMBREAIARMERTA
RAMTHEOBREEERBENEMUTF
FEERERRALMBR
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S

REPORT THEREON (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

120 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD HEIXRISENHHARAR
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT

OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BIZHBEMERS

RHMMESREMBERRAENTR

HANER RHEEMBEREERS S
FEARRFAERMERNERERR
MRS EERE THASERMERNZ
MRS -ABEERAET (FRER) &
ToREZIHTKRERNEEMEN - HMA
ZRARENABTAENEMATE £
AEEFEE-

BEREESKENRIE  BEFAERERR
ERBHERNETHNEF AR —EXRH#HR
BoR 4t 77 7 B5 A8 BE 35 3R o S8 ER PR &L BT LA FH AR BF
HERMSI B MREGERPEBEHNER
ERDEFEGESYFTREECRERER
BMBREMFHNEERE BB
RERA AT WRIEEK -

ERBEEBEFEETEANERD &
FMERTEEYE FEHEITEEREEE-
IR

— HBIMT A RN ERME R
EMBERRFEERNESIRANA
B R RATEARAUNEBHELER
R U R EW T BB E B E SRR
EREMARREE - BANRFRIET K
BR - BE - BRER ERMRZ ;X
ERENABEEZ £ AIEREERRA
RFEMERNEAGRRANA RS
B ok BE 8% 3R Kl 88 3R T & B AY &= K 58 52
BR 2t B9 & B o

— THRUEBSHERNABEE URFE

ENBFEL > BENLIFNEEER
MEENANMEERER -

- HEEEFRAESHRRNBERER
fEHEs At MAERKRENSGE M-
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

RBMMESREMBHRRAENTR

HESRBRFEBELKESEAERNGE
MEH SR - RIFPTEINB TS RE
HERCFEAFHEABREBNE
ARABEM KEMAEERNEEEN
RBEEEENEEERRERE - IR
BRTFEEARIEREN  MACEER
MR ETRFEAEIRGEMH
BERPHERARE - REABAOKES
B ARMEEXXRFEFREER R
PNEREERNBEZBMEKS A
IEFRENS BB ST /R - 28T » KRR F IR
NERAIEEREERFEFEEE -

FEGEMBRRNEREZ2 DN G
BANRES BEEE UREGEEMBR
REAARMIEZZMEE-

MEERERNERNET TINMBESA
MENTE - BENEFERE UEY
HREMBRERERER -RMEEEE
EESHNTE - BEENMAT - ZRMASE
SARRAEEHEE-

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, MHEHMEBI  ZFMEEZEETERT
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the st BN B HE BRI LZH EAFFHIR
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant %> SHERMESZBtP AN L RN IFEZENE
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our Al 28 K &R o

audit.

122 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEIXIESENEtARAT



Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chu Man Wai.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2023

BIZHBEMERS

RUMREAGEMBRRAENTRE

(#&)

HMEODBERZETRXBA REHME
MEAREABUMNEREXEEER T A
P ERAEREMREB/ELERM
BYMOFRMERMEMNMAEMELR URETER
MERT R EGREEMERNTHRER
BY B3 88 ¥5 1t ©

WHEBERZEGBEENERT  HFIREE R
EEREN TRV FTRENBARDE
B AMBRRHEBESSFE HFEZEE
BERHAEESTE KREIZREIETR
HARKBEEEFE NAEBKERENEBR
T NMREEERERMARSTERREE
ERMNEBBRRBBEEN 2R m > Ff
REFEEBRSHBEBEZER-

CTEAABUZBMRENBFTREEGREA
AR MR e
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
EeEER

For The year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12831 H IEEE
(Expressed in Renminbi (“RMB”)) (X A B ¥ 2/ 7~)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 ARBTT ARBTT

Revenue PN 4 176,094 295,776
Cost of sales HEMA (163,419) (225,223)
Gross profit EF 4(b) 12,675 70,553
Other income Habur 5 3,000 3,901
Selling and distribution expenses HEER (3,774) (9,011)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (33,096) (47,128)
Impairment losses reversed on trade B 5 EU &G @B E

and other receivables 24(a) 60 31
(Loss)/profit from operations g (B518) Ew (21,135) 18,346
Finance costs BF 75 AR 2 6(a) (9,198) (9,409)
(Loss)/profit before taxation PR¥YET (B518) @ F 6 (30,333) 8,937
Income tax FTigiR 7(a) 4,323 (1,608)

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity AT EZFRREEEN
shareholders of the Company for  (E518) /3%

the year (26,010) 7,329
(Loss)/earnings per share sk (B8 &
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) EXAR#EE (AREBD) 10 (1.30) 0.37

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these 2132E220BZMFEM AR HFRERN —
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity &8 %3 ° B F 745 A B # 23 B% 36 & 1 & P 7
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for Z B EBIFEH LK E23(C) e

the year are set out in Note 23(c).
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEEmkEMEZE K ER

For The year ended 31 December 2022 &; = 2022F 12831 H L FE

(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851/ 7T)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T AEBFT
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr (F51B) iEF) (26,010) 7,329
Other comprehensive income FrnHM2EmUEA
for the year (after tax): (30T IE®R) :
ltem that may be reclassified AEEERENDEE
subsequently to profit or loss: BaNIER
- Exchange differences on —MBAKREEZT
translation into presentation EIHER E%8
currency of the Group 904 (705)
Total comprehensive income NEIERREELEN
attributable to equity SHEEEWN
shareholders of the
Company for the year (25,106) 6,624

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.

B e
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A MBRAR

At 31 December 2022 £, E£20225F12831H

(Expressed in RMB) (XX A B 1%/ 77~)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥ET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN NG 11 195,240 204,921
Intangible assets EBREE 1,541 1,279
Prepayments for acquisitions of BEVME BERREZ
property, plant and equipment AR 15(a) 8,794 6,285
Deferred tax assets RERIEE E 21(b) 6,384 2,061
______________________________________________________________ 211,959 = 214,546
Current assets MENEE
Inventories =75 13 53,193 60,224
Trade and bills receivables B ERSIBREREE 14 125,300 166,130
Prepayments and other receivables BT I8 M E At FE UL T 1B 15(b) 21,091 30,566
Cash at bank and on hand WITNFHEIRE 16 106,491 100,850
______________________________________________________________ 806,075 357,770
Current liabilities mENAE
Bank and other loans BT REMERK 17 113,675 118,602
Trade and bills payables B EMMIENEMNZE 18 97,805 131,862
Accrued expenses and other payables FEstBI S & HMME (SR IB 19 43,290 36,028
Lease liabilities HESE 20 539 820
Current taxation BPHERTR I8 21(a) 560 73
255,869 287,385
Net current assets MEEEFE 50,206 70,385
Total assets less current liabilities & ERREAE 262,165 284,931

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= A, LI
FEMHBIKRAR
At 31 December 2022 &, E£20225F12831H
(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851/ 7T)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 5 ARBTT ARBTT

Non-current liabilities ERBER
Bank and other loans WITREMER 17 16,806 15,232
Lease liabilities HEaE 20 - 58
Deferred income JE FE U\ 22 3,793 2,969
20,599 18,259
NET ASSETS BEEE 241,566 266,672
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRREE 23
Share capital & A 17,522 17,522
Reserves #E 224,044 249,150
TOTAL EQUITY V4R EE 241,566 266,672

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of ZEEEN2023F3F28HMEWHREEEE T
directors on 28 March 2023.

Hou Jianli Xu Yunhua
EEF FEE
Chairman Director
FE )

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial £ 132F 2208 Z M sF B A R K 89—
statements. BB e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HEeEDmZEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12331 H LEFEE
(Expressed in RMB) (XX A B 1%/ 77~)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FARERRAEL
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k% Riria® Hfffif e ERGfE fRE &R it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
NS A\EETR AEETR AEETT AEEFR A\EETR A\EETR
(Note 23(b))  (Note 23(d)(i)  (Note 23(d)(i))  (Note 23(d)(ii})  (Note 23(d)(iv)
(Kso3))  (MsE23()))  (WsEos(d)i)  (BSRas(a)i)  (HEE28(d)(iv)

Balance at 1 January 2022 1%20221R1A 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 393 143,619 266,672

Changes in equity for ~ E 2202212831

the year ended LEEZEGES:

31 December 2022:
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - (26,010) (26,010)
Other comprehensive EREf2ENN

income for the year - - - - 904 - 904

Total comprehensive ER2EERA

__ncomefortheyear ______________ T T R S W BNM0 (25106
Balance at 1#2002%12R318
31 December 2022 17,522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 1,297 117,609 241,566

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial 5 132F 2208 Z M sF B AP FHF R K 09—
statements. &R o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FeRZE28R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; £ 2022F 12831 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB) (X A & ¥ 51/ 7F)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATEERREL
Share Share Other Statutory Exchange Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
k4 Riria® At e ER &R it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AEETR AEETR AEETT AEEFT N S A\EETR
(Note 23(b))  (Note 23(d)(i)  (Note 23(d)(i))  (Note 23(d)(ii}) ~ (Note 23(d)(iv)
(Wso3)  (MsE23()))  (HEsEos(d)i)  (PR2s(a)i)  (HEE23(d)(iv)

Balance at 1 January 2021 142021%1PB 18 17,522 106,878 (17,500) 24,605 1,098 137,469 210,072

Changes in equity for ~ E 22021128310

the year ended LEEZEGES:

31 December 2021:
Profit for the year EniEH - - - - - 7,329 7,329
Other comprehensive EnEf2ENN

income for the year - - - - (705) - (705)

Total comprehensive EnsmEHA
income for the year - - - - (705) 7329 6,624

Dividends approved and S L—EEHE

paid in respect of IZHNRE

the previous year (H523(0))

(Note 23(c)) - (10,024) - - - - (10,024)
Appropriation to reserve  HEZEE - - - 1179 = (1,179) =
_____________________________ oo e oW (W (10024
Balance at 12021512A318

31 December 2021 17522 96,854 (17,500) 25,784 393 143,619 266,672

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial £ 132F 2208 Z M sE B B R & 89 —
statements. &R o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A L=
FERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2022 & £2022F 12831 HWEE
(Expressed in RMB) (X N & ¥ 3/ 77)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
P 5 ARBTT ARBTT

Operating activities RETEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation brfET (B518) aF] (30,333) 8,937
Adjustments for: MU TERBEHAE :
Depreciation and amortisation I8 R B 6(c) 33,583 26,439
Impairment loss on property, EN RIS
plant and equipment EAEEES 11(a) 222 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE BE M
plant and equipment BB m TR 5 320 114
Finance costs SR DN 6(a) 9,198 9,409
Interest income FE WA 5 (326) (357)
Amortisation of deferred income 1 FIE W\ 8 22 (636) (243)
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:
Decrease in inventories FEHL 7,031 18,242
Decrease in trade and bills receivables B 5 e FRIE & FE U 2
P 40,830 88,832
Decrease/(Increase) in prepayments T8 1 50 I8 K H b e U FR I8
and other receivables L (48 ) 7,187 (15,359)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits = PR IR 17 & 7R D 10,316 2,562
Decrease in trade and bills payables B 5 RIBE N ET
ZIRORD (34,057) (91,526)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses  EEHEISX N E M FE(S
and other payables FIEE M, GR) 9,610 (3,061)
Cash generated from operations &GRS 52,945 43,989
Income tax refunded/(paid) B[] (BE) g 21(a) 2,801 (7,371)
Net cash generated from RESEH RS
operating activities  ReE®E 55,746 36618
Investing activities KREEH
Payments for purchase of property, plant BEBEY%¥ . BE.ZHEX
and equipment and intangible assets BREEEZNR (28,691) (49,892)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BRENEZEZ
plant and equipment Frig kI8 = 606
Government grants received BT #8 Bh 1,460 1,090
Interest received BUlF 8 326 357

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial $132F220B 2 M E B SRR —
statements. i
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

MARERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 ;£ 2022F 12831 HHNEE

(Expressed in RMB) (X A B #5851/ 7T)

2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARET T ARETIT
Net cash used in KETHFAREFHE
investing activities (26,905) (47,839)
Financing activities BEEE
Proceeds from bank and other loans IRITREMERFAERIE 16(b) 97,500 152,305
Repayment of bank and other loans EBERTAEMER 16(b) (100,853) (114,487)
Dividend paid ENKRE 16(b) - (10,024)
Interest paid EFE 16(b) (9,165) (9,309)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEE fﬁK EEMRIE 16(b) (339) (1,234)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEaEMNEEERE 16(b) (33) (100)
Net cash (used in)/generated B ES) (FRA) Frfs
__from financing activites = ®®®® (12,890 17,151
Net increase in cash and cash REMREEEY
__equivalents  ___®m=F® 15,951 5930
Cash and cash equivalents FUNRENRBRAE
at the beginning of the year EEY 16(a) 62,538 56,610
Effect of foreign exchange SEEXREHE
rate changes 6 ()
Cash and cash equivalents FEXRBEENEE
at the end of the year EEWY 16(a) 78,495 62,538

The notes on pages 132 to 220 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Tianrui Automotive Interiors Co., LTD (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2017 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 January 2019. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components and
parts.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for
the current accounting period reflected in these
financial statements.
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(Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022 comprise the
Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

° Amendments to |IAS 37, Provisions,
contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a
contract

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of the
adoption of the amended IFRSs are discussed
below:

Amendments to IAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

The amendments prohibit an entity from
deducting the proceeds from selling items
produced before that asset is available for use
from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment. Instead, the sales proceeds and the
related costs should be included in profit and
loss. The amendments do not have a material
impact on these financial statements as the
Group does not sell items produced before
an item of property, plant and equipment is
available for use.
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(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)
Amendments to IAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous
contracts - cost of fulfilling a contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous, the
cost of fulfilling the contract includes both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling contracts.

Previously, the Group included only incremental
costs when determining whether a contract was
onerous. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, the Group has applied the new
accounting policy to contracts for which it has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January
2022, and has concluded that none of them is
onerous.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into in the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative equity interests, but no adjustments
are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interests retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)), unless
the investment is classified as held-for-sale.
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(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

2(h)(ii)).

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over
freehold or leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest;

- buildings situated on leasehold properties;
and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of
underlying plant and equipment (see Note

2(9)).-

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and
borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)).

[tems may be produced while bringing an
item of property, plant and equipment to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. The proceeds from selling any
such items and the related costs are recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Estimated
useful lives

Plant and buildings 10-40 years

Machinery and equipment 5-10 years

Moulds 4-5 years

Motor vehicles and other 5-10 years

equipment

Right-of-use assets:

— Land-use-right leased Over the

for own use unexpired term

of lease

— Plant and buildings 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in process until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.
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(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (see Note 2(h)
(i)). Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated
useful lives are as follows:

Estimated
useftul lives

Software 5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of
the identified asset and to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from that use.
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(Continued)
(9) Leased assets (Continued) (9) HEEE (&)
(i) As alessee (i) 1ESARFEA
Where the contract contains lease HWENBEaHEEND RIER
component(s) and non-lease component(s), Efn  AEEBEBEE T n
the Group has elected not to separate BEFMEHRENFHERERD

non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability, except for short-term
leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets.
When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense
on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using
a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is
measured at amortised cost and interest
expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

140 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEXIESENtARAT

T %H‘I“B%)S’Mﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ
EMNFSE—HER DT
AR o

REERBBE ~EE®
REREEERHEERR
MR A12E B L THYE
HEEREBEEEENEER
fRb - AEBERBEESR
EUEAE AAEBRRE
CEREERABANBRE
AL - BAREAXECHWHEEM
BHEAEMMREARRE R
MRS X e

HEEEEA{C HHEESR
BT REERRNENEE
MENRERRD TERA
ERSM RN (H=F X
BHLUETE) HREEENA
KPR SRR -HE
BERBHENESE MA
BRXAERERM KL
B -UWIIFRFEHIAMNEM
ERNAEBEMNRTS AM
EaENSE EILTEHE
ENRREEEN S HH
WEBEm PO



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

BERTHHEHE @

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove
the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value,
less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see Notes 2(e) and 2(h)

(if)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental
deposits is accounted for separately from
the right-of-use assets in accordance
with the accounting policy applicable to
investments in debt securities carried at
amortised cost. Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of
the deposits is accounted for as additional
lease payments made and is included in the
cost of right-of-use assets.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EXZ:HE @

(Continued)

(9)

Leased assets (Continued)

()

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate,
or there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a change in the scope of a
lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (‘lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In
this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group
has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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T EE (®

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

()

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term
lease liabilities is determined as the present
value of contractual payments that are due
to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it
determines at lease inception whether each
lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in
accordance with Note 2(r).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor,
the sub-leases are classified as a finance
lease or as an operating lease with
reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease. If the head lease is
a short-term lease to which the Group
applies the exemption described in Note
2(9)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-
lease as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TR @

(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEEEREERIE
(i)  Credit losses from financial instruments () KELTHTARSHEENE
and contract assets BE5E
The Group recognises a loss allowance AEBMBHEEREASTEDN
for ECL on financial assets measured TMEBERGNEE (815
at amortised cost (including cash and RBERRELEEBEMURES

cash equivalents, and trade and other
receivables) and contract assets.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

REMBWRIE) NEBRE
EEEEDEEER-

TR BEE 1R 2518

FHEEEBEAGEEBEERN
BMEMEGLST - EEBBERE
RAERBRTEMRMNIEE
(PR EBEENRNANERDN
BEnkAEBFEFWE
WIREMzBWER) st=°

The expected cash shortfalls for trade MEREEBELR AES
and other receivables and contract assets REMEBTERGENEE

are discounted using the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof, where the effect of
discounting is material.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue
cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXEHHEKR (&

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from possible
default events within the 12 months
after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from all
possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which
the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on
these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors
and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of
a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held). The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

= failure to make payments on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; and
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXGHEER (B)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

and contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

(Continued)

- existing or forecast changes in
the market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or
a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as
past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECL amount
is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises
an impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in accordance
with Note 2(r)(ii) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(Continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired.
A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes the following observable
events:

- significant financial difficulties of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in payments;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or in
full) to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the
case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXEHHEKR (&

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments
and contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy (Continued)

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in
the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- prepayments for acquisitions of
property, plant and equipment; and

- investment in subsidiaries in the
Company’s statement of financial
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES2 ZAE:HHKE (B

(Continued)
(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (h) EEBREREERE 8
(Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) BFETEEERE (5
(Continued)
- Calculation of recoverable amount FTE Ao Z BB
The recoverable amount of an asset BEZOWEBEEAHE

is the greater of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset (for example,
head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash-generating unit
if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to
the smallest group of cash-generating
units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units)
on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable)
or value in use (if determinable).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXEHHEKR (&

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment of other non-current assets

(Continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

(i) Inventories and other contract costs

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for
sale in the ordinary course of business, in
the process of production for such sale or
in the form of materials or suppliers to be
consumed in the production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

A right to recover returned goods is
recognised for the right to recover products
from customers sold with a right of return.
It is measured in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 2(r)(i).

Other contract costs

Other contract costs are either the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract
with a customer or the costs to fulfil a
contract with a customer which are not
capitalised as inventories (see Note 2(i)(i)).

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract
are those costs that the Group incurs to
obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had
not been obtained e.g. an incremental sales
commission. Incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are capitalised when incurred if
the costs relate to revenue which will be
recognised in a future reporting period and
the costs are expected to be recovered.
Other costs of obtaining a contract are
expensed when incurred.

152 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEXI#SENtARAT

2

EXEHEER (B)

(i)

=8

(i)

(ii)

REMEHMAE (&)

FE (&)

HEGFER ZSEEZER
EETEAEREKAERITZH
BMAERAEBAZ TAEE
WRERRIFEZLE R
FECZFIBEBRIEBHYEETMH
B IR R RN RS
AREZ - MBERNEES Z &
Cl# B EREDZBE AR
RAECIIERIZEEHE
B o

KEIRENEFNZIEHBE
ERMNE R EWE E & #
bl °$ETJ’EM]“=E\2( YR E B
BRETTE

Poyi=y )%

Hth &M AR EREER
WENHBREMANETH
ERPHNEMNNME BN
rUEEREFEG (RHEE2()
() MEIEE & o

ERGNNEERERLTE
BESHEEFPNGHNMESE
WZERE (HERERS
MATEEEZFMAE) >
Bl 18 8 5 & R o i B A&
B2 % IS R 2R ¥R 5 HA P9 BE SR
W@ B AESGEAON
MENRATRELEREBFE
A B ATAHR W E - ERF
BHNEMBRETEREERX
i o



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXEHHEKR (&

() Inventories and other contract costs
(Continued)

(i)

Other contract costs (Continued)

Costs to fulfil a contract are capitalised
if the costs relate directly to an existing
contract or to a specifically identifiable
anticipated contract; generate or enhance
resources that will be used to provide
goods or services in the future; and are
expected to be recovered. Costs that relate
directly to an existing contract or to a
specifically identifiable anticipated contract
may include direct labour, direct materials,
allocations of costs, costs that are explicitly
chargeable to the customer and other
costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract. Other
costs of fulfilling a contract, which are not
capitalised as inventories are expensed as
incurred.

Capitalised contract costs are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Impairment losses
are recognised to the extent that the
carrying amount of the contract cost asset
exceeds the net of (i) remaining amount
of consideration that the Group expects
to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates, less (ii)
any costs that relate directly to providing
those goods or services that have not yet
been recognised as expenses.

Amortisation of capitalised contract costs is
charged to profit or loss when the revenue
to which the asset relates is recognised.
The accounting policy for revenue
recognition is set out in Note 2(r).
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

)

(k)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see Note 2(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECLs in
accordance with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i)
and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional
(see Note 2(k)).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see Note 2(r)).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see Note
2(k)).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability
is presented. For multiple contracts, contract
assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see
Note 2(j)).
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

(Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant financing
component and other receivables are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method and
including allowance for credit losses (see Note

2(n) ().

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for ECL in accordance
with the policy set out in Note 2(h)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition,
trade and other payables are stated at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost, using an effective interest method. Interest
expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see Note 2(u)).
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(ii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(p)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided that they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of
reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is
probable that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

158 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FREIXI#SENtARAT

BX

(p)

BB ()

FRIGIR (%)
BREERBEERERHNDH
PSNBEREETETESTFRE
KRN EEHER (EHILIF
EHEHN D) BERBEREE
WEREZE UKRHNBLATK
ENHMERSEZHENBRERRRE
B PRI A< & B ) 4 ) 55 2] B
BERAERE RS KA EEER
ZERE, HMERIHRERE AR
RBIBEM KRR ERE IR Z 88 -

ERIBELERENEBRREE
REREEBENERERAER
TR ERARREHREENH
BEELEEMHNRXFE - ELE
MEBEERBEHATIE-

BRIERMBEENREETESR
SHARTUER EAAHFAE
THERR N ALUENAEBR
Ham Ao ANREERBEBEERN
REE - EEARHERN &
F R LU0 > R B B PR 40 R B &
B

BP HA % T8 45 AR R I SIE AR A AE AR ML
REBRE® THoRE5BETE
EREH - ERA2TNEEER
B A G A58 fl 31T BY R A LLA BD
HREEERBEANAREBEERE
mEBEf &MU TEIMEAE BB
MEEESFANHAREE G
Mo BEERBEEESJREL
MIERERKH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

EXGHEER (B)

(p) Income tax (Continued)

in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities and
onerous contracts

(i)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EAEiHE (&)

(Continued)
(@) Provisions and contingent liabilities and () BE-HEFEEBEREESHN @

onerous contracts (Continued)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities (i) HBERIGAEE B
(Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow FLE = H 5l B&HE W =
of economic benefits will be required, or MEHNEE R HEES
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, ERTEFEHT FENMGEE
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent BEEREHREEEEAR
liability, unless the probability of outflow REBEBE BNEKENED
of economic benefits is remote. Possible B SE M AR R B BR Sh o 8 B E
obligations, whose existence will only EERFERTHZIFEERKRSE
be confirmed by the occurrence or non- HREELETEEERSE
occurrence of one or more future events BTN ERFEBEAAREE
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities B 4% 77 2% & o H BY BT SE M AR
unless the probability of outflow of R BUBR SN ©
economic benefits is remote.
Where some or all of the expenditure WRBEE—ZFEBETMEN
required to settle a provision is expected to BoX2BEZHBEFBERS
be reimbursed by another party, a separate —FEEZE > HKFTTUE
asset is recognised for any expected ETENETANEHEERBER
reimbursement that would be virtually —BEBNEE-BIAWE
certain. The amount recognised for the NEBEUERNIEBDSEES
reimbursement is limited to the carrying fR o
amount of the provision.

(i) Onerous contracts (i) BES#H

An onerous contract exists when the Group
has a contract under which the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the
contract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are
measured at the present value of the lower
of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract
includes both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract and an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract.

160 CHINA TIANRUI AUTOMOTIVE INTERIORS CO., LTD FEXI#SENtARAT

EXEHTLGRAF BT
CIEE L RN N
BEARSRATESNEE
Mo BABEEN -BES
B B 1R R4 L& R AY TR 31
PR A FFE 1T & R B9 % Al A 1
REENRERBE-ET
RN ABREERETER
WEEMA  WBEEEET
G R B AR EMARE
paliv



2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

(Continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue
transactions and recognises revenue on a gross
basis, including the sale of automotive interior
and exterior decorative components and parts
that are sourced externally. In determining
whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of
the products before they are transferred to the
customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of
the remaining benefits from the products.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is recognised when control over a
product is transferred to the customer, at
the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value added
tax or other sales taxes.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)
EAEHBR ()

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)
(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(i) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
(a) Sale of automotive interior and exterior
decorative components and parts
Revenue is recognised when goods
are delivered at the customers’
premises, the customers take
possession of and accept the
products, which is taken to be the
point in time when the Group transfers
control over the products to the
customers. If the products are a
partial fulfilment of a contract covering
other goods, then the amount of
revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction
price under the contract, allocated
between all the goods promised under
the contract on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(ii) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the asset. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset (see Note 2(h)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iiij Government grants
Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as other income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income
and consequently recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the useful
life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
The transaction date is the date on which the
Group initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities.
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)

(s)

®

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated
into RMB, the Group’s reporting currency,
at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items are translated into RMB at
the closing foreign exchange rates at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the year in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the
Group has sufficient resources and the intention
to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials,
direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing costs (see Note 2(u)),
where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 2(h)(ii)). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

(Continued)

(u)

(v)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if

that person:
()  has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of the
Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:
(i)  the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(Continued)
(v) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity);

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that individual in their dealings with the
entity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

(Continued)

(w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

EXEHHEKR (&

(W) ZEiEE

KEDBENELMBREER
ZEDBBEEZBE  HRERD
RERTFTEAEBRSEBRMED
BRILGEEMERRETEE
EEeEBEEAEMNMBEMNT
FERE ©

MY BE2BEMS KRIEDHRE
FUEERRARETERMEE £
EREME -FREMNERN A
FOPRERNAEREEREN
MESEEL SR EREKRE
ENEHAGETEHFE @5
FEANKEDL WIS LA
ABORE QD] ETEHAR-

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of financial
instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

5t HI BR K {5t

MEE24H I AERERITIAERAENR
RERHEBRBAZRNER - G5t FHBR
ENEMEZRRNOT !
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)
5t H B (k5 @

3

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES 3

(Continued)

(a)

Impairment losses for non-current assets

If circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of a non-current asset may not be
recoverable, the asset may be considered
“impaired”, and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with accounting
policy for impairment of non-current assets
as described in Note 2(h)(ii). These assets are
tested for impairment whenever the events
or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. When such a decline has occurred,
the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater
of the fair value less costs of disposal and
the value in use. In determining the value in
use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgement
relating to the level of revenue and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of the level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the recoverable amount of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal
of impairment in future years.
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

o 5 0 R R 5 3 ()

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit loss allowance for trade receivables
Loss allowance for trade receivables is based
on assumptions about the expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
expected credit loss estimation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in these
assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the result of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make additional impairment charge
to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values, if any. The
Group reviews the estimated useful lives and
residual values, if any, of the property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to determine the
amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values, if any,
are based on historical experience with similar
assets after taking into account the anticipated
changes on how such assets are to be deployed
in the future. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

(b)

(c)

BESRURENGEEGRER

BEPRBRENGEREFDER
ERRHBERERNBR -A5H
RAE & ERREHAAE E A E
TEERAGEBERGFNE A
B ERNFTERBEENEL IR
ERNMmRRERSHAROREMN
Gt RFERRNGSHNESF
EEHILEREREAFE B
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5 65 A 48 B0 BT A {2 51 I AR B
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BESGAME R RRED
o 5t A1 5 B A R I AR E 4 (WO
B) o LU E B E 17 3 & 39 7 7 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARDEE®RS
(a) Revenue (a) WA
The Group is principally engaged in the AEBEIERESREANIIENRS
manufacture and sale of automotive interior BHNERHEE FRAERE
and exterior decorative components and parts. BEBEWNE—STEBRHEL(D)
Further details regarding the Group’s principal o

activities are disclosed in Note 4(b).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with RIZERHETREHNZRAS
customers by major products is as follows: A N
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBT T

Revenue from contracts with EEREMBREEL

customers within the scope BAGEEHENHEE

of IFRS 15 BIIAHNZBAN
Disaggregated by major products: BIEERHE:
- Sales of heavy trucks’ decorative — - SR KBTI

components and parts 151,582 269,196
— Sales of passenger vehicles’ —3H & I A B AL B = B0 4

decorative components and parts 24,512 26,580

176,094 295,776

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with U A T 58 B B RO Mt g T 45 0 48
customers by the timing of revenue recognition BEEEITSHNZWA DR
and by geographic markets is disclosed in Notes FE4(b) (i) R4 (b)(iii)# & -

4(b)(i) and 4(b)(iii) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

WARDE RS @)

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

The Group’s customers with which transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenue are
set out below:

Customer A BEA
Customer B ZFB
Customer C =RC

(a)

KA (@)
AEBRZXZBBEANERIKA
10%MERLHIWT :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
100,936 169,892
42,660 88,643
21,582 18,949

Details of concentration of credit risk rising from
the Group’s customers are set out in Note 24(a).

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by products.
In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the
following reportable segments.

- Heavy trucks’ decorative components and
parts: this segment includes primarily the
research, development, manufacture and
sale of decorative components and parts to
be installed in heavy trucks.

- Passenger vehicles’ decorative
components and parts: this segment
includes primarily the research,
development, manufacture and sale of
decorative components and parts to be
installed in passenger vehicles.

(b)

EEEFREERRERBTHNK
04(a) o

DEBER S

FEBEREMDBEEHER-
mERNFAERRSTHREERR
HEBRNERUDEE R KT
FEZFA B TEEHBEER
DU mfE 7] 2 388 79 26 - 8 % & &
KEDE LERTINTERD

BB o

- ERRBEGTHEZH
BEIBOERENEL S
B 4 85 3 4 OB B £
R il 8 o

- FRAEEHTNMN: ZD
TEORZENKAENE
BT BRI E 2 £ E KR8
= o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WAERSBHRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DTS (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREE

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
and revenue generated by those segments
and direct expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure and revenue used
for reporting segment result is gross profit.
No inter-segment sales have occurred for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021. Assistance provided by one segment
to another, including sharing of assets and
technical know-how, is not measured.

The Group’s other operating expenses,
including other loss/income, selling and
administration expenses and finance costs,
and assets and liabilities are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly,
neither information on segment assets and
liabilities nor information concerning capital
expenditure, interest income and interest
expenses is presented.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers by the timing of revenue
recognition, as well as information
regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out
below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WARSWHRE @)

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DS (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREE (S
(Continued)

2022

Heavy Passenger

trucks’ vehicles’

decorative decorative

components components
and parts and parts Total

SR KH FHE
SCE &R 14 &< i Z &6 4 45t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT AR®BFT

Revenue recognised at X —FFRIZE
a point in time from MRk B I E
external customers BEEZIWA 151,582 24,512 176,094

Reportable segment A 2D EEF]
gross profit 11,122 1,553 12,675
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

4 WARSHBHRSE @

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(b) IS (@)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () DEEE BEREE (&
(Continued)
2021
Heavy Passenger
trucks’ vehicles’
decorative decorative
components components
and parts and parts Total
ERithy =] A E
SEEZ B 14 FEEN AL 14 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AR#FT AR#F T
Revenue recognised at 7 & —FF 24
a point in time from TS0 5k B SR
external customers BERZWA 269,196 26,580 295,776
Reportable segment AE2RDHEF
gross profit 67,852 2,701 70,553
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4

(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

WARDE RS @)

(b)

SERER S ()

(i) Reconciliation of reportable segment (i) A2 EEm ZHER
profit or loss
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Total reportable segment 2RO EEF4EEE
gross profit 12,675 70,553
Other income Hr N 3,000 3,901
Selling and distribution HE B
expenses (3,774) (9,011)
Administrative expenses THRAX (33,096) (47,128)
Impairment losses reversed on B 5 W ERIFE
trade and other receivables Sk} 60 31
Finance costs R T AL A (9,198) (9,409)
Consolidated (loss)/profit el T
before taxation (B518) /w7 (30,333) 8,937
Geographic information (iii) HIHEH

(iii)

The Group’s revenue is substantially
generated from the sales of automotive
interior and exterior decorative components
and parts in the PRC. The Group’s
business is substantially conducted in the
PRC. Accordingly, no segment analysis
based on geographical locations of the
customers and assets is provided.

FEEBNBAZTZRENF
B 8H &R E RSN BE T B
F-AEBZEBTEZMURN
PRI WEEHRZER
REENMBAUEETHND
B AT

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2022

175



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sEBHE 4b » U A R 5 R)

5 OTHER INCOME 5 HthgA
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Government grants (including amortisation EFF# B (B 3EkH sE224h

of deferred income in Note 22) E T R 2 B9 4 8H) 2,783 2,716

Net gain on sales of scrap materials HERREBRNER
Z R IFEE 336 561
Interest income IFSYION 326 357

Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BB NRE
plant and equipment =L ¥ (320) (114)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains ER (B518) /W= 328 (125) 381
3,000 3,901

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

6 [RWRAT (5B18) EF
B A (B538) E A R0 (5t

A)UTEBEEEH
(a) Finance costs (a) BT Z&

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Interests on bank and other loans RITREMERFE 9,165 9,309
Interest on lease liabilities HESEME 33 100
9,198 9,409

No borrowing costs have been capitalised during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:

Nil).

§E§2O225E12)%81 HiESFE > #]
EERREAWERE (202145
AE%%EW

RMB
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BR¥AT (B518) &A@
(b) Staff costs* (b) E IRz

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTF T AREBETFIT

Salaries, wages and other benefits e -TEREMEN 38,980 47,662
Contributions to defined contribution FE 2R ik 5t 2 =X

retirement plan 2,793 3,024

41,773 50,686

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong)
participate in the defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local government
authority, whereby the subsidiaries are required
to contribute to the scheme at a rate of 16% of
the employees’ basic salaries. Employees of the
subsidiaries are entitled to retirement benefits,
calculated based on a percentage of the average
salaries level in the PRC (excluding Hong Kong),
from the above-mentioned retirement plan at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$”) 30,000. Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further material obligation for
payment of other retirement benefits beyond the
above contributions.

FERRPR (FEEEB) I
BNEARNEESZ2MEE MK
FRERFIEEMN R EHRERAKER
SHECBIE ZEMEBLARERE
EEKRFHEH16%MA 5 8 /F H it
Mo EMBLrENEEETEE
HEFRARFRFEESZTE LK
BAGEZDPE (FTREFTA) ¥
HHEBEBKE-—EBDLEFENE
AR e

FEBRBEEERFME AR
BEASERBETBREREELE
BzEERIL®BMEQRESEE
(MraEE5t8)) - BEEEHA
WISt AN BEEBRHMREBAKG
Bo-RiEREEsts BEXRHERE
EEXEBEREEEHEBKRAZS%M
SEIER  BEREBEAWRAZ LR
# B ¥30,0007T ° 5t & Z AN
B 5 B o

Br LA RSN AE B MRS A
HBRABANEMERTE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

6 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BR®MAI (518 &M @)
(c) Other items (c) HhigaH
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Amortisation” i Eichy 415 192
Depreciation charge* (Note 11) rELZE (FYEE11)
- owned property, plant and -BEBEYE BENRZRE
equipment 32,393 25,472
— right-of-use assets -FREEE 775 775
33,583 26,439
Impairment losses on FEMEERBEER
non-financial assets
— property, plant and equipment —ME-WENZE
(Note 11(a)) (FF5E11) 222 -
Auditors’ remuneration Z EEM B &=
- audit service -EHRT 1,800 1,800
Research and development costs Bff 82 B A< 12,151 20,139
Cost of inventories’ (Note 13(b)) FEM A" (Mi5E13(b)) 163,419 225,223
# Cost of inventories includes RMB49,675,000 # FERABEERAEINA ITE
(2021: RMB46,749,000) relating to staff costs, and KB HF S AR #49,675,0007T
depreciation and amortisation expenses, which (20214 : AR ¥46,749,0007T) °
amount is also included in the respective total BERSBENTHALXYXBTREZS
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note BRI MzE6(b) 225K 487
6(b) for each of these types of expenses. s
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #AEZXRANFER

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HFEEHFRAWIRIAE !
profit or loss represents:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT

Current taxation (Note 21(a)): BNEAFR IE (MizE21(a)) :
Provision fortheyear ___________&W#Ef& _______________________ . Lot
Deferred taxation (Note 21(b)): IEERIE (MisE21(b)) :
- Origination and reversal of -H R ERENE S R ED
temporary differences (4,323) (723)
- Effect on deferred tax balances -B1A1HERR X &Y
at 1 January resulting from a IEIEFR AR RN R &
change in tax rate (Notes (iv) (P 5% (iv) ~ 21(b))
and 21(b)) - 415
_______________________________ ey (309
(4,323) 1,608
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 #&8EZXRAMNRER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between actual tax expense (b) MEAREABEZERRIERSZH
and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax GEtiaEF ZHER ¢
rates:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRIRAT (B548) R (30,333) 8,937
Expected tax on profit before BERNARENE#E HT
taxation, calculated at the rates ZMEFE Z BRI ATEF]
applicable to profits in the 2 TEHRIR 1B
jurisdictions concerned (B i) ~ (i) Rz (i)
(Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (7,361) 2,592
Tax effect of non-deductible items AaNREE 2 RNIBEE 77 415
Tax effect on preferential tax rate BERXREZE
(Notes (iv) and (v)) (B 3£ (iv) ~ (v)) 4,612 493
Tax effect on bonus deduction of HWRER A ZINEHEN
research and development costs RIBFRE (MIE(vi)
(Note (vi)) (1,983) (4,148)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERERDIEIEFTER
recognised BEEDN 332 491
Withholding tax on distributed DERFIINRN T E
earnings - 1,350
Effect on deferred tax balances at E1B1HERREESHH
1 January resulting from a change BIEMRAERREN T &
in tax rate (Notes (iv) and 21(b)) (P 5% (iv) ~ 21 (b)) - 415
Income tax BRREFS (4,323) 1,608
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation between actual tax expense
and accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax

rates: (Continued)
Notes:

(i) The Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and the subsidiary of the Group incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) are not
subject to any income tax pursuant to the rules
and regulations of their respective countries of
incorporation.

(ii) The subsidiary of the Group incorporated in Hong
Kong is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% for the year ended 31 December 2022
(2021: 16.5%). The entity did not have assessable
profits which is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB Nil).

(i) The subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) are subject to PRC
Corporate Income Tax rate at 25% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: 25%).

(iv)  Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the tax bureaux
in 2021 that they are entitled to tax benefits
applicable to entities under the Third Phase of the
Western Region Development Plan of the PRC,
and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate Income
Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from 2021
to 2030.

(v)  The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law allows
enterprises to apply for certificate of “High and
New Technology Enterprise” (“HNTE”) which
entitles the qualified companies to a preferential
income tax rate of 15%, subject to fulfilment of
the recognition criteria. Xi’an Tianrui Automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd. (“Xi'an Tianrui”), a subsidiary
of the Group, is qualified as a HNTE and the
qualification is valid for three years from 2022 to
2025.

(vij  According to the relevant tax rules in the PRC,
qualified research and development costs, are
allowed for bonus deduction for income tax
purpose, i.e. an additional 100% (2021: 100%) of
such expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.

7 REHE@mRANRT/R @

(b) RERBREXAEZERRERSZHA
gstEAZHAR (@

B 5k -

() TEHEHESEMRNIZEATRE
EENEBRERES HEERE
51) M2 B AR BRRE
HE BB R ER KRG SR
ERFIER

(i) #E2022F12831HILFE > &
EERERBEMAILIZMBEAR
BI16.5% 2 MELME BFBR
(20214F : 16.5%) o H E20224F
12B31BILEE  ZE AR HMEE
EBEBMEBFERNERERER
(2021F : ARMEZ D) ©

(i) B E2022F12831HILFEE > k&
ERHE CREEEB) I HHE
NE)BH25% 2 M EM P E %
FTi578 (20214 : 25%) ©

vy FEBETEPEMIZNEAF
R2021FRFAEEFTEREN
B ARESBERARPEAENK
FREtBE T 2ERZEBAR
BR % WH2021F E2030F EF
ER15% 2 BERPEHEEMSRR
%O

V) (RECEMSIRE) AFFERER
Flamkih® (MMt
FNES LESSEREENE
REEMBINEKI% EATS
DRE-AEE-—HNBARAZR
RIAEREHAERAR ((BAEX
) MeasRRimtEE® BA
FAE K B2022F £2025F REA=
FAEM-

Vi) REBPREBRUGETE ST
B2 B] BEFr 1S/ B i Z 0 5t 1K
> B2 E R MU%BSIM00% (2021
£ 1 100%) AJ {2 ERIKI0RE L ©

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2022

181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEWM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BESFSEQAIDEHEISI(1)E KA T
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and (FEEEMNZEN) RAUF2WIFE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information NESHMOT -

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

2022
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses contributions Total
EEN
2R Rkt
EEfg BNEH RiEEa e @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive directors HoES
Mr Hou Jianli RERLE 180 - 82 41 309
Ms Hou Yuxi (resigned on ERERL (#2022F
7 November 2022) 11ATHEE) 150 - 102 12 264
Mr Xu Yunhua (appointed on FERLE (P202F
7 November 2022) 11A7RE®H) 30 - 2 5 56

Independent non-executive directors ~ BIFHITES

Mr Zhu Honggiang PN IE-bs 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu BiRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr Chen Geng BULE 80 - - - 80

600 - 205 64 869
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Notes to the Consolidated

For the year ended 31 December 2022
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 7 5£ B

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EIEM=:w
2021
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in-kind bonuses  contributions Total
Fe
2R BirstEl
Yk L BETEA e st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEBTR AEBTT ARETT ARETR BT

Executive directors Hi7ES
Mr Hou Jianli FEREE 180 5 89 51 320
Ms Hou Yuxi ERATL 180 5 86 11 277

Independent non-executive directors  BUIFHITES

Mr Zhu Honggiang PNIE b 80 - - - 80
Mr Zhou Genshu BRELE 80 - - - 80
Mr Chen Geng BUALE 80 - - - 80

600 - 175 62 837




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sEBHE 4b » U A R 5 R)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9 EBEHMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, AREEHFATFRARE=ZS (2021
three (2021: two) are directors whose emoluments are F MB)EFT HMEBERER
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments MeFse e NFEHIBE  HEM A
in respect of the other two (2021: three) individuals (2021F | =Z%&) A EFHMMEED
are as follows: T
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBT T

Salaries and other emoluments e REMMNE 630 953
Retirement scheme contributions BIREHEMER 64 112

694 1,065
The emoluments of the individuals who are not AEBREEEHFALTHRLIEEEDN
directors and who are amongst the five highest paid ATHHFEMARUTEHEER :

individuals of the Group are within the following band:

2022 2021
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) Nil to ZTHE T E 1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,000 2 3
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10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share (a)
The calculation of basic loss per share for

year ended 31 December 2022 is based on

the loss attributable to equity shareholders

of the Company of RMB26,010,000 (2021:

profit attributable to equity shareholders of the

Company RMB7,329,000) and the weighted

average of 2,000,000,000 (2021: 2,000,000,000)

ordinary shares.

The calculation of the weighted average number
of ordinary shares are as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 18A1B&TEER

10 Sk (B8R &BF

SREX (5FE) B

B E2022F12831HIEFEEESK
BEXABBELIRBREAADEERESR
REELEE AR K26,010,000
(20215 | EBRERTRE
FEhm A AR #7,329,0007T)
RBEITZERKRNMEFEHH
2,000,000,000p/% (20214 :
2,000,000,000)f%) st BB H -

EEROMEFHHEFEDOT

2022 2021

2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000

Weighted average number of 12831 B E@K
ordinary shares at 31 December FHE 2,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share (b) =REE (FE) BF

There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

HE2022F K2021F12831H
LEE EBTHEERMD-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERRE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) BREEHER
Land-use-right Motor vehicles
Plant and leased for ~ Machinery and and other ~ Construction in
buildings 0Wn Use equipment Moulds equipment progress Total
BfrEAN
FERET  IHBEE  BEREE BE HEREMRE ERIR 5

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVIB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARMTR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARBTR ARETR

Cost; ik

At 1 January 2021 byl 69,741 9,486 53,575 84,779 10,457 14,798 242,836
Additions HE 190 - 8,722 44,306 1,084 7,59 61,897
Transfer in{ou] g)/(24) 2,461 - 8,029 431 917 (15,779) -
Disposals tE - - (140) (1,706) 877) - 275
At 31 December 202 HoE12831R 130 9486 016 13175t 1 6 b6t 302000
Accumulated depreciation: 2itHE:

At January 2001 o011 A1 (11,579 (412 (16,859) 97,154 (4584 - M1
Charge for the year Epgih 2,208 206) (5.975) (16,259) (1515) - (26,247)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 9% 1,255 79 - 2072
At 31 December 2021 12021 E128318 (13,874) (618) (24,765) (52,152) (5,680) - (97,089
Carrying amount; KaE:

At 31 December 2021 120215128318 58,518 8,368 4540 79,599 5,301 6,614 204,91

Cost: ik

At 1 January 2022 R02E1E1R 12,392 9,486 70,186 131,751 11,581 6,614 302,010
Additions HE 9% - 5,454 16,514 706 1,280 24,052
Transfer inflout) g)/(24) - - 17 6,427 - (6,444) -
Disposals HE - - - (210) (504) - (14
At 31 Decemter 2022 Ha0o2E 12831 12480 9486 BT 1644 11,763 1450 325288

Accumulated depreciation: FiHE:

A1 Jenvary 2022 1202221 A1 (13874 o) T ) (5680) - (07,089
Cherge for te year ERgH 179) (206 ) (1571) - (33,168)
Impairment loss ABEL - - - (229) - = (229)
Writen back on disposals HERED - - - 248 183 - 491

At 31 December 2022 12022%127318 (16,053) (624) (31,983) (74,120) (7,068) - (130,048)
Carrying amount: REf:

At 31 December 2022 120226128318 56,437 8,662 43,674 80,302 4715 1,450 195,240
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

11 YE-BERRLRE @

(b)

EREEE

RERMEERMNEIDZERAREE

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: ERmFEDNTAOT :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EF T AEBFT
Land-use-right leased for own use FHEE R L ih(E R 8,662 8,868
Plant and buildings 5 B i 5 763 1,328
9,425 10,196

The analysis of expense items in relation to

HEREmERNEAERRNRAX

leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BESMWOT :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBTT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use  ZIEFAEEERE HH
assets by class of underlying asset: (FEEEERESLH
Land-use-right leased for own use T 7E B A AY 4 3t (65 AR A 206 206
Plant and buildings B R i T 569 569
775 775
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 6(a)) FHE&EH 2 (MsE6(a)) 33 100
Expense relating to short-term FRHARE R H M EER
leases and other leases B 23 16

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities

are set out in Note 20.

EMAEERNIHBE DT 25
BB 2EMNE200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)
12 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Percentage of ownership interest

EELE b
Place and date of Particulars of The Group's
establishment/ registered/issued and  effective Held by the Held by a
Name of subsidiaries incorporation/operation paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary  Principal activities
AL/ i/ BETR FEE  FA8  HWELR
HEATLH GENURRM  4RAKEE gERE  #F BE 1EEE
Baoji Qinrui Automotive Interiors The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive
Co., Ltd. (BEEHESENME 24 July 2019 interior and exterior decorative
BRAT)" components and parts
BERRAEMNEERAT TE AR 20,000,007 100% - 100% HERMEHBHHRERHE
2019578248
Xi'an Tianrui Automotive Interiors The PRC RMB100,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive
Co., Ltd. (RZRIFSER 22 May 2009 interior and exterior decorative
HEARAT)" components and parts
REXEAERHHERAT T K %100,000,00070 100% - 100% HERMEHEHARERHE
200958228
Baoji Ruitong Automotive The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Manufacture and sale of automotive
Interiors Co., Ltd. (B%HE 24 September 2020 interior and exterior decorative
SENGEARAT) components and parts
EZRBAENNEERRT TE AR 20,000,007 100% - 100% HERMEHBHERERHE
202059524H
Xi'an Chuangzhiyun Technology  The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  The network and information
Co., Ltd. (AREIZERH 18 June 2021 security software development
BRAF)" and Information system integration
services
RZEZENRERA ! mE AR H1,000,0007 100% - 100% REEEEZR BABEER
202168 18A
Baoji Chengderuitai Supply Co., The PRC RMB1,000,000 100% - 100%  General transportation services
Ud. (BEEHESREMRRE 23 June 2021
ERAE)"
BRIEHRUREERAT T AR 1,000,007 100% - 100% EHRE
202168234
Shaanxi Zhenrui Auto Parts Co., The PRC RMB5,000,000 55% - 55%  Mold manufacturing and mold sales
L, (REZRSENF 19 May 2022
BRAF)"
REERAESEERAT  HE AR 5,000,000 5% - 55% EAMEBAEAHE
202258198
Ryford Holding Limited ** BYI United States Dollars 100% 100% - Investment holding
5 May 2017 (USD") 100, 100
shares of USD 1 each
Ryford Holding Limited ** EBRYEE ETI00RERAEIZR 100% 100% - REER
201785850 Bkt
Tianrui International Holdings ~ Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Limited ** 13 June 2017
KhERERERAE" oy 1,000% B 100% - 100% HEER
2017E6H 130
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

12 ﬁ"[‘ﬁ% NEIE:SES =0 )

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
The English translation of the name is for identification
only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese. This
entity is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
in the PRC.

*k

These companies are limited liability companies
incorporated outside of the PRC.

INVENTORIES
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise:

*k

13 #&

(a)

E;

2B 77 %82 TS BEOCRE X AE

E'J ZEERTEEMBIIEEERE-

ZEARAETEBNEBRINS R
AT

TEMBRARPNEFEEEEUT
BIE

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AEBTT

Raw materials and consumables B K X 55 10,184 12,908
Work in progress T8 & 4,818 7,966
Finished goods B @ 38,191 39,350

53,193 60,224

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss is as
follows:

(b)

BESARXLFAGSHEARN

ﬁl

FEONWT -

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AEBTT

Carrying amount of inventories sold BHEFSENEREE 163,284 225,223
Write down of inventories FEHEBERE 135 -
163,419 225,223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 14 BF5RWRRIEREKRER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Trade receivables, B 5 W IE
net of loss allowance (0 BrEEEH) 85,700 73,388
Bills receivables EWELE 39,600 92,742
125,300 166,130
All of the trade and bills receivables, net of loss FIEESZERFEBERERZERE KRR
allowance for doubtful debts (if any), are expected to REHE (WAE)) Bt —FRKEe
be recovered within one year.
(a) Ageing analysis (a) BEREZ A
At the end of reporting period, the ageing REBEEHARERFTEBLR (WA
analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on HMREE (WRE)) RAREEE
the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, ENEZRERUREREREZERR
if earlier) and net of loss allowance, is as follows: BomaT
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Less than 3 months 31E B AP 94,438 126,820
3 to 6 months 3ME B =618 8 14,888 23,556
6 to 12 months 618 B = 1218 B 15,974 11,516
more than 1 year 1F L E - 4,238
125,300 166,130
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and EHAEEGERKXRE S EIW
credit risk arising from trade and bills receivables TERERNEEREEENEERRE
are set out in Note 24(a). HE—FTEBETDEHRHEE24(a)©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

14 BS5EBRKMRIERERERE @

14 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Transfer of financial assets

The Group receives short-term bank acceptance
notes from its customers as a method of
settlement of goods sold. These notes entitle
the Group to receive the full face values from
the issuing banks upon the maturities of these
notes, which generally range from 3 to 6 months
from the dates of issuance.

At 31 December 2022, the Group had
discounted certain of the bank acceptance notes
and endorsed certain of the bank acceptance
notes to its suppliers and other creditors for
settlement of the Group’s trade and other
payables on a full recourse basis. Upon the
above discounting or endorsement, the Group
has derecognised the bills receivables in their
entirety. These derecognised bank acceptance
notes have maturity dates of less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of these
notes and has discharged its obligation of the
payables to its suppliers and other creditors.
The Group assessed that the discounted and
endorsed bank acceptance notes were issued
by highly-rated issuing banks, the credit risks
were relatively insignificant and the Group was
not exposed to the relative interest risk. At 31
December 2022, the Group’s maximum exposure
to loss and undiscounted cash outflow should
the issuing banks fail to settle the bills on
maturity dates amounted to RMB37,364,000
(2021: RMB47,093,000).

(b)

HRTmEE
AEBBHZ R NIRRT A
RERFAEEE RN —RBEER
BE-ERERTAEEEF
URZzEREIHKKRIAZIR
THE2EEE 2FE2E—KE
MEHBES2HHAIMEE E6E
H o

R2022F12B31H  xEERE
FTHROTOAREZET TR I
mMEMEEREMEEASSSE
FTHROARTEZ URTE2ER
BEEEEAERANEZENR
BREMEMRIE - FU LT
BIRFBFER AEBBEE2ITR
ERBEWRERE ZEEWHKLE
BMEBENETARTEZMNIHHS
REPREFARBANEA o AR
BEERA LAEECHEHBEZSE
EENMAERNEARIT SRR K
B3k W B B 1T HHER KAt
BERANAREE e REBTE
EHBEAREEEZERTAREZH
BT ANBEERTET EER
Sl o NS i ST
BRI X @ fR o i¥2022F 12831
H>WHRAERTHRIEHERES
BEERCAAEENRABLR
AERBERAHERERBARIEZES A
R #37,364,0005T (20214 : A
R #47,093,0007T) °©

ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2022

191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

15 PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 FEREREMEKRIE
(a) Prepayments for acquisitions of property, (a) BEVE - BRERREWFEMCTRIE

plant and equipment

The amount at 31 December 2022 represents
prepayments for the Group’s contracted
procurement of moulds and machinery.

R2022F12B31HMNRIEEEKAE
BT UG BEREENKBENTE
FFRIE -

(b) Prepayments and other receivables (b) FE(TFRIER EMhFE KIS

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFT

Advances to staff EI=REE 1,086 1,002

Others Hith 956 832
Financial assets measured at REHEMASTTENEMEE

amortised cost 2,042 1,834

Prepaid income tax R IS = 2,314

Prepayments for purchase of raw REEREM R TEN RIS

materials 15,912 22,677

Other miscellaneous prepayments HMWEBEENR 2,942 2,536

Value-added tax to be deducted FIRINEER 195 1,205

19,049 28,732

21,091 30,566

All of the above prepayments and other
receivables as at 31 December 2022 are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 fHR{TERFHEREUREMRESRE
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

Cash at bank and on hand comprise:

Cash at bank and on hand
Restricted bank deposits (Note (i)

'
(a) RITRFERETEIE:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARET T

RITRFEREE 78,495 62,538
ZPRAIIRITERR (PIE(®)) 27,996 38,312

Cash at bank and on hand in the

RiEaHHBRRERART

consolidated statement of financial RFHEREE
position 106,491 100,850
Less: restricted bank deposits B ZREIRITER BIEE@)
(Note (i) (27,996) (38,312)
Cash and cash equivalents in the RixERERERNES
consolidated cash flow statement NIBEEBY 78,495 62,538

The Group’s operation in the PRC (excluding
Hong Kong SAR) conducted its business in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong SAR) is subject to the

FEERGE (FEBRFHNTHE
PROM) RENEBUAREER -
ARBILIFATEHRBRER &
ETELTE (FBRHITHRER
) ZE % o B BT B A0 B9 Sb BE FR

exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC i o
government.
Note: MI5E -

(i) At the end of the reporting period, bank deposits
are pledged as guarantees for bank acceptance

bills issued by the Group.

() HREPRBOTERRIRIRESE
EEBTZRITARERMNER
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 &%ﬁiﬁﬁu&ﬁﬂﬂiﬁﬁ mE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) ﬁ#ﬂf

(b) Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising (b) nﬁlﬁé@éiﬂﬁﬁé&ﬁﬁﬂ’]“@]
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s TERERNAEEREITHMEE
assets and liabilities from financing activities, EMBENEE OFERERIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Hes@sH MEETHMESAEE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are HeEREAEXARRERERNE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future EENGERERERTDES
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s MEGTHMERERENEGE-

consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows
from financing activities.

Liabilities
8f
Bank and Interest Lease
other loans payable liabilities Total
HITR
HtER FEftHE fHgaf s

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTR  ARETR ARBTR  ARRTR

(Note17) (Note20)
(HzE17) (Kt5t20)
At 1 January 2022 1*202251R1A 133,834 - 878 134,712
Changes from financing cash flows: HEREREEH .
Proceeds from bank and other loans BONEMERFRETE 97,500 - - 97,500
Repayment of bank and other loans BEROLEMES (100,853) - - (100,853)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEEBEAEERNE - = (339) (339)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HESEREBENE - - (33) (33)
Interest paid BFIE - (9,165 - (9,165
Totel changes fiom fancing cash fows _______ BRREAERDRE ase ____bMes (ora____ N2g00)
Other changes: s
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BBRA (H6() - 9,165 33 9,198
At 31 December 2022 1*2022%12B31A 130,481 - 539 131,020
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Rt %5 $r ;R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #2022 12531 H 1L FZ
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)
Reconciliation of assets and liabilities arising

(b)

ROTRFEREUREMRERE

B8 @

(b) METHEENEEREENES

from financing activities (Continued) (&)
Liabilities
&f
Included in
accrued
expenses
Bank and and other Interest Lease
other loans payables payable liabilities Total
BTk
EftER Rt &R EHE fE&ER a5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®ETT  ARETR  AREFR  ARETR  ARETR
(Note17) (Note19) (Note20)
(Hrz017) (HrzE19) (F3r20)
AdJanvay202t  R0AfA1E 606 ______- N S 21 9,128
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEREHELH
Proceeds from bank and other loans BOREMEHFAERE 152,305 - = = 152,305
Repayment of bank and other loans EERTLAMER (114,487) - = = (114,487)
Capital element of lease rentals paid HEaRELERTE - - - (1,234) (1,234)
Interest element of lease rentals paid HEEERBERNE - - = (100 (100)
Interest paid BFIE - - (9,309) - 9,309
Dividends paid BRE - (10,024) - - (10,024)
Tota changes from francig cash fows | MRAZABRGER L LI UG I T
Other changes: s
Finance costs (Note 6(a)) BBAE (z6() S - 9,309 100 9,409
Dividends declared during the year ENERNRS (F25(c)
(Note 23(c) - 10,024 . - 10,024
Totlother changes ________RMxmEE . 1000 S 8 _ 19483
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 133,834 - - 878 134,712
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

16 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND AND OTHER 16 $R{ITERFHEIRESURHEMEESKE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) BR @
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) ERMERERL4EEE
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Within operating cash flows REEREMEN
- Lease rentals paid relating to -HRAHEREEBEEEM
short-term leases and leases of EREENBENEERE
low-value-assets 23 16
17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS 17 RITREMER
(a) The Group’s short-term bank and other loans (a) EEFTHHETREMEREIE
comprise:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFT
Bank loans: RITEN
— Secured by trade and bills —HAEEEHREWRIER
receivables of the Group JFE U 22 45
(Note 17(d)) (P EE17(d)) 21,590 25,090
- Secured by property, plant and —HAEEME -BER
equipment of the Group R EIEE
(Note 17(d)) (MEE17(d)) 20,000 20,000
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary of the —HBFAFER
Company 30,000 -
— Guaranteed by ultimate controlling —HBXIERHHER
party of the Company (Bt 5£26(b))
(Note 26(b)) 8,000 -
- Unsecured and unguaranteed —EHEX 15,000 40,000
94,590 85,090
Add: current portion of long-term m: REARITREMER
bank and other loans BIBIHAER 3 (P 5
(Note 17(b)) 17(0)) 19,085 33,512
113,675 118,602
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 17 RITREMER @
(b) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (b) "EERHABRITRAEMERSIE :
comprise:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T

Bank loans: IRITER
— Guaranteed by a third party and —HBFAFM
ultimate controlling party of the RAERHER
Company (Note 26(b)) (P4 5226(b)) 10,000 -
— Guaranteed by a subsidiary of the —fH%E=3M
Company and ultimate controlling RAER SRR
party of the Company (f$5E26(b))
(Note 26(b)) 5,000 =
Other loans: HMER :
— Secured by property, plant and —HAREEWE BB &
equipment of the Group BB (EE17(d)
(Note 17(d)) 20,891 48,744
35,891 48,744
Less: current portion of long-term B BRESRITREMERN
bank and other loans BREAER o (FE5E17(a))
(Note 17(a)) (19,085) (33,512)
16,806 15,232
(c) The Group’s long-term bank and other loans (c) *EEHEEERPAERTREMER
are repayable as follows: wm
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARBFT
Within 1 year or on demand 1TFERYLEEX 19,085 33,512
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FERER2ERN 13,306 15,232
After 2 years but within 3 years 2EBBENIFERN 3,500 -

35,891 48,744
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sEBHE 4b » U A R 5 R)

17 BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued)
(d) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans

(d)

17 RITKREMER @

FEFENETROTREMEREBS

are secured by the following assets of the EENUTEEMEER
Group:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Carrying value of secured assets: EREENKREE
Property, plant and equipment MERE R E 108,174 112,144
Trade and bills receivables B 55 FE AR IE K B U ZE 21,590 25,090
129,764 137,234

(e) Certain of the Group’s bank and other loans are
subject to the fulfiiment of covenants commonly
found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the loans would become repayable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its
compliance with these covenants. Further details
of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are
set out in Note 24(b). At 31 December 2022,
none of the covenants relating to the bank and
other loans had been breached (2021: None).
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(e)

AEBRETHETREMERHY A
ERESRMEERNEETHES B
BEMMNZE - WAEEREKRZ
FOAZEETBERARERE
B AEETHERHEHETZS
DENBER - EHAAEBMREBE
TERBEBEZE—THEBHRKH
E24(b) e FA2022FE 128318 >
BEERERBETREMETNRZ
(20214 1 &) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

18 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 18 BEZREMAREREMNER
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AEBEFT
Trade payables B ENRIE 47,074 64,287
Bills payable e =% 50,731 67,575
97,805 131,862

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

At the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date, is

FREEBSRBRNREREMNARERTN
—FREEFAREREE -

RBREMREREEZHHRNEZEN
MENENERENRE IO :

as follows:
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Less than 3 months 3MEAURN 54,144 59,433
3 to 6 months I EPSEST(ENS 35,848 54,784
6 to 12 months 6B ZE12{8H 3,025 15,670
Over 1 year 1EL 4,788 1,975
97,805 131,862
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sEBHE 4b » U A R 5 R)

19 BstRAXREMEMRE

19 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AERBTT

Payables for staff related costs ETHERBAENRIE 2,634 1,885

Payables for acquisitions of property, BEME -MEKRKHE
plant and equipment FEfTFRIE 26,755 26,581
Payables for other taxes HMRIEE I8 6,940 2,498
Deposits fREB® 1,140 600
Others Hh 5,821 4,464
43,290 36,028

All of the accrued expenses and other payables
are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

P B FE 5t B 2 ;e B M B 4 "R IE TR 5T Y
—FREERREREE-

20 LEASE LIABILITIES 20 HE&RE
The following table shows the remaining contractual FEBEHEEABERAREHRRBE
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of REBHBARUKRRBEE ZE E KB %K
the current and previous reporting periods to IFRS 16: EEAF16RHANFEGASANEEL
mE

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT ARBF T

Within 1 year 1FER 539 820

After 1 year but within 2 years 1EBER2ER = 58

539 878
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Notes to the Consolidated Fina

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &; Z.
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 2 B £ B &

21 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 REASHBERAERBER

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Movements of current taxation in the (a) REEHMBERRARNENEBERIEES

consolidated statement of financial position BFHWMTF :
are set out below:

=H

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AREFIT

At the beginning of the year R EA]) 73 3,214

Provision for the year (Note 7(a)) FENEE (MW7) = 1,916

Income tax refunded/(paid) BiRE/ (BfY) FriEi 2,801 (7,371)
Prepaid income tax (transferred from) FEIPAER (EH) EHE

/reclassified to prepayments RIEMRIE (2,314) 2,314

At the end of the year RER 560 73
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

21

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 21 MEZAHMBERARMNAER @
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets recognised: (b) BEERMEEEMIBMT :
The components of deferred tax assets AEETEHTBERREANER
recognised in the consolidated statement of WIEERIEEEANIB D REH
financial position and the movements during the Lol
year are as follows:
Government  Impairment
grants and losson  Impairment
subsequent plant and loss on Credit loss Impact of
amortisation machinery inventory allowance Accruals IFRS 16 Tax losses Total
ERME
HRRESR EE&E {3 REER
Rz HER% HER% EENEEE EHER B165%HFE fidl 6P b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1A18 508 - - 445 488 312 - 1,753
Creditect/(charged) to the ([BEABRRIR) /
consolidated statement of FNRRBER
proft or loss (Note 7(a) (H37(a) 128 - - () (232) 75) 907 73
Effect on deferred tax balances  REZHHELRE
resulting from a change in tax ~ EEEHEE
rate (Note 7(a)) (H57(a)) (190) - - (100) - (125) - (415)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 R2021E12831A K
January 2022 2020£1A18 446 - - 340 256 112 907 2,061
Creditect/(charged) to the (BREERRIR) /
consolidated statement of H\RABER
profit or loss (Note 7(a)) (H&710) 124 3 2 ) (182) (39) 4,376 4323
At 31 December 2022 2022128318 570 33 20 331 74 73 5,283 6,384
(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (c) HMAEIHNEERIBEAE

Taxable temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the subsidiaries of the
Group established in the PRC amounted to
RMB113,572,000 at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB139,990,000), where deferred tax liabilities
in respect of the PRC Withholding Tax that would
be payable on the distributions of these profits,
have not been recognised as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries
and it has been determined that it is probable
that such profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

22 DEFERRED INCOME

23

22 IRIEUT A

2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARETFIT

At the beginning of the year REH 2,969 2,122

Additions i 1,460 1,090
Credited to the consolidated statement FNGEERER

of profit or loss (636) (243)

At the end of the year REXR 3,793 2,969

Deferred income represents government grants
received in connection with the construction of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment. The grants
are being amortised over the useful lives of the related

assets. Amortisation of deferred income is included in
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(@) Movements in components of equity
The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the

23 BEFX-fHBERERR
(a) WHEHWHHED

BERA-

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sEBHE 4b » U A R 5 R)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 BE#Xx-f#EBKEBE @

(Continued)

(@) Movements in components of equity (Continued) (a)
Details of the changes of the Company’s

individual components of equity between the

oo Es (@
ARBERDBORENEER
BRI BEHIUT :

204

beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Share Exchange retained
capital premium reserve X profits Total
. ‘ (BB / .
R i aE ER G RRRH Ll
W0 AEND AN AR ANBOD
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
(No\t\623(b)) (th\eZS(d)(i)) (NQt\QZS(d)(iv))
(Wako3i)  (MR23())  (HEaE2S(d)iv))
At 1 January 2021 R202151R1A 17,622 106,878 2,182 (5,162 121,430
Changes in equity for the year ~ HZE2021F12B31ALEE
ended 31 December 2020: BEEy:
Profit for the year KER - - - 8,196 8,196
Other comprehensive income FREMEANA
for the year - - (1,708) - (1,708)
ol comprehershencome - FMEEAMA S S 1L I 8196 _____ 6488
Final dividends declared Bkt INRARE
and paid (Note 23(c) (Frsk23(c) - (10,024) - - (10,024)
- (10,024 - - (10,024)
At 31 December 2021 and 1R20215128318 R
1 January 2022 2022E1R18 17,622 96,854 474 3,044 117,894
Changes in equity for the year ~ EZ2022F12A31H 1L
ended 31 December 2022: Cgny-N
Loss for the year RERH - = = (778) (178)
Other comprehensive income EREMEARA
for the year - - 5,363 - 5,363
Toel comprehershvencome____ FMEEAMA S L 5%8 e _____ 4985
Final dividends declared I INRHRE
and paid (Note 23(c) (Hzk23(c)) - - - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 1*2022512A31H 17,522 96,854 5,837 2,266 122,479
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 B#Xx-f#EBEREE @

(Continued)

(b) Share capital (b) B&Z
2022 2021
No. of No. of
shares shares
RHHE R EE
'000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
T BETT T BT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREEOIETH
HK$0.01 each LER 10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000
2022 2021
No. of No. of
Shares RMB’000 Shares RMB'000
K& E ARETR R #2 AEETT
Ordinary shares, issued BETNEENESER
and fully paid:
At 1 January »1A18 2,000,000,000 17,522  2,000,000,000 17,522
At 31 December 128318 2,000,000,000 17,522 2,000,000,000 17,522
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBX - -#EHREE @

(Continued)
(c) Dividends (c) BRE
(i)  Dividends payable to equity shareholders () FAEMEAGEZRENR
of the Company attributable to the year E
The directors of the Company do not RAEEFTEEZZINEHE
recommend the payment of a dividend for 2022F12HB31HILEEEW
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: BRE (2021 Fg) o
RMB Nil).
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders (i) FEAHBENTH ETBIEE
of the Company attributable to the Bt E—HBFEEZEMNER
previous financial year, approved and A m RRERAIRE

paid/payable during the year

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Final dividend in respect of RERRET T,

the previous financial year, FES Ry _E—BFER

approved and paid/payable FERAKRER

during the year - 10,024

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) EEMNEERE®N
(i)  Share premium () REpEE

The application of the share premium R EEEREZERBZENE
account is governed by the Companies BI - EEaTBMANHEH
Law (as revised) of the Cayman lIslands as ERBE (BES) RHE -

amended, consolidated or supplemented
from time to time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBX - -#HEREE @

(Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Other reserve

The other reserve at 1 January 2017
represented the paid-in capital of a PRC
subsidiary of the Group, namely Xi’an
Tianrui.

In 2017, Xi’an Tianrui reduced its paid-
up in capital from RMB100,000,000 to
RMB50,000,000. The reduction of capital
was used to set-off the amounts due from
the controlling shareholders.

Pursuant to the Reorganisation completed
on 14 November 2017, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group
and accordingly, the paid-in capital of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group was
eliminated against the consideration of
RMB67,500,000 when preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to
transfer 10% of its net profit each year
to the statutory reserve until the reserve
reaches 50% of the registered capital.
The transfer to this reserve must be made
before distributions to equity holders.
This reserve can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increase capital
of the subsidiary and is non-distributable
other than in liquidation.

(d) RFENEERE®N (@)

(i)

(iii)

Bt
R2017FE1B1EBAE MR HE
Er&EB—RTENE LT
(BPAZXRIR) WEBRAE -

R2017H AL KRN EH
&AM AR®100,000,000
THEAR®S50,000,000
7o o #Z IR A 89 R D BB R IR 8
& U 122 G BR BR FR 1B o

BIER2017FE11814H 5%
B KAB KA KNE
ERBETIATZERA
B A ANEE 8 E K E
NENEBEABEERER
EVFREAFEEBRCALEA
R #67,500,0007T i £4 o

EEFE
REBERPEERRER
NEBMP PRI ER
BEASFERACHEEEH
A AI10% HEf#FEED
EMMEANS0% - [ ZHEE
BEEARBERITAE ADIK
BIPEH o % 6 5 o) BB RN 38 88
MBAGMEBFENIEE
BREBINTAT DK
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 23 EBX - -#EHREE @
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
the companies comprising the Group into
the Group’s presentation currency. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(s).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices
used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.
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(d)

(e)

RENEEREN @

(iv) EZEE
ERHEECEZRFMAR K
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BINEEB ZEEREK
Ho()TEZ BT R BEE o

BEXxER

FEBEEEAZTEZEHNER
EAEEEHAREFACEEE
ME EMEBBARRERER
TR K HAth F w42 B B LU M 5
REEXRRBUBRMERME -

AEBITHENERAKREERSA
TARBUBEBRSRERLBRIE
MTHEFEZRSEEKER
RENEARRERNEDRE
2 BEETHE > I RREERK
M CHERRBIFHARE-

ARBHEEAMNBLRAHESR
RICINRIEMBIE RRE ©
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FEEERNZSTRABRARETER
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(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty
will default on its contractual obligations
resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit standings,
for which the Group considers to have low credit
risk.

The Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At 31 December 2022, 60.4% (2021:
46.7%) of the total trade and bills receivables,
was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and
93.8% (2021: 88.4%) of the total trade and bills
receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
debtors, respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.

24 B R

(a)

EEREMIAQARE

EEHI‘A
SERRENFAHAIABTEMNE
1_Tcﬁ‘ﬁ§§$22!§$@7¥< MBEIERN

B - AEBENEERBREIEXR
Q%%&H@EH& MBEREHNE
E-XEEMAZHNREREE R
RESBYURBREENEE

BEEER RARHFHIAREAR
%‘%ﬁﬁ%%&ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁwﬁéﬁ’
MRIEME  AEEIRHEERARK
BAE o

FAEBTRHRBEAEEEEE
ERBHEMNHEMER-

EBZSREWE
FEEERNEERBRIESS
ERAWERBRAAEE MEER
PREREFRFENTE AL EX
EhEERBRIENAETATR
BRIEZEFNEKRRARREESE B
2022F12H31H  BR E WA
HEWEHRIBEE 260.4% ((2021
F D 46.7%) %93.8 % (20214 :
88.4%) DR AEKAEEIREAE
BARAKRBEHBAZRE-

FEBHRNEBEREEBERE-—ETH
WRREZEREETHEHREE&F
Mo REFEETRERBER
1 B HA ™R 18 2 5C B & IR B R B9
BENOUREBIERNARE
MREREREEMEMNEEIR

BEERNER -BZEBKMNER
S ZEHHBI0EI0OHANFH o &
EE-—RARENEZEREESR
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

(Continued)

(a)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B#HEMEEREREMIAAAE
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERARK (&)
Trade receivables (Continued) ESEWIE (8
The Group measures loss allowances for trade AEBREZBERAIAFERFHNE
receivables and contract assets at an amount BEEFEBEZ2SETEEZEI
equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using MERGNEEBEER B
a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical SHELGRBEEERTERSY-
credit loss experience does not indicate HRAEBREFEFEEEELSRI
significantly different loss patterns for different mBETTATRAMAS BT BREELE
customer segments, the loss allowance based INBEREREREEZERE BEILAER
on past due status is not further distinguished BREMEREAEERRE
between the Group’s different customer bases. — T ENAEBRREBNE P B
g o
The following table provides information about TRIEMHEBAAERN2022F &
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs 2021EF12H31HERNEERR
for trade receivables at 31 December 2022 and REZRERBURENTEREEEGEE
2021: ZEHK
2022
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FTEHARSIE X WEREME E1EEE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Ageing analysis of B SRR E
trade receivables: BRES 4T :
Less than 3 months 3EAB LM 0.5% 55,115 (276)
3 to 6 months 3E61E A 3.0% 15,348 (460)
6 to 12 months 6E121@ A 5.0% 16,814 (841)
Over 1 year 1E 100.0% 627 (627)
Total o 87,904 (2,204)
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24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

MERAREEREMIRARE

(&)

(a) EERRKE &

Trade receivables (Continued) B ZEINIE (&)
2021
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BEEEN SRR EAR B B2
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT
Ageing analysis of B 5 EWRIE
trade receivables: BR &S 534
Less than 3 months 3@ B LA 0.5% 48,300 (242)
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA 3.0% 9,872 (296)
6 to 12 months 6E121E A 5.0% 12,122 (606)
Over 1 year 1FE L 100.0% 649 (649)
70,943 (1,793)
Individual assessment & B 5F 14 10.0% 4,709 (471)
Total 4@ st 75,652 (2,264)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past recent years. These
rates are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

FHEREXDERBERLENE
REBERFESH - &ZFMNX
AS 5 B LU PR U £ FE SR B A
MEERR - B RTEREH
HEWRRERBAEHONEERRT
WEEZBHNER-
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE

(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

MERAREEREMIRARE

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)
Movements in the loss allowance account in
respect of trade receivables during the year are

(&)

(a)

EERE (@)

E 5 WA (8)
FRNEMEBEZBERENBER
HERVEFHBE RO T -

as follows:

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBFT
Balance at 1 January P1B18 &8k 2,264 2,295

Impairment losses reversed REEFIRBERE
for the year (60) (31)
Balance at 31 December R12831 H4EER 2,204 2,264

(b) Liquidity risk (b) FEEEEM

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & 20224 12531 H 1 F
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table shows the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the end of
the reporting period) and the earliest dates the
Group can be required to pay:

24 BUHRABEEREMIAAAE

(%)

(b)

RBEERARE (8
TRIITEEENIFFTEERE
BERREMAORFSONERAR
R DIREEBIORBREERER
ne (BRERITOANXFAENIE
MR HELOEREE BIERE
HARNERANEKRAE) REAEEEA
XUMENREHREH !

2022

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

HESES sk it
More than
More than 2 years
Within 1 1 year but but less
year or on less than than 3
demand 2 years years Carrying
1ERY BB1EE @BB2EE Total amount
BEX D2t DH3E st REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥ETR ARETR AR%ETR
Bank and other loans R{TREMER 116,227 13,611 3,638 133,476 130,481
Lease liabilities HEaR 539 - - 539 539
Trade and bills BMH A 2N
payables measured B ZERIE
at amortised cost REMEZEE 97,805 - - 97,805 97,805
Accrued expenses REBHEM AT E
and other payables  HIE SR
measured at HAE (I RIE
amortised cost 36,350 - - 36,350 36,350
250,921 13,611 3,638 268,170 265,175
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; 2 2022%F 12531 H IF FE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k& 53 B st A& 4h » LU A R #851 7R)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 24 B EEKBEEREHMIAAAE

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (%&)
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEEZEE (&)
2021
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
STAXRMIRBER
More than
Within 1 1 year but
year or on less than
demand 2 years Carrying
1ERZ BE1Ee Total amount
BEX [Nipk:= st REE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARBTR ARETRT ARET:T

Bank and other loans RITNLEMER 125,078 16,224 141,297 133,834
Lease liabilities HEERE 862 64 926 878
Trade and bills payables BREBERATENES
measured at amortised ERmBRENEE
cost 131,862 - 131,862 131,862
Accrued expenses and other %8 i A 5t 2 RO fE 5t
payables measured at % R E A T R
amortised cost 33,530 - 33,530 33,530
291,327 16,288 307,615 300,104
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 &#; Z2022F 12531 H 1L F [
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 7 5% BE & 5h » #9 L A B %1 7R)

MERAREEREMIRARE

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (#&)
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) =AMk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily AEBNMERKREZRBEFFE
from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings BE - BEDNRIIMNEIRETE
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose MEZR SKER DR AR
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair EREMNEZRBEARERNER
value interest rate risk respectively. fa o
The following table details the interest rate TRIFEAEBNRSHERNEL
profile of the Group’s total borrowings at the end BEMEXBEEFE
of the reporting period:
2022 2021
Effective Effective
interest rate Amounts interest rate Amounts
BRAZE &8 LIS T8
% RMB'000 % RMB’000
ARETR AEBTT
Fixed rate borrowings BEEFZEE
- Lease liabilities -HESR 8.10% 539 8.10% 878
- Bank loans -RTER 4.20% - 8.30% 109,590 5.50% - 8.75% 85,090
- Other loans -HHEH 6.22% - 9.41% 20,801  6.22% - 7.96% 48,744
Total borrowings HERE 131,020 134,712
Fixed rate borrowings as a BEFZEELBEEN
percentage of total borrowings ot 100% 100%
(d) Currency risk (d) E¥ R

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily AEBEFFMEHE2EBER R EEKRK
through receivables and cash balances that BN (AR ZERZERZ
are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a MEEE U ZEE) JEZE S

currency other than the functional currency of
the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currency giving rise to this risk is primarily
RMB. At the end of the reporting period, the
related risk of the Group is not material.

BERERBFEEEHF 5| RULE
REzEBTERARE - IKNRK
THAR AEENERARIL AR
BAe
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B 35 3R 3R B =X

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (b% 5 B sk A& 9 MU AR 5 R)

24 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(e) Fair value measurement
Fair values of financial instruments carried at
other than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values at 31
December 2022 and 2021.

25 COMMITMENTS
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2022 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

24 BHEEKEERERTIAEAAE

(&)

(e) ARnEFE
TERARLEIIRNEHMITRLAE

7R £ B ¥ A 3 8 AR AN B BR BN
SHTEMNKEmESRER20225F
F2021FE 12331 H A A E I
BEARER-

25 KiE
R2022F 1283 1HAEGZEMBIRE M
REBENRENMERKENT o

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Commitments in respect of purchase of EHBEME -BEX
property, plant and equipment SRR IE

- Contracted for -BiT4

9,969 16,015
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R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in
these consolidated financial statements, the Group
entered into below related party transactions during
the year.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in Note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in Note 9, is as follows:

BARMB S X5
BAGAMBRER MBS FARER
S8 AEERERNT TN TBH S
%50

(a) TEEBASHM
FEETEZEBAEFNEER
NEARBDEFHME (FWHES
FRiRE) RENETEREHNES
I (M SEOPT4RER) W T ¢

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Short-term employee benefits EEERT 1,435 1,728
Post-employment benefits BKRBER 128 174
1,563 1,902

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(see Note 6(b)).

(b) Transactions with related party

HMARENTE T4 R AR (W
526(b)) °

(b) R 7
2022 2021

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Guarantees provided by ultimate HARARAZZERFRMHEN

controlling party of the Company R CER17)

at end of the year (Note 17)

23,000 =
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

26 EXBABMARS @

26 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to
connected transactions
None of the above related party transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2022 falls
under the definition of connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

27 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

(c)

ERRMXS 2 EHRAZERM

B E2022F12H31HIEFEE L4t
A XS MEI A LTRAE
AAEFMATHEBX SN ITER
BTN EEE T

27 REIBREZMBRAR

POSITION
2022 2021
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
F 5E AR®TF T AREBETIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary  RMBaAZRE 2 67,456 67,456
Current assets MMEE
Amount due from a subsidiary W —E M B AR 2 I8 54,787 50,081
Cash at bank and on hand RTNFBERS 236 357
Netcurrentassets = ##EEF® 55,023 50,438 _
NET ASSETS BEFHE 122,479 117,894
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRREE 23
Share capital it 23 17,522 17,5622
Reserves H#E 104,957 100,372
TOTAL EQUITY iR 4EEE 122,479 117,894

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 28 March 2023.

Hou Jianli
ZEEA
Chairman
FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R4 35 3R 2R P 5F

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z20224F 12531 H I F/Z
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (k% 5 7 5= BB & 4b » 5 LA B ¥ 517R)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING

PARTY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
holding company of the Company at 31 December
2022 to be H&C Group Holding Limited, which is
incorporated in the BVI, and the ultimate controlling
party of the Company at 31 December 2022 to be Mr
Hou Jianli and Ms Chen Bierui. H&C Group Holding
Limited does not produce financial statements
available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the IASB has issued a number of new or amended
standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be
relevant to the Groups:

IFRS 17, Insurance contracts
MHREERFE175 REEE

Basis for conclusions on IFRS 17
MRS EAFEI7TR 2 AmER

lllustrative examples on IFRS 17
MBREELFE17R 2 RO

Amendments to IFRS 17
BRSBTS 2 58T

28

29

ERERREERS

KRB EEDRAR2022F12H831
BEARBAMNBEEBESSFAREBEX
B EEMAIIMH&C Group Holding
Limited o 22022F 12831 H & A &
BRARER D AERNSLE RBRB R Z
+ cH&C Group Holding Limitedil £
RETHFRRBEARER o

8 F2022F12H31HLLFEECHE
HEREREMBEETA - FER K
REMNTRETE

HEAMBRRTIEAEH AR g%
AEEgCEALEBITA — B
ERest £ EEMEHRSERS
1750 R & X (822021512831
BEEEHKREN BEHREZTHR
RP®RM) - HBETIIEAARER
HEE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTINS R G 3
MRSt AR E N

Amendments to IFRS 17, Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 —

Comparative Information

MBHREEREITRZNES]  ERATHEREERE17H R

F9T o 15 R

1 January 2023
2023%F1H1H
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #; Z2022F 12531 H IEFE
(Expressed in RMB unless otherwise indicated) (B& 5 5 s BE % 9b > 9 U A R 51 7R)

29 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 29 # ZE2022F12831HLEEEE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED R REMETA  FTER K
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR 2PENAREEE @

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022 (Continued)

Effective for

accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTIBEBAHZE
Mgt AR E X

Amendments to IAS 1, and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of
Accounting Policies

EREsER B 1R AERY BEREERER A S H2R BT
BE R 2 3 EE

Amendments to IAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

BREstERFEeR BT 251 1L5109EE

Amendments to IAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

BEst R FEI12R 2B B E— X G ELHEEN G ISR ELERE

Amendments to IAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
R & st 2R E1SK 2 BE] » W B ZAIE I IE B &1

Amendments to IFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback
WHBmEEAEI6R B EEHEFHHES R

Amendments to IAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current

1 January 2023
2023%F181H
1 January 2023
2023%F181H
1 January 2023
2023%F181H

1 January 2024
2024%F1H1H

1 January 2024
2024F1H1H

1 January 2024

B Gt ZER BRI FEED BB I TE 2024%F1H1H

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined
an investor and its associate or joint venture

RS2 E10N R ER Gt 2R H285R 2 1B5] FE
RELEHARBEENSE L2 B EEBELRA

The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBMETEZEBITRMENFEHRRN

of what the impact of these developments is expected ERERIABNEE 2SS 2 EmA B

to be in the period of initial application. So far it has BZEEBIIRMENAKYEHGEH

concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to RHRRBE AT E

have a significant impact on the consolidated financial

statements.
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